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Part I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

UnUU less the context otherwise rerr quirerr s, “we,” “us,” “our,rr” “the Compm anyn ” and “Sharerr carerr ” rerr feff r to Sharerr carerr , InII c., a Delawarerr corpr oration, and
itstt consolidated subsidiaries.

Overview

WeWW are a leading digital healthcare platform company that helps members consolidate and manage various components of their health in one place,
regardless of where they are on their health journey. Our health and well-being interoperable ecosystem unifies the elements of individual and community
health so everyone can live better, longer across the dynamic continuum of their healthcare needs. WeWW are driven by our philosophy that we are “All
ToTT gether Better” as well as our goal to turn individual progress into community transformation.

Our digital first ecosystem is centered on the person. WeWW believe everyone’s health and well-being is inherently interconnected. Just as a person’s
physical health is inextricably linked to their mental and emotional health, an individual’s health is also connected to a greater collective that includes their
employer, providers, insurers, colleagues, family,yy friends, and local communities. However, these groups have historically remained very disconnected with
various stakeholders providing hundreds of fragmented point solutions, each addressing only one or two specific health-related objectives. By integrating
fragmented point solutions and bringing together disparate stakeholders across the entire healthcare ecosystem into one connected, interoperable virtual
care platform, we believe that we can fulfill the role of a unifier and leverage smartphone technology to foster a frictionless user-friendly experience that
engages people across the dynamic continuum of their healthcare needs. WeWW have built our platform into what we believe is the most comprehensive and
seamless experience currently available in the digital healthcare space.

Our platform offers an accessible, interactive, personalized and rewarding environment that aims to transform user engagement with healthcare from
episodic to everyday. The platform provides a single destination for people, patients and caregivers to access quality and clinically reviewed content;
digitally connect with other patients, community members and healthcare professionals; and adopt action plans provided by healthcare professionals from
top institutions. Centralized within its dynamic digital platform, we provide health assessment and wellness tools and population health services to create
personalized action plans, improve productivity and reduce health-related costs. WeWW also provide physicians and physician practices with value-based care
arrangements through the use of various tools geared towards identifying care gaps, patient engagement and billing efficiencies. Additionally,yy we provide
secure, automated release of information, electronic medical record archiving and business consulting services to streamline the medical records process for
both patients and medical facilities. Sharecare also yields strong return on investment performance on behalf of its life sciences and pharmaceutical partners
through consumer acquisition campaigns that utilize data-driven and contextual lead generation, sponsorships, audience targeting and condition-specific
marketing. Finally,yy we support care through our network of home caregivers and nurses. WeWW deliver value via our provider, enterprise, and life sciences
channels. The consumer solutions channel (as referenced in previous filings) was renamed the life sciences channel in January 2022 in order to more
accurately portray the customer base of the channel.

Since the Sharecare platform was launched in 2012, it has grown to approximately 80,000 employer clients, 12.1 million eligible lives, and 6,000
hospitals and physician practices.

Business Combination

Falcon Capital Acquisition Corp., our predecessor company (“FCAC”), was incorporated as a Delaware corporation on June 5, 2020 for the purpose
of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or other similar business combination with one or more
operating businesses. On July 1, 2021, FCAC consummated a business combination (the “Business Combination”) pursuant to terms of the Agreement and
Plan of Merger, dated February 12, 2021 (the “Merger Agreement”), by and among FCAC, FCAC Merger Sub Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of FCAC
(“Merger Sub”), Sharecare, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Legacy Sharecare”), and the stockholder representative. Immediately upon the completion of the
Business Combination and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub merged with and into Legacy Sharecare with Legacy
Sharecare surviving the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as successor to FCAC). In connection with the Business Combination, we
changed our name from “Falcon Capital Acquisition Corp.” to “Sharecare, Inc.” and Legacy Sharecare changed its name to “Sharecare Operating
Company,yy Inc.,” and we continued the listing of our common stock and public warrants on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“Nasdaq”) under the symbols
“SHCR” and “SHCRWRR ,WW” respectively. See the section entitled “SPAPP C TrTT ansaction” in Note 1 to Sharecare’s consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional information about the Business Combination.
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Our Strengths

Compm rehensive Platft off rm. Designed to help individuals, workforces and communities optimize their holistic well-being, our interoperable platform
is based on human centered design principles and integrates fragmented point solutions and disparate stakeholders that provide a single place for members
to interact with all features and services offered by us and our partners to foster a frictionless user-friendly experience. Moreover, our platform has both a
flexible infrastructure and is scalable and configurable, which allows us to meet the different and evolving needs of our clients. The flexibility and
adaptability of our platform infrastructure also allows us to partner with, and seamlessly integrate, third-party solutions into our ecosystem to promote a
high degree of awareness, engagement, and outcomes through an integrated flow of data.

Largr e, WeWW ll Estatt blisii hed Clientstt . WeWW have a large, diverse and well-established client base — including large health plans, Fortune 100 companies,
and large public sector clients— which we believe provides us with significant existing revenue opportunity from signed contracts, and opportunity to
increase penetration of our products and services and optimize member engagement and enrollment.

Diversrr e Product Portft off lio. WeWW have a diverse portfolio of products and solutions that are marketed to a variety of users within our enterprise,
provider, and life sciences channels. WeWW believe that the diversity of these offerings, together with our ability to bundle them into a comprehensive and
integrated platform, provides compelling value over other digital health platforms or point solutions that are focused more narrowly on one or two specific
health-related needs. Our portfolio of products also offers members clinical connectivity through various incorporated touch points to healthcare systems
and/or to providers and enables us to offer tailored and personalized tools, including the ability to interact directly with family and clinical advocates and
lifestyle management and disease management coaches on our platform.

VaVV lue of TeTT chnologygg ,yy InII novatitt on and Datatt . WeWW derive significant value from our proprietary technology platform that leverages an innovative
architecture and data aggregation capabilities to give members a hyper-personalized experience. Through our platform, we offer a portfolio of privacy-first
technologies and AI software services to drive personalization of our digital assets and create improved value for members. Our single robust platform,
designed to service all our stakeholders, including consumers, health plan members, employees, provider groups, health systems, and Blue Zones Project
sites/communities, is built on an advanced, multi-tenant enabled technology stack that uses the latest design patterns for scale and flexibility.

Our data architecture enables us to ingest substantial amounts of multivariate data sets, such as eligibility,yy claims, biometrics, and social
determinants of health data, from multiple sources in near real-time. The value we can provide to members from the quality and quantity of our data (more
than 1.8 petabytes) uniquely positions us to scale, commercialize, contextually intervene, and materially engage members.

Compm rehensive Contett nt Libraryr .yy WeWW have a comprehensive library comprised of original material as well as content from more than 180
organizations (including the National Institutes of Health, Centers for Disease Control/CDC, and the American Diabetes Association, among others). WeWW
perform medical review of published content at two-year intervals, but often more frequently,yy to ensure accuracy,yy timeliness and relevance. Performing
reviews on this schedule is also consistent with our NCQA WeWW llness and Health Promotion and Disease Management accreditation standards. The size and
quality of our content library allows us to deliver highly personalized content to our members, which drives engagement and builds trust.

Growth Strategy

Expx and our Footptt rint and Exisii ting Client Relatitt onshipi s. WeWW believe that our current client base represents a small fraction of potential clients that
could benefit from our highly differentiated solutions. WeWW also believe that there is significant opportunity to generate growth by maintaining and
expanding our relationships with existing clients, including:

• increasing engagement and enrollment of eligible members at our existing enterprise clients;
• facilitating intervention with Sharecare+, our high-touch, digital-first advocacy driving high quality experience, care, and value support;
• promoting our marketplace of existing targeted digital therapeutics to close gaps in care in high-cost areas (with incremental fee per enrollee); and
• expanding our relationships with our top 25 provider clients with an opportunity to extend our provider products and services to more than 8,500

additional healthcare sites.

Contit nue tott Grow thtt e Capa abilities of our Platft off rm. WeWW are constantly evaluating the marketplace for ways to broaden and enhance our client and
member experience, improve clinical results and increase revenue through product innovation, partnerships and acquisitions. For example, during 2022 we
introduced Sharecare+, our whole health, payor-agnostic advocacy solution that seamlessly layers on top of our flagship digital engagement platform
designed to help health plans and self-insured
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employers increase efficiency,yy productivity,yy and quality,yy and reduce cost of care while making members and employees and their families happier, healthier,
and more productive. WeWW believe that our proven track record of successful acquisitions coupled with the flexibility and capabilities of our platform
positions us to continue opportunistically pursuing attractive M&A opportunities. WeWW intend to continue to look for opportunities to leverage our platform
and expertise to provide first-mover solutions to evolving and future demands in the digital healthcare industry.

Evolving Productstt tott Catett r tott an Evolving InII dustrtt yr .yy As the digital healthcare industry grows, we closely monitor evolving consumer trends and
organizations’ needs so that we may adapt our platform to better suit our clients’ demands. Since March 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic greatly accelerated
the demand for virtual care solutions and resulted in rapid growth and increased adoption of digital health technologies, which we were well positioned to
undertake.

Our Channels

Focusing on the individual, we aim to provide a solution that is more comprehensive than other digital platforms by bringing together scientifically
validated clinical programs and engaging content to deliver a personalized experience for our members, whether they come to us by way of the workplace,
the exam room, or the living room. Strategically and intentionally building on this concept, our business is structured across three primary channels:
enterprise, provider, and life sciences. While we are focused on the individual’s unique experience, our platform is purpose-built to seamlessly connect
stakeholders to the health management tools they need to drive engagement, establish sustained participation, increase satisfaction, reduce costs, and
improve outcomes, regardless of entry point.

Entet rpr risii e Solutit ons

Our enterprise solutions are based on a software-as-a-service (“SaaS”) model that allows enterprise clients to message, motivate and manage their
populations, and measure their populations’ progress, through one platform. Our enterprise clients can leverage our scientifically validated clinical
protocols and personalized approaches, which drive high-impact engagement to achieve measurable outcomes and close gaps in care for their populations.
WiWW th our tech-enabled home care we are able to further support high-touch and high-tech care across the entire care continuum. Our enterprise clients
include a range of stakeholders, from large employers and health systems to government agencies and health plans, that use our digital platform to engage
with their populations, dynamically measure the impact of that engagement, and efficiently deliver health and wellness services. WeWW generate revenue from
our enterprise clients by providing access to our core digital platform on a per member, per month basis with incremental fees charged per enrollee for
access to our marketplace of digital therapeutics.

Provider Solutit ons

WeWW offer providers a suite of data and information-driven solutions that are tailored to improve productivity and efficiency and enhance patient care
and management while upholding the latest compliance, security and privacy standards. WeWW have integrated a range of capabilities and introduced new
services to support providers in a number of ways, and our current offerings include:

• Health Information Management: Automates health record requests, using a simple and efficient consent-based record access management
solution.

• VaVV lue-Based Care: Enables providers and health systems to participate in value-based care arrangements by providing capabilities to identify care
gaps, accurately document diagnoses, engage patients between visits and improve billing documentation; provides quality reporting solutions that
help providers, practices, and systems measure their practices’ performance and success with value-based programs; and helps our clients navigate
complex requirements, improve quality scores and measure performance which in turn, increases their reimbursement and quality earnings.

• Payment Integrity: Employs advanced analytics, AI, and process automation to support improvements in payment integrity for providers, payors
and patients; and works with payors to defend against fraud, waste and abuse while helping providers with denial prevention issues.

• Chronic Condition Intervention: Helps providers identify eligible patients for diabetes and obesity management solutions and other chronic care
conditions; and gives providers confidence that these services are covered and billable, as well as the convenience of digital prescriptions
integrated into the provider workflow.

• Digital Patient Platform: Consolidates patients’ healthcare data into one place; provides the connectivity to generate care gap reminders that are
seamlessly integrated into the patient’s digital healthcare journey.

WeWW generate revenue from our provider clients based on the volume of health document requests and through subscription fees for various
technology related services. Subscription fees are recognized ratably over a one- to three-year contractual period with the opportunity to sell additional
solutions at any time.
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Lifeff Sciences (f(( off rmerlyl Consumer Solutitt ons)s

In January 2022, our consumer solutions channel (as referenced in previous filings), was renamed the life sciences channel in order to more
accurately portray the customer base of the channel.

Our life sciences offering is a robust platform and suite of digital products and medical expert knowledge that provides members with personalized
information, programs, and resources to improve their health and well-being. In support of pharma and other consumer brands, Sharecare drives significant
patient engagement across our consumer audiences using a unique library of content. The newest life sciences innovations from Sharecare for 2023
marketing campaigns include ViVV tal VoVV ices, Rare Disease Roadmap, Patient Connect, Inside Out and Care Collective.

ToTT drive awareness, adoption and engagement on behalf of our partners, we have created a comprehensive strategy to reach the member through a
unique mix of member outreach, including social media, search engine optimization and marketing and precision audience targeting. WeWW generate revenue
from our life sciences clients through products such as lead generation, sponsorships, audience targeting and condition-specific content.

Our Platform

Our platform begins with RealAge, which is a NCQA-certified health assessment that uses scientifically-based methods to assess a variety of
behaviors and existing conditions of our members and provide them with an easily understandable metric for their physical health. WiWW th approximately 45
million individuals completing the assessment since its inception in 1998, RealAge delivers immediate results and recommendations about how to improve
a member’s health and also identifies behaviors, both positive and negative, that may be impacting it. Using RealAge as a person’s baseline, our algorithms
power a data-driven dialogue with the member, creating a content-rich, personalized experience that presents them with relevant benefits programs,
resources and providers for those needing healthcare and well-being support. As members change their behavior, the platform refines its predictive
analytics to provide increasingly compelling recommendations.

Through our digital platform we are able to gain key insights into each member’s health gleaned from self-reported data, in addition to data from the
smartphone, eligibility and claims, social determinants of health, and, in some cases, medical records. This data is then analyzed, with each member’s
permission, to recommend personalized resources, tools, information and programs that meet each person where they are in their healthcare journey.
Through our platform, members can store and access all their health data in one place, navigate their benefits and access personal family and clinical
advocates through our high-touch digital-first advocacy solution Sharecare+. WeWW then provide the resources members need to manage their health through
lifestyle or disease management and coaching programs, such as diabetes management and smoking cessation; well-being solutions, such as financial
health and anxiety management; and care navigation tools, such as find-a-doctor, prescription savings, clinical decision support and medical records. Our
product design philosophy uniquely positions us to drive meaningful engagement while also aggregating a critical mass of behavioral data, to which we
apply AI to more accurately personalize recommendations to predict and influence positive outcomes for each individual. WeWW drive AI-based insights to
deliver personalized experiences and improved outcomes through extensive and proprietary 360° data on physical, mental, behavioral, financial and
community health factors.

Beyond our offerings that focus on individual health and well-being, our platform also provides customized and innovative health data services to
provider organizations around the country,yy helping them become more profitable, productive and secure. Our key product offerings are summarized below,ww
many of which are owned by Sharecare. However, we have adopted an approach of partnering with best-in-class solutions and integrating them into our
platform as an additional benefit to our enterprise clients. As a result, some of the digital therapeutics and other tools we offer are subject to agreements and
arrangements that we have in place with third-party marketplace solution providers.

KeKK ye Capa abilitit es of Our Flagshipi Platft off rm

Digital Benefiff tstt NaNN vigation. WiWW thin the Sharecare platform, benefits navigation provides a centralized location for medical, dental, vision and
prescription benefits, medical authorizations, spending accounts and digital wallet.

Dailyl HeHH alth TrTT acking. WiWW th RealAge as our baseline, we motivate members to engage in their health by tracking their “green days,” the proprietary
health currency we use to measure their daily progress towards the 13 critical health factors that impact one’s RealAge the most: weight, stress, smoke,
sleep, relationships, medications, fitness, diet, cholesterol, blood pressure, steps, glucose and alcohol. Over time, members are prompted to recalculate their
RealAge to see how much they have improved their health.

Engaging Challenges. Designed to impact the core health factors that influence the health and RealAge of our members, our challenges are time-
based programs focused on driving engagement throughout the platform. Enterprise clients can create
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customized challenges specifically targeted for their populations and members can track their progress against others in the community via a leaderboard.

HeHH alth Prorr fiff le. Through our health profile, a personal health record, serving as a living, breathing, evolving story of a member’s health, members
can follow their own health journey. Controlled by the member, the health profile is one place for individuals to store and access their biometrics and health
data at any time.

Lifeff styt le Risk Prorr gram. Upon completion of the RealAge test, members can begin participating in the RealAge program, our comprehensive healthy
behavior program that targets four main categories of lifestyle risks: stress; sleep; nutrition; and activity personalized to the individual based on risk level
for each lifestyle category gleaned through RealAge test responses and stated interests.

Rewardrr s and InII centives. Designed to motivate engagement and drive behavior change that leads to improved health outcomes, we designed our
rewards approach based on proven behavioral science principles that drive member engagement. Focusing on strategic activities and rewards that are
tailored to the individual and easy to understand, we use personalized content and communications to educate and engage members to sustain participation
over time. Reward activities are configurable by population to support key objectives like increased engagement or cost savings. Initial and sustained
engagement focused activities are available, as well as those that meet participatory or outcomes-based requirements.

SyS mpm tom checker.rr AskMD is a personalized health consultation and comprehensive symptom checker that matches member answers against the
latest clinical research to help members take ownership of their health and be better informed before visiting the doctor.

Sharerr carerr + advocacyc . Sharecare+ is a digital-first, precision advocacy solution that engages individuals and families in their holistic well-being
journey. By providing direct, simplified access to all their benefits and expert high-touch support from professional advocates to easily navigate the full
scope of their healthcare needs on their terms, members can more easily and effectively manage their health experience—w— hether that is a chronic
condition, helping address mental health challenges, navigating complex benefits, finding the right doctor, understanding a claim, navigating to the right
care, managing overall lifestyle risk, or just learning healthier habits. Seamlessly layered on top of our flagship digital engagement platform, Sharecare+ is
designed to help health plans and self-insured employers increase efficiency,yy productivity,yy and quality,yy and reduce cost of care while making members and
employees and their families happier, healthier, and more productive. Sharecare+ and our advocates help members find what they need, when they need it.

Digi itatt l ThTT erapa eutit cs MaMM rketptt lace

An array of value-added proprietary and partner-powered solutions that integrate directly into our flagship platform are available for enterprise and
provider clients to purchase for their populations.

Behavioral HeHH alth. Beyond the free content and resources available through the Sharecare platform to help people address a range of behavioral
health challenges, including guided meditation and relaxation exercises, we offer several digital therapeutics to aid in anxiety and stress management,
tobacco and vaping cessation and overeating that consumers may purchase directly or enterprise clients can “unlock” and sponsor for those in their own
populations.

Diabetes. As the first end-to-end turnkey diabetes care and glycemic management program for health systems and physician groups, we integrate
personalized high-touch interventions with high-tech products to improve the management of people living with diabetes across the care continuum. Our
proprietary content, developed by clinical and operations specialists, is designed to ensure patient and professional education adhere to the latest standards
of care and evidenced-based best practices and is coupled with FDA-cleared digital therapeutics for diabetes management optimization.

Disease MaMM nagement. Using a combination of advanced disease algorithms and proprietary predictive risk models, we analyze medical and
pharmacy claims, procedure and eligibility data to appropriately identify individuals with primary chronic conditions, such as diabetes, coronary artery
disease, heart failure, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and asthma. Individuals who are currently,yy or at near-term risk of, high healthcare utilization
are then targeted for proactive outreach and intervention through the Sharecare platform.

HeHH art Disease. The first and only program scientifically proven to reverse the progression of heart disease, Ornish Lifestyle Medicine focuses on
four key areas: eating; stress; love and support; and activity. WeWW provide a multi-platform approach to train and certify health systems in effectively
providing the Ornish Lifestyle Medicine program to their patients.

Lifeff styt le Coaching. WeWW actively target and engage individuals who are at risk for developing a condition and, through the support of a personal
coach, teach them how to take healthy steps to change behavior. Personalized to the participant, the
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program is designed to address areas that contribute to overall physical health and well-being, such as exercise, healthy eating, stress management, tobacco
cessation, and weight management.

Digital ThTT erapa eutics ThTT rorr ugh Partnershipi . In addition to our owned digital therapeutics, we utilize partnerships to enhance our offerings on our
platform through a seamless member experience. For example, we currently partner to bring a suite of applications that support women and their partners
throughout the parenthood journey including fertility,yy pregnancy and parenting. In addition, while our platform already includes assessments, educational
content, and tools to help members take action to mitigate financial stress and step into financial wellness, we also offer members access to SmartDollar, a
leading online financial wellness solution that helps people get on a budget, save for emergencies, pay off debt, and save for retirement. Through
partnership we can also help enterprise clients deliver their populations an evidence-based solution for preventing and improving musculoskeletal issues.

Get Active. Sharecare recently launched Get Active, a new program to help employers encourage exercise among their workforces in a fun,
approachable, and accessible way,yy using the immersive power of virtual reality (VR). In a pilot with its customer Lennar Corporation, one of the nation’s
leading homebuilders, Sharecare’s Get Active program for Meta Quest 2 yielded strong engagement and significant increases in average weekly exercise
minutes compared to pre-program for both healthy and high-risk participants.

Communitytt -Driven Care Solutitt ons

At Sharecare, just as we are guided by our mission to help every person — no matter where they are in their health journey — live longer, better, we
also are fiercely committed to ensuring the healthy choice is the easy choice across the places where people work, live, play and stay.

Blue Zones Prorr jo ect. Our Blue Zones Project is a community well-being improvement initiative in partnership with Adventist Health designed to
change the way people experience the world around them by encouraging and promoting better lifestyle choices, such as commuting, eating and social
habits. Because healthier environments naturally nudge people toward healthier choices, Blue Zones Project focuses on influencing the Life Radius®, the
area close to home in which people spend 90% of their lives. Our 75 communities across 15 states have populations with greater well-being, improved
health outcomes, reduced costs, and increased civic pride, all of which support healthy economic development.

Communityt WeWW ll-Being InII dex. Based on over 4 million surveys and more than 600 elements of social determinants of health data, our Community
WeWW ll-Being Index (“CWBI”) serves as the definitive measure of community well-being across and within populations. A collaboration between Sharecare
and the Boston University School of Public Health, CWBI combines individual risk derived from the WeWW ll-Being Index with community risk from the
Social Determinants of Health Index to create a single composite measure that defines our collective health risk and opportunities.

Our data and insights on well-being inform more effective strategies that encourage the sustained lifestyle changes necessary for people to thrive and
perform to their highest potential. For employers, health plans, health systems and community leaders, this holistic view of health provides the framework
for understanding the underlying root causes of poor health, enabling hyper-targeted interventions that make the healthy choice the easy choice.

CareLinx: HoHH me Care and Nursrr e OnDemand

Powered by its network of over 500,000 background-checked, tech-enabled caregivers, CareLinx by Sharecare delivers intermittent on-demand
personal care services in people’s homes, while leveraging mobile technology to facilitate rich data capture, population health analytics, and the enabling of
real-time care coordination with remote clinical teams. CareLinx provides services across the continuum of care, including non-medical, companionship
and housework, and personal and clinical care. In addition to supporting members with Activities of Daily Living (“ADL”) such as bathing, dressing,
grooming, meal preparation, light housekeeping, and more, CareLinx’s professional caregivers also help to identify risks or needed resources in the home –
from food insecurity to unhealthy living conditions. Through comprehensive and seamless data integration with health plans, CareLinx by Sharecare assists
members in closing gaps in care while supporting chronic condition management, care coordination, and transitional care management to reduce
readmissions and help members remain healthy at home longer.

CareLinx, through Nurse OnDemand, leverages our established nationwide network of tech-enabled nursing professionals for on-demand dispatch
and medical staffing to better serve patients wherever they are, at-home or within healthcare facilities. Our nurses leverage technology that facilitates
patient health data capture, population health analytics and the enabling of real time care coordination with remote clinical teams.
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Sales and Marketing

WeWW sell our solutions through our direct sales organization and through partner relationships. Our direct sales team is comprised of sales
professionals organized into one of three channels: enterprise; provider; and life sciences. WiWW thin each of these categories, our direct sales team is organized
principally by channel, geography,yy segments, and/or account size. Our enterprise and provider contracts range in length from one to five-year terms with
most renewing automatically,yy and typically subject to cancellation by either party upon 90 days’ notice prior to the renewal date. These agreements contain
standard commercial terms and conditions, including payment terms, billing frequency,yy and indemnification. The sales cycle for our solutions from initial
contact with a potential client to client launch is difficult to predict and varies widely by client and segment, ranging from less than six months to well over
a year.

Our TeTT chnology

Our “flagship” platform includes a single mobile application available on iOS, Android and the web as well as a suite of infrastructure and business
services hosted in the Amazon WeWW b Services, or AWAA S, cloud.

Designed as a mobile-first, scalable, configurable and easy to operate platform, we are purpose-built with enterprise-grade framework, uptime
guarantees, processes, and organizational structures; and optimized for developing new services and features, change management, incident management,
management of services, members and clients, and new client implementations.

ToTT provide high levels of availability and enhance security,yy our system designs involve redundant subsystems and compartmentalized networks. ToTT
ensure compliance with privacy and security regulations as well as our obligations to our clients and members, we implement industry-standard processes
and technical controls from software development to deployment and network administration, including regularly scheduled vulnerability scans and third-
party penetration testing to reduce security risks in our system. On an annual basis, we also undergo independent, third-party ISO27001, HITRUST,T the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAPP A”) and SSAE 16 audits. Our systems are continuously monitored to ensure
availability and we have institutionalized problem escalation and incidence management mechanisms.

Competition

Our primary competitors in the digital healthcare industry are other health tech companies that serve the needs of members across a broad set of
health-related needs and are not limited to a single demographic. These digital health companies generally fall into one or more of the following platform
types:

• WeWW llness/ss W// eWW ll-being platforms that provide a range of solutions to support the wellness/well-being of their members, including health risk
assessments, incentive administration, coaching and support programs for lifestyle and disease management, biometric screening, health and
wellness challenges and activity tracking and other health-related content.

• Benefiff tstt NaNN vigi atitt on platforms that provide solutions to help members navigate their health benefits programs, including solutions that integrate
third party benefits information, tools for managing health spending accounts and other digital wallet offerings, guided benefits enrollment and
other communications tools to make navigation of benefits more accessible for members.

• HeHH althtt NaNN vigi atit on platforms that provide offerings to help members navigate their personal healthcare journey,yy including health concierge and
advocacy services, home care, coordination of care and decision support, and solutions to help members access care, ensure price transparency and
provide claims-driven personalization.

WeWW also face competition from many other vendors in the digital healthcare space offering point solutions addressing only one specific aspect of a
person’s health. These point solutions may either be offered on a standalone basis or incorporated into larger digital healthcare platforms, like us, through
partnership arrangements. WeWW expect to face increasing competition, both from current competitors, who may be well established and enjn oy greater
resources or other strategic advantages, as well as new entrants into our market, some of which may become significant competitors in the future. WiWW th the
introduction of new technologies and market entrants, we expect the competitive environment to be and remain intense.

Employees and Human Capital Management

As of December 31, 2022, we had 3,485 employees worldwide, including approximately 309 nurses, clinicians and health coaches, as well as
contract and part-time employees who are working less than 40 hours a week. Of our total employees, 2,530 reside in the United States and 955 in other
countries, such as Brazil, France, Germany,yy India, and the Philippines. None of our employees are unionized or members of collective bargaining
arrangements, other than our employees in Brazil that are
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members of a collective bargaining agreement as required under Brazilian law. WeWW believe our strong employee base, along with their commitment to our
culture and uncompromising values, provides the foundation of our Company’s success.

The attraction, retention, and development of talented colleagues is critical to our success. WeWW accomplish this, in part, by developing our team
members through learning, development and performance management programs. These programs include consistent new hire onboarding, new manager
training, structured goal setting and annual performance management review processes as well as other customized approaches to development at the team
or individual levels.

Our employees are responsible for supporting our ultimate goal of connecting doctors, health plans, employers, useful tools, and quality information
to deliver robust solutions in an easy-to-use platform. WeWW recognize that every employee has the opportunity to make a difference, and we have developed
skill and competencies expectations to support them in meeting their full potential. In addition to their individual performance goals, our team members are
measured annually in areas of communication, change management, problem solving, decision making, and conflict resolution, as well as in their ability to
drive results, coach others, build trust, and act as an effective team member.

ToTT keep our leadership team informed of the needs of our human capital assets, we track and report internally on key metrics including headcounts
by functional area, onboarding experiences, colleague engagement levels and exit data.

WeWW continue to vet and hone our organizational structure as our business evolves and accordingly,yy we establish new roles as needed to reflect the
talent and capabilities required by our business.

Our human capital practices are governed by various federal, state and local regulations. WeWW monitor key employment activities, such as hiring,
termination and pay practices to ensure compliance with established regulations across the world.

Diversrr itytt

Our diversity,yy equity,yy and inclusion objective is to be a company where each individual in our organization genuinely belongs, is respected and
valued and can do their best work. WeWW embrace diversity,yy equity,yy and inclusion. A truly innovative workforce needs to be diverse and leverage the skills and
perspectives of a wealth of backgrounds and experiences. ToTT attract a diverse workforce, we strive to embed a culture where employees can bring their
whole selves to work.

As of December 31, 2022, our workforce was comprised of female — 71%, minority — 36%, disability — 4%, and veterans — 2%. Our Executive
TeTT am of 24 included eight females and four minorities as of December 31, 2022. Our Medical Advisory Board of 20 included eight females and two
minorities as of December 31, 2022. WiWW th our diversity recruiting initiatives we expect that we will increase our workforce diversity,yy and advance inclusion
and equity within all Sharecare divisions to create future opportunities for all colleagues.

Safeff tytt

The safety and well-being of our employees is always our top priority and a primary focus of our leaders. All policies and procedures related to
safety are reviewed and acknowledged by colleagues annually.

Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, we focused on protecting the health and safety of our team members while meeting the needs of our clients.
WiWW thin weeks of the start of COVID-19 pandemic, we moved approximately 90% of our office-based team members to a work-from-home model with
minimal impact to productivity. WeWW immediately created, and have continuously evaluated and amended, protocols and guidelines to ensure the health and
safety of our employees. WeWW continue to provide flexibility to our team members to work from home and make decisions appropriate for their
circumstances.

Benefiff tstt

Our compensation program is based on our philosophy that total compensation should support the Company’s mission and values. WeWW believe our
compensation program is a management tool that when aligned with an effective communication plan, is designed to support, reinforce and align our
values, business strategy,yy and operational and financial needs with a goal of growth and profitability. The program is designed to attract, motivate, and
retain talented colleagues who are dedicated to the success of the organization.

In recognition of the need to employ top-tier talent, we strive to provide base salaries that meet or exceed the market for colleagues who are fully
proficient and meeting expectations. The Company utilizes incentive or variable pay as a way to meet the strategic goals of the Company. Incentive pay is
available to some colleagues with consideration of a number of factors and is based on individual goals that relate to company objectives as well as overall
company performance. The compensation process is intended to be fair and simple so that all employees and managers understand the goals and the
outcomes of the process. WeWW are committed to administering the compensation program in a manner that is consistent and free of discrimination.
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As a part of our total rewards offerings, we offer competitive benefits, evidenced-based programs and wellness tools to assist our employees in
making the right choices every day,yy representing our commitment to employee health and wellness. WeWW provide health, welfare and retirement benefits for
our employees, including medical, health savings account (“HSA”) grants, dental, vision, life insurance, short- and long-term disability,yy paid time off,
various voluntary insurance programs, tuition reimbursement, a robust employee assistance program (“EAP”), and a 401(k) retirement plan. Our offerings
are designed to enhance employee productivity and loyalty by giving our team members the tools they need to live their healthiest, happiest, and most
productive lives. As a leader in digital healthcare, we have also partnered with innovators to offer added tools that address specific aspects of personal and
financial health.

TrTT aining

WeWW continue to emphasize employee development and training. ToTT empower employees to unleash their potential, we provide a range of
development programs and opportunities, skills and resources. Our Learning Management System platform supplements our talent development strategies
through an online portal that enables employees to access instructor-led classroom or virtual courses and self-directed web-based courses.

WeWW have all-company competencies focused on individual contributors to front-line managers to senior managers. These competencies focus on how
we coach others, drive results, problem solve and make decisions, resolve conflict, build trust, build effective teams, manage change and communicate. WeWW
believe these behavioral expectations are integrated into the way we assess and select talent, manage performance and develop our people.

WeWW are committed to identifying and developing the talents of our next generation leaders. For colleagues who have been promoted or hired as a
people manager, we conduct New Manager Essentials training within 30-60 days. This training focuses on human resource laws and regulations, wage and
hour standards for hourly workers, approving timecards, basics of interviewing, such as what you can and cannot ask, performance management as a
manager including managing the performance improvement plan process, and transitioning from a peer to a manager.

For our mid-level leaders, we conduct a multi-day program that continues to support our key competencies such as team building, coaching with
emotional intelligence, leading through transition and change, communicating appropriately,yy and managing difficult situations. ToTT supplement our leader
development programs we provide a quarterly newsletter developed in-house that is focused on current topics pertinent to our business.

WeWW partnered with LinkedIn Learning to allow colleagues to develop in their current role by expanding their knowledge in areas of interest.
Additionally,yy we have internal training courses on topics such as: critical conversations; managing a remote workforce; how to give and receive feedback;
conducting interviews; time management/prioritization; setting performance management goals; and coaching to those goals. Utilizing the experience of
our own colleagues, we also have a mentoring program in place for some of our operations.

Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property rights are important to our business. WeWW rely on trademarks, patents, copyrights, trade secrets, license agreements,
intellectual property assignment agreements, confidentiality agreements and other similar agreements to establish and protect our proprietary rights.
Though we rely in part upon these legal and contractual protections, we believe that the overall significance to our business is minimal, and that factors
such as the skills and ingenuity of our employees and the functionality and frequent enhancements to our solutions are larger contributors to our success.

As of December 31, 2022, we held 64 registered trademarks in the U.S. and also held 112 registered trademarks in foreign jurisdictions. In addition,
as of December 31, 2022, we owned a number of copyrights and registered domain names for websites that we use in our business, such as
www.ww sharerr carerr .com.

As of December 31, 2022, we also owned a portfolio of (a) 12 issued patents and (b) 25 pending patent applications in the U.S. In foreign
jurisdictions, we had four patent applications and no issued patents as of December 31, 2022. As noted below,ww we believe that the impact of our patent
portfolio is relatively minimal (with the exception of the doc.ai patent applications discussed below), and that our current solutions and revenue are driven
primarily by our brands (including our registered trademarks), along with our knowledge and trade secrets.

WeWW have historically acquired a substantial portion of our intellectual property through acquisitions. Nearly all of our issued patents were acquired
through our acquisition of the Population Health business of Healthways in 2016 and consist of patents for various automated medical diagnostic and
treatment advice systems, disease management systems, panel diagnostic systems and an end-of-life predictive model. The patents acquired from
Healthways expire between 2023 and 2030 and we do not believe any of them to be integral to the functionality of our existing solutions.
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One pending patent application was acquired through our acquisition of MindSciences and relates to behavior change user interface response.
Similar to the Healthways patents discussed above, we do not believe this patent application to be integral to the functionality of any of our existing
solutions.

In connection with our acquisition of doc.ai, we further enhanced our intellectual property portfolio with the acquisition of a portfolio comprising of
one issued patent, 25 patent applications (including applications in the U.S., China, and Japan) and three trademark registrations/applications in the U.S.
doc.ai’s patent applications consist of applications with respect to software and AI in the healthcare field and expire between April 2037 and October 2040.

More so than patents, we rely upon unpatented trade secrets and know-how and continuing technological innovation to develop and maintain our
competitive position. However, trade secrets and know-how can be difficult to protect. WeWW seek to protect our proprietary information by,yy in part, entering
into confidentiality agreements and intellectual property assignment agreements with our employees and other partners. The confidentiality agreements we
enter into are designed to protect our proprietary information and the agreements or clauses requiring assignment of inventions to us are designed to grant
us ownership of technologies that are developed through our relationship with the respective counterparty. WeWW cannot guarantee, however, that we have
executed such agreements with all of employees and other partners, or that to the extent an agreement is in place, it will not be breached or will afford us
adequate protection of our intellectual property and proprietary rights. For additional information, see “Risk Factors — Riskskk Related to Legal and
Regulatoryr MaMM tters — Failurerr to prorr tect or enfoff rcrr e our intellectual prorr po ertyt rightstt could harm our business, fiff nancial condition, and rerr sultstt of
opo erations.”

Licensing and Collaboration Agreements

WeWW have historically leveraged, and intend to continue to leverage, licensing and other third-party collaboration agreements in order to expand and
enhance the suite of solutions we are able to offer to our clients and members.

For example, we have entered into a license and/or collaboration agreement with respect to each of the digital therapeutic solutions provided through
our suite of marketplace solutions that are integrated into our platform as discussed under “Our Platft off rm — Digital ThTT erapa eutics MaMM rketpt lace.” Although
each marketplace solution that is integrated into our platform provides an opportunity for our members to meet their healthcare needs for a particular set of
health issues, these marketplace solutions together accounted for less than 5% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2022, and we do not
believe any single marketplace solutions is critical to our platform. Moreover, we intend our suite of marketplace solutions to evolve over time as
healthcare needs change. As a result, we expect to periodically pivot to additional or replacement marketplace solutions (or to develop our own solution
alternatives) as existing marketplace solutions become obsolete or otherwise fail to meet the evolving needs of our members.

In addition to licensing and/or collaboration agreements with respect to our suite of marketplace solutions, certain of our other offerings are subject
to licensing agreements, such as our Blue Zones Project initiative in partnership with Adventist Health. WeWW also license various software and services from
third-party providers in connection with the operation of our platform and business. See “Risk Factors — Risksk Related to TeTT chnologygg and Data Privacyc —
WeWW rerr lyl on internet infrff astructurerr , bandwidth prorr viders, thirdrr -p- artyt compm uter hardrr warerr and softff warerr , and other thirdrr parties foff r prorr viding services to our
clientstt and members, and anyn faff ilurerr or interrupu tion in the services prorr vided byb these thirdrr parties or the inabilityt to access our platft off rm on thirdrr -p- artyt
opo erating sys stems could negativelyl impm act our rerr lationshipi s with clientstt and members, adverselyl affff eff cting our business, fiff nancial condition, and rerr sultstt of
opo erations.”

Regulatory Matters

Our business is subject to extensive, complex, and rapidly changing federal, state, and foreign laws and regulations. Specifically,yy our solutions are
subject to extensive regulation covering the privacy and security of personal health information. Because maintaining the safety of our platform and
keeping personal information secure and confidential are our most important responsibilities as a healthcare company,yy we have structured our operations
with a focus on compliance. WeWW continue to monitor and respond to changes in the regulatory landscape, however, there can be no assurance that our
operations will not be challenged or impacted by such changes.

HIHH PII APP AAA and Other Privacyc and Securityt Requirerr mentstt

There are numerous U.S. federal and state laws and regulations related to the privacy and security of personal information, particularly protected
health information (“PHI”). HIPAPP A establishes privacy and security standards that limit the use and disclosure of PHI and requires the implementation of
administrative, physical, and technical safeguards to ensure the confidentiality,yy integrity and availability of PHI. WeWW are regulated as both a business
associate and covered entity under HIPAPP A. In addition to HIPAPP A, some states in which we operate have laws that protect the privacy and security of
sensitive and personal information, including health information. Such state laws can be similar to or even more protective than HIPAPP A, in which case we
must comply with the more stringent law. WeWW also may become increasingly subject to foreign laws governing
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the privacy and security of personal information, such as the General Data Protection Regulation (EU) 2016/679 (the “GDPR”) as we continue to expand
our business internationally. As a result, it may be necessary to modify our planned operations in order to ensure we are in compliance with the stricter state
or foreign laws.

In order to comply with the requirements of HIPAPP A and other similar state laws, we have implemented safeguards to protect our members’ PHI,
including storing and transmitting PHI securely in compliance with the HIPAPP A Security Rule, utilizing the minimum data necessary to provide any
particular service, restricting the use and sharing of PHI, limiting access to PHI to authorized personnel, maintaining training programs on how to protect
PHI and ensuring business associate agreements and data sharing agreements are in place with the appropriate parties.

Data Prorr tection and Brerr aches

In recent years, there have been a number of well-publicized data breaches involving the improper disclosure of individuals’ PHI or other personal
information. Certain states have reacted to these breaches by enacting laws and regulations requiring holders of such information to take additional steps,
including responding to breaches in certain timeframes, to safeguard the information. While HIPAPP A requires us to report breaches of unsecured PHI to our
clients no later than 60 days following discovery of the breach, our own compliance standards and the terms of our contractual agreements require earlier
reporting of any such breach. WeWW are also required to notify the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and, in cases involving large breaches, the
media.

In addition to the HIPAPP A compliance measures discussed above, we de-identify,yy encrypt and back up data, maintain company-wide security
awareness training, enter into business associate agreements with our partners, as well as ensure our partners have implemented physical security and
safeguards at the data centers where our data is stored and conduct regular internal and external security audits. See “Risk Factors — Riskskk Related to Legal
and Regulatoryr MaMM tters — Our use, disclosurerr , and other prorr cessing of PIIII and PHIHH is subjb ect to HIHH PII APP AAA and other feff deral, state, and foff rerr ign privacyc and
securityt rerr gulations, and our faff ilurerr to compm lyl with those rerr gulations or to adequatelyl securerr the infoff rmation we hold could rerr sult in signififf cant liabilitytt or
rerr pe utational harm and, in turn, have a material adverse effff eff ct on our client base, member base, and rerr venue.”

Other HeHH althcarerr Regulations

In addition to data privacy laws, our operations and arrangements with healthcare professionals, clients and third-party payors may subject us to
various federal, state, and foreign healthcare laws and regulations, including without limitation, fraud and abuse laws, such as the federal Anti-Kickback
Statute; civil and criminal false claims laws; physician transparency laws; and state laws regarding the corporate practice of medicine and fee-splitting
prohibitions. These laws may impact, among other things, our sales and marketing operations, and our interactions with healthcare professionals. Although
we have adopted policies and procedures designed to comply with these healthcare laws and regulations, failure to maintain compliance could result in
significant penalties and require changes in our business operations.

International Operations

WeWW have international operations in Brazil and France that provide health and wellness services to corporate and health insurer clients. In Brazil, we
have a 10 year joint venture agreement with SulAmerica (“SAS”), one of the largest insurance companies in the country,yy under which we provide services
to SAS and other third-party clients. Services are delivered via our platform and local contact centers, including nursing and lifestyle management outreach
for disease management, senior programs, coaching, and inbound nurse triage call lines. In France, we provide a tobacco cessation offering to a health
insurer population. WeWW may,yy in the future, expand our international operations as opportunities become available.

AvAA ailable Information

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), are made available free of charge
on our internet web site at www.sharecare.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after we have electronically filed the material with, or furnished it to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). The SEC maintains an internet site that contains our reports, proxy and information statements and our
other SEC filings. The address of that web site is https:/// www.sec.gov/.

WeWW webcast our earnings calls and certain events we participate in or host with members of the investment community on our investor relations
website at https://// investors.sharecare.com. Additionally,yy we provide notifications of news or announcements regarding our financial performance, including
SEC filings, investor events and press and earnings releases as part of our investor relations website. WeWW have used, and intend to continue to use, our
investor relations website as means of disclosing material information and for complying with our disclosure obligations under Regulation Fair Disclosure.
Further
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corporate governance information, including our fourth amended and restated certificate of incorporation (the “Charter”), amended and restated bylaws (the
“bylaws”), governance guidelines, board committee charters and code of business conduct and ethics, is also available on our investor relations website
under the heading “Corporate Governance.” The content of our website is neither part of nor incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form
10-K or in any other report or document we file with the SEC, and any references to our websites are intended to be inactive textual references only.

ITEM 1A. RISK FAFF CTORS

WeWW have identififf ed the foff llowing risksk and uncertainties that maya have a material adverse effff eff ct on our business, fiff nancial condition, rerr sultstt of
opo erations or rerr pe utation. ThTT e riskskk described below arerr not the onlyl riskskk we faff ce. Additional riskskk not prerr sentlyl known to us or that we currerr ntlyl believe
arerr not material maya also signififf cantlyl affff eff ct our business, fiff nancial condition, rerr sultstt of opo erations or rerr pe utation. Our business could be harmed byb anyn of
these riskskk . InII assessing these riskskk , you should also rerr feff r to the other infoff rmation contained in this Annual Repe ort on Form 10-K,K including the
consolidated fiff nancial statementstt and accompm anyn ing notes included elsewhererr in this Annual Repe ort on Form 10-K.KK

Risk Factors Summary

Our business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, all of which are more fully described in the risk factors below. These risks include, but
are not limited to:

• our ability to adapt in a rapidly evolving industry and to promote and improve the benefits of our platform;

• our ability to compete against current and future competitors;

• our ability to maintain and expand our relationship with our clients and partners, including without limitation due to the saturation or consolidation
in the healthcare industry;

• risks associated with a decrease in the number of users with access to our offerings;

• risks associated with the cyclical fluctuation of our results of operations;

• risk of economic uncertainty or downturns, particularly as it impacts the healthcare industry;

• the impact of public health emergencies, such as the COVID-19 pandemic and other catastrophic events;

• the failure of our platform and solutions to achieve market acceptance and our ability to develop, or incorporate through acquisition or partnership,
new solutions or enhancements, new features and modifications to existing solutions;

• risk of the loss of any of our significant partners;

• our ability to recruit, retain, and develop our workforce, and in particular our key personnel and senior management team;

• our ability to establish and maintain strategic relationships with third parties;

• our ability to successfully identify,yy consummate and integrate acquisitions and investments;

• our ability to maintain our historic growth rates and effectively manage our growth in the future;

• rapid technological change in the virtual care market or the inability to develop new solutions, features and modifications that are adopted;

• security breaches, loss of data and other disruptions;

• failures of our cyber-security measures that expose the confidential information of us, our enterprise partners, or members;

• any failure or interruption in the services of our internet infrastructure, bandwidth providers, and other third party suppliers;
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• risk that we may be subject to legal proceedings and the insurance we maintain may not fully cover all potential exposures;

• our ability to comply with evolving regulations, including healthcare and privacy and security regulations;

• our ability to protect or enforce our intellectual property rights;

• our level of indebtedness and our ability to fund debt obligations and meet financial covenants in our debt instruments;

• our ability to obtain additional capital in the future;

• our ability to operate as a public company,yy including with respect to increased costs and demands on management as a result of complying with
additional laws and regulations;

• our ability to establish and maintain an effective system of disclosure controls and internal control over financial reporting, including the ability to
remediate an identified material weakness in our internal controls over financial reporting; and

• the trading price of our common stock has been, and will likely continue to be, volatile and you could lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to our Business and Industry

Our industrtt yr isii rapa idlyl evolving and undergr oing sigi nififf cant tett chnological change. IfII we are not successfuff l in adapa tit ng tott thtt isii evolving environment
and promotit ng and impm roving thtt e benefiff tstt of our platft off rm, our growthtt maya be limitet d,dd and our business maya be advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d.dd

The digital healthcare industry is characterized by rapid technological change, new product and service introductions, evolving industry standards,
changing customer needs, and intense competition. In addition, there may be a limited-time opportunity to achieve and maintain a significant share of this
market due in part to our rapidly evolving industry and the substantial resources available to our existing and potential competitors. It is uncertain whether
our marketplace will achieve and sustain high levels of demand and market adoption. In order to remain competitive, we are constantly evaluating the
marketplace for ways to broaden and improve our client and member experience through product innovation, partnerships, and acquisitions.

Our success depends to a substantial extent on the willingness of individuals to increase their use of digital health platforms to manage their
healthcare journey,yy our ability to demonstrate the value of our solutions to our current and future clients, and our ability to drive engagement and activation
within the populations of current and future clients. If our existing or future clients do not recognize the benefits of our platform or we do not achieve
sufficient engagement and activation of our clients’ populations, then the market for our solutions might develop more slowly than we expect, which could
adversely affect our operating results.

WeWW maya be unable tott compm etett effff eff ctit velyl against our current and fuff ture compm etit tott rsrr , which could have a matett rial advdd ersrr e effff eff ct on our resultstt of
opo eratit ons, fiff nancial conditit on, business, and prosps ectstt .

The market for our solutions is highly competitive, rapidly evolving, and fragmented. WeWW compete with other digital health technology companies
that serve the needs of members across a broad set of health-related needs, typically through platforms focused on wellness/well-being, benefits navigation,
and/or health navigation. WeWW also face competition from many other vendors in the digital healthcare industry offering point solutions addressing only one
specific aspect of a person’s health.

If one or more of our competitors were to merge or partner with another of our competitors, the change in the competitive landscape could materially
adversely affect our ability to compete effectively. Our competitors may also establish or strengthen cooperative relationships with our current or future
sponsors or partners, thereby limiting our ability to grow our strategic relationship with such parties. Our existing point solution partners may also develop
new capabilities over time that address similar needs to, and compete with, other portions of our platform. If we are unable to compete effectively with
these or other competitors, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Many of our competitors may also have longer operating histories and significantly greater financial, technical, marketing, and other resources than
we have. As a result, some of these competitors may be in a position to devote greater resources to the development, promotion, sale, and support of their
products and services and have offered, or may in the future
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offer, a wider range of products and services that are increasingly desirable to potential clients, and they may also use advertising and marketing strategies
that (including loss-leaders) achieve broader brand recognition or acceptance.

WeWW compete on the basis of price and may be subject to pricing pressures as a result of, among other things, competition within the industry,yy
practices of managed care organizations, government action, and financial stress experienced by our customers. If our pricing experiences significant
downward pressure, our business will be less profitable, and our results of operations will be adversely affected. WeWW cannot be certain that we will be able
to retain our current customers or expand our customer base in this competitive environment. If we do not retain current customers or expand our customer
base, or if we have to renegotiate existing contracts to less favorable terms, our business will be harmed.

WeWW derive a matett rial portitt on of our revenue frff om our largr est clientstt . ThTT e loss, tett rminatitt on, or renegotit atitt on of anyn contrtt act withtt such clientstt could
negatit velyl impm act our resultstt .

Historically,yy we have relied on a limited number of our largest clients for a material portion of our total revenue and accounts receivable. One client
accounted for 16%, 11%, and 9% of our revenue for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2021, and 2022, respectively. For the years ended December 31,
2020, 2021, and 2022, our top 10 clients accounted for 44%, 40%, and 40% of our revenue, respectively. The sudden loss of any of our largest clients or the
renegotiation of any of our largest client contracts could adversely affect our results of operations. In the ordinary course of business, we engage in active
discussions and renegotiations with our clients regarding the solutions we provide and the terms of our client agreements, including our fees. As our
clients’ businesses respond to market dynamics and financial pressures, and as our clients make strategic business decisions with respect to the lines of
business they pursue and programs in which they participate, we expect that certain of our clients will, from time to time, seek to restructure their
agreements with us. In the ordinary course of our business, we renegotiate the terms of our agreements with our clients in connection with renewals or
extensions of these agreements. These discussions and future discussions could result in reductions to the fees and changes to the scope of services
contemplated by our original client contracts and consequently could negatively impact our revenue, business, and prospects.

Because we rely on a limited number of our largest clients for a material portion of our revenue, we depend on the creditworthiness of these clients.
If the financial condition of our clients declines, our credit risk could increase. Should one or more of our significant clients declare bankruptcy,yy be declared
insolvent, or otherwise be restricted by state or federal laws or regulation from continuing in some or all of their operations, this could adversely affect our
ongoing revenue, the collectability of our accounts receivable, affect our bad debt reserves and negatively impact our net income. For example, in 2022, we
restructured our agreement with respect to our business in Brazil and may engage in further restructurings in the future that could result in reductions of
fees or scope of services.

Saturation or consolidation in thtt e healthtt care industrtt yr could result in thtt e loss of exisii titt ng clientstt , a reductit on in our potett ntit al client base and downward
pressure on thtt e prices foff r our productstt and services.

As the healthcare information systems market continues to evolve, saturation of this market with our products or our competitors' products could
limit our revenues and opportunities for growth. There has also been increasing consolidation amongst healthcare industry participants in recent years,
creating integrated healthcare delivery systems with greater market power. Our inability to make initial sales of our systems to, or maintain relationships
with, newly formed groups and/or healthcare providers that are replacing or substantially modifying their healthcare information systems, or, if we were
forced to reduce our prices, could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our sales cyc cles can be long and compm licatet d and require considerable titt me and expx ense. As a result,tt our sales and revenue are diffff iff cult tott predict and
maya varyr substatt ntit allyl frff om period tott period,dd which maya cause our resultstt of opo eratit ons tott flff uctuatett sigi nififf cantltt yl .yy

The timing of our sales and related revenue recognition is difficult to predict because of the length of our sales cycle, particularly with respect to our
enterprise clients which include a range of clients from large employers and health systems to government agencies and health plans. The sales cycle for
our solutions from initial contact with a potential client to enrollment launch varies widely,yy ranging from less than six months to well over a year. Our sales
efforts involve educating our clients about the ease of use, technical capabilities, and potential benefits of our platform. Some of our enterprise clients
undertake a significant and lengthy evaluation process, including to determine whether our platform meets their specific healthcare needs, which frequently
involves evaluation of not only our platform but also an evaluation of other available services and solutions. Once an enterprise client enters into an
agreement with us, we typically explain the benefits of our solutions again to eligible employees to encourage them to sign up as members. During this
process, we expend significant resources on sales and marketing activities, which may negatively impact our operating margins, particularly if no sales
occur. There are a number of factors that contribute to the timing of client purchases and the variability of our revenue recognition, including budgetary
constraints, funding authorization, and changes in client personnel. In addition, the significance and timing of our product enhancements, and the
introduction of new products by our competitors, may also affect our clients’ purchases. Our sales
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process may also be extended as a result of travel restrictions and business interruptions caused by public health emergencies, such as the COVID-19
pandemic. As a result, it is difficult to predict whether a sale will be completed, the particular period in which a sale will be completed or the period in
which revenue from a sale will be recognized. It is possible that in the future we may experience even longer sales cycles, more complex client needs,
higher upfront sales costs, and less predictability in completing some of our sales as we continue to grow our direct sales force, expand into new territories,
and market additional solutions. Moreover, we may in the future enter into agreements under which we will not receive any payments or recognize any
revenue until we complete a lengthy implementation cycle. If our sales cycle lengthens or our substantial upfront sales and implementation investments do
not result in sufficient sales to justify our investments, our margins could be adversely affected, our revenue could be lower than expected and our business,
financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.

WeWW have also historically experienced some unpredictability and cyclicality in the timing for recognizing revenue, with higher revenue in some
quarters compared with others. For example, with respect to our enterprise clients, and in particular our clients with contract years commencing at the
beginning of a calendar year, we record a disproportionate amount of revenue from such clients during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year relative to the
first three quarters of our fiscal year. In addition, we have also historically recorded disproportionately higher revenue from our life sciences channel in the
fourth quarter of our fiscal year as a result of our sponsors committing incremental marketing dollars available for the fiscal year. If these cyclical
fluctuations in our business become more pronounced in the future, our business, financial condition and results of operations may be exposed to further
volatility.

IfII our exisii tit ng clientstt do not contit nue or renew thtt eir contrtt actstt withtt us, renew at lower feff e levelsll or decline tott purchase additit onal solutit ons frff om us, it
could have a matet rial advdd ersrr e effff eff ct on our business, fiff nancial condition, and resultstt of opo eratit ons.

WeWW expect to derive a significant portion of our revenue from renewal of existing client contracts and sales of additional solutions to existing clients.
As part of our growth strategy,yy for instance, we are focused on offering additional solutions to our existing clients in order to enhance member experience,
improve clinical results, and increase our revenue per year. WeWW also believe there is significant opportunity to cross-sell our provider solutions to existing
accounts. As a result, expanding the solutions that we provide to our existing client base is critical to our future business, revenue growth, and results of
operations.

Factors that may affect our ability to sell additional solutions include, but are not limited to: the price, performance, and functionality of our
solutions; the availability,yy price, performance, and functionality of competing solutions; our ability to develop and sell complementary applications and
services; the stability,yy performance, and security of our hosting infrastructure and hosting services; changes in healthcare, data privacy and other laws,
regulations, or trends; and the business environment and development of our clients.

WiWW th respect to our enterprise clients, contracts with health plans and integrated healthcare systems generally range from three to five years, with
several comprehensive strategic agreements extending up to ten years in length, while contracts with large employers generally have two to four year terms.
Our provider channel’s revenue is based on the volume of health document requests fulfilled and subscription fees for various technology-related services
that assist providers with performance and risk-adjd ustment tools, billing contract compliance and enhanced patient care. Subscription fees are recognized
ratably over a one to three year contractual period. Our clients generally have no obligation to renew their contracts for our solutions after the initial terms
expire. In addition, our clients may negotiate terms less advantageous to us upon renewal, which may reduce our revenue from these clients. Our future
results of operations also depend, in part, on our ability to expand into new clinical specialties and across care settings and use cases. If our clients fail to
renew their contracts, renew their contracts upon less favorable terms or at lower fee levels or fail to purchase new solutions from us, our revenue may
decline, or our future revenue growth may be constrained.

In addition, after the initial contract term, a significant number of our client contracts allow clients to terminate such agreements for convenience at
certain times, typically with an advance notice. If a client terminates its contract early and revenue and cash flows expected from a client are not realized in
the time period expected or not realized at all, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Economic uncertatt intytt or downturns, partitt cularlyl as it impm actstt partit cular industrtt ies, could advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ct our business and opo eratitt ng resultstt .

In recent years, global markets have experienced cyclical downturns and worldwide economic conditions remain uncertain. This uncertainty has
been exacerbated in particular by public health emergencies such as the COVID-19 pandemic, inflation, supply chain disruptions, rising interest rates,
financial institution disruptions, and geopolitical tensions such as the Russian invasion of Ukraine. Economic uncertainty and associated macroeconomic
conditions make it extremely difficult for our clients and us to accurately forecast and plan future business activities and could cause our clients to slow
spending on our
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platform, which could delay and lengthen sales cycles. Furthermore, during uncertain economic times our clients may face issues gaining timely access to
sufficient credit, which could result in an impairment of their ability to make timely payments to us. Our clients’ ability to make timely payments to us may
also be impacted by their own customers’ financial condition or ability to gain timely access to credit causing payments to our clients to be delayed. If our
clients are not able to make timely payments to us, we may be required to increase our allowance for doubtful accounts and our business, financial
condition, and results of operations could be materially negatively impacted.

Additionally,yy events involving limited liquidity or defaults in the financial services industry,yy or concerns or rumors about events of this kind, have in
the past and may in the future lead to market-wide liquidity problems. For example, on March 10, 2023, Silicon VaVV lley Bank was closed by the California
Department of Financial Protection and Innovation, which appointed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as receiver. While Sharecare was not
directly impacted by this event, other banks and financial institutions may enter receivership or become insolvent in the future, which would impair and/or
threaten our ability to access our cash and cash equivalents and could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition. Furthermore,
we have enterprise clients in a variety of different industries. A significant downturn in the economic activity attributable to any particular industry may
cause organizations to react by reducing their capital and operating expenditures in general or by specifically reducing their spending on healthcare matters.
In addition, our enterprise clients may delay or cancel healthcare projects or seek to lower their costs by renegotiating vendor contracts. Such delays or
reductions in general healthcare spending may disproportionately affect our revenue. Also, competitors may respond to challenging market conditions by
lowering prices and attempting to lure away our clients.

WeWW cannot predict the timing, strength, or duration of any economic slowdown or any subsequent recovery generally,yy of any industry in particular. If
the conditions in the general economy and the markets in which we operate worsen from present levels, our business, financial condition, and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

ThTT e growthtt of our business relies, in part,tt on thtt e growthtt and success of our entett rpr risii e clientstt and thtt e number of membersrr withtt access tott our offff eff rings,
which are diffff iff cult tott predict and are affff eff ctet d byb faff ctott rsrr outstt ide of our contrtt ol. IfII thtt e number of membersrr of thtt e popo ulatit ons of our entett rpr risii e clientstt
decreases or thtt e number of thtt ose membersrr thtt at utit lizii e our solutit ons decreases, our revenue will likelyl decrease.

Under most of our enterprise client contracts, we base our fees on the number of individuals enrolled in the solutions subscribed to by our enterprise
clients. In addition, some fees are subject to credits if certain performance criteria are not met, which in some cases depend on the behavior and health of
our members, such as their continued engagement with our solutions, and other factors outside of our control. Many factors may lead to a decrease in the
number of individuals covered by our enterprise clients and the number of solutions subscribed to by our clients, including, but not limited to: natural
attrition of members of our enterprise clients’ populations; decline in prevalence of employer-sponsored healthcare or private health insurance coverage;
continued acceptance of our solutions by members and prospective members; the timing of development and release of new solutions; introduction and
development of features and functionality that are lower cost alternatives by our competitors; technological changes and developments that we cannot
respond to within the markets we serve; and changes in the healthcare industry. The growth forecasts of our enterprise clients are also subject to significant
uncertainty and are based on assumptions and estimates that may prove to be inaccurate and their member enrollment in our solutions could fail to grow at
anticipated rates, if at all. If the number of individuals covered by our enterprise clients decreases, or the number of solutions to which they subscribe
decreases, for any reason, our enrollment rate may decline and our revenue will likely decrease which would harm our business, financial condition, and
results of operations.

Our sales and thtt e success of our marketit ng effff off rtstt depe end in part on our abilitytt tott call upu on our current clientstt tott provide positit ve refeff rences tott new,ww
potett ntit al clientstt . Failure tott obtatt in such refeff rences maya advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ct our abilitytt tott grow our client base and have a negatit ve and advdd ersrr e effff eff ct on
our business, fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo eratit ons.

Our sales and the success of our marketing efforts depend in part on our ability to call upon our current clients to provide positive references to new,ww
potential clients. The loss or dissatisfaction of our clients, particularly our large, long-term enterprise clients, including as a result of our platform providing
a poor member experience, could adversely affect our brand and reputation and our ability to rely on our clients for positive references. If that were to
occur, it could substantially harm our ability to maintain existing clients, attract new clients, and sell and achieve widespread adoption of our solutions, and,
in turn, our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

WeWW faff ce risii ks, such as unfoff reseen coststt and potet ntial liabilitytt in connection withtt contet nt we produce, license, and disii trtt ibutet thtt rough our platft off rm.

As a producer and distributor of content, we face potential liability for negligence, copyright, and trademark infringement, or other claims based on
the nature and content of materials that we produce and distribute. WeWW also may face potential liability for content used in promoting our service, including
marketing materials. WeWW may purchase content that we
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ultimately decide not to place on our platform, to remove from our platform, or to discontinue or alter if we believe such content might not be well received
by our clients or members or could be damaging to our brand and business.

ToTT the extent we do not accurately anticipate costs or mitigate risks, including for content that we obtain but ultimately does not appear on or is
removed from our platform, or if we incur unforeseen liabilities with respect to the content we produce or distribute, our business may suffer. Litigation to
defend related claims could be costly and the expenses and damages arising from any liability could harm our results of operations. WeWW may not be
indemnified against claims or costs of these types and we may not have insurance coverage for these types of claims.

ThTT e growthtt of our business and fuff ture success relies, in part,tt on our partntt ersrr hipi s and othtt er relatitt onshipi s withtt thtt ird partit es and our business could be
harmed if we faff il tott maintatt in or expx and thtt ese relatitt onshipi s.

In the ordinary course of our business, we may enter into partnerships and other collaborations, in-licensing arrangements, joint ventures, and
strategic alliances with third parties to develop proposed solutions, or integrate existing solutions into our platform. Proposing, negotiating, and
implementing partnerships, collaborations, in-licensing arrangements, joint ventures, or strategic alliances may be a lengthy and complex process. Other
companies, including those with substantially greater financial, marketing, sales, technology or other business resources, may compete with us for these
opportunities or arrangements. WeWW may not identify,yy secure, or complete any such transactions or arrangements in a timely manner, on a cost-effective
basis, on acceptable terms, or at all. In particular, these collaborations may not result in the development or integration of solutions that achieve commercial
success or result in significant revenues and could be terminated prior to developing or integrating any solutions. In addition, the financial condition and
viability of our collaborators is beyond our control. Failure to retain and expand any of our partnerships or other third-party relationships, or the failure of
our collaborators to remain a viable business, could harm our relationships with our clients and our reputation and brand.

Additionally,yy we may not be in a position to exercise sole decision making authority regarding certain transactions or arrangements, which could
create the potential risk of creating impasses on decisions, and our collaborators may have economic or business interests or goals that are, or that may
become, inconsistent with our business interests or goals. It is possible that conflicts may arise with our collaborators, such as conflicts concerning the
achievement of performance milestones, or the interpretation of significant terms under any agreement, such as those related to financial obligations or the
ownership or control of intellectual property developed during the collaboration. If any conflicts arise with our current or future collaborators, they may act
in their self-interest, which may be adverse to our best interest, and they may breach their obligations to us. In addition, we have limited control over the
amount and timing of resources that our current collaborators or any future collaborators devote to their own or our future solutions. Disputes between us
and our collaborators may result in litigation or arbitration which would increase our expenses and divert the attention of our management. Further, these
transactions and arrangements are contractual in nature and may be terminated or dissolved under the terms of the applicable agreements and, in such
event, we may not continue to have rights to the products relating to such transaction or arrangement or may need to purchase such rights at a premium.

WeWW could faff ce repe utatt tit onal damage or loss of trtt ust frff om our clientstt and membersrr as a result of trtt ansfeff rring inaccuratet or incompm letett infoff rmatit on, as
well as potett ntit al regulatott ryr risii k or othtt er liabilitytt foff r errorsrr in processing infoff rmatit on, all of which could harm our business, fiff nancial condititt on and
resultstt of opo eratit ons.

WeWW provide healthcare-related information for use by our partners, clients and members. However, data in the healthcare industry is generally
fragmented in origin, inconsistent in format, and often incomplete. ToTT the extent the information from third-parties that we transfer is incorrect or
incomplete, we may suffer reputational risks and loss of trust from our partners, clients and members. WeWW may also face potential regulatory risk or other
liability to our partners, clients and members to the extent that we transfer inaccurate or incomplete data as a result of our own processing errors rather than
simply passing on third-party information. For example, if, as a result of such a processing error, we provided sensitive information to the wrong party or
such error results in incorrect delivery of services, we could be exposed to risk of regulatory non-compliance under HIPAPP A or personal liability to our
partners, clients and members under state law causes of action such as negligence. WeWW could also be subject to liability for wrongful delivery or handling of
healthcare services or erroneous health information. While we maintain insurance coverage for such claims, this coverage may prove to be inadequate or
could cease to be available to us on acceptable terms, if at all. Even unsuccessful claims could result in substantial costs and diversion of management
resources. A claim brought against us that is uninsured or under-insured could harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our business, fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo eratit ons maya be advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d byb pandemics or epe idemics such as COVIVV DII -19 or othtt er advdd ersrr e
public healthtt developo mentstt .

The COVID-19 pandemic caused many governments to implement quarantines and significant restrictions on travel, or to advise that people remain
at home where possible and avoid crowds. Healthcare providers around the world, including
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certain of our partners and clients, faced substantial challenges in treating patients with COVID-19, such as the diversion of hospital staff and resources
from ordinary functions to the treatment of COVID-19, supply,yy resource and capital shortages, and overburdening of staff and resource capacity. In the
United States, governmental authorities also recommended, and in certain cases required, that elective, specialty,yy and other procedures and appointments,
including certain primary care services, be suspended or canceled to avoid non-essential patient exposure to medical environments and potential infection
with COVID-19 and to focus limited resources and personnel capacity toward the treatment of COVID-19.

The resurgence of COVID-19 or other public health emergencies along with the related measures to contain the spread of such viruses, could cause
disruptions and severely impact our business, including, but not limited to: increasing the likelihood of clients not renewing their contracts with us or being
unable to pay us in accordance with the terms of their agreements; reducing the demand of the solutions offered on our platform due to restrictions on
elective procedures and access to hospitals and other healthcare facilities; causing one or more of our clients or partners to file for bankruptcy protection or
shut down; negatively impacting our ability to provide our solutions to clients and members; and harming our business, financial condition, and results of
operations. Conversely,yy certain of our platforms, for example our health security solutions, may experience an uptick in demand as a result of an outbreak
or pandemic that causes increases in revenue that are not sustained as government restrictions and mandates designed to contain the spread of such viruses
subside.

Furthermore, we cannot predict with any certainty whether and to what degree the disruption caused by any pandemic and reactions thereto will
impact us, our customers and our industry,yy and in turn, we may face difficulty accurately predicting our internal financial forecasts.

Our business could be disii rupu tet d byb catatt strtt opo hic eventstt and man-made problems, such as power disii rupu tit ons, datatt securitytt breaches, tet rrorisii m, and
public healthtt emergr encies.

Our systems are vulnerable to damage or interruption from the occurrence of any catastrophic event, including earthquake, fire, flood, tsunami, or
other weather event, power loss, telecommunications failure, software or hardware malfunction, cyber-attack, war, a public health emergency,yy terrorist
attack, or incident of mass violence, which could result in lengthy interruptions in access to our platform. In addition, acts of terrorism, including malicious
internet-based activity,yy could cause disruptions to the internet or the economy as a whole. Even with our disaster recovery arrangements, access to our
platform could be interrupted. If our systems were to fail, or be negatively impacted as a result of a disaster or catastrophic event, our ability to deliver our
platform and solutions to our clients and members would be impaired or we could lose critical data. If we are unable to develop and execute adequate plans
to ensure that our business functions continue to operate during and after a disaster or catastrophic event, our business, financial condition, and results of
operations would be harmed.

WeWW have implemented a disaster recovery program that allows us to move platform traffic to a backup data center in the event of a catastrophe.
However, to the extent our disaster recovery program does not effectively support the movement of traffic in a timely or complete manner in the event of a
catastrophe, our business, financial condition, and results of operations may be harmed.

WeWW depe end on our tatt lent and corpr oratett culture tott grow and opo eratett our business, and if we are unable tott hire, intet gratett , developo , motit vatett and retatt in
our persrr onnel,l including our senior management,tt Sharecare+ advdd ocatett s, clinical and various product and tett chnologygg roles, our business could be
advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctet d,dd and we maya not be able tott grow effff eff ctitt velyl .yy

Our success depends in large part on our ability to attract and retain high-quality employees in sales, services, advocacy,yy caregiving, engineering,
marketing, operations, finance, and support functions. Competition for qualified employees is intense in our industry and has increased across most
industries over the last year, and the loss of even a few qualified employees, or an inability to attract, retain, and motivate additional highly skilled
employees required for the planned expansion of our business could harm our operating results and impair our ability to grow. If we face labor shortages or
increased labor costs because of increased competition for employees or independent contractors, as well as other employee benefits costs, our operating
expenses could increase, and our profitability and growth could be negatively impacted. ToTT attract and retain key personnel, we use various measures,
including an equity incentive program for key employees. However, these measures may not be enough to attract and retain the personnel we require to
operate our business effectively. In addition, employees may be more likely to leave us if the shares of our capital stock they own or the shares of our
capital stock underlying their equity incentive awards have significantly reduced in value. Conversely,yy to the extent employees receive significant proceeds
from sales of vested equity awards in the public markets, their motivation to continue to work for us may be reduced.

Our future success depends in part on our ability to identify,yy attract, integrate, and retain empathetic and knowledgeable advocates and caregivers, as
well as highly qualified and motivated product developers and engineers, who embody our mission-driven culture. WeWW seek to employ advocates and
caregivers who demonstrate empathy and problem-solving skills and hire from diverse professional backgrounds, including social work, teaching, customer
care, and benefits. WeWW have from time to time in the past experienced, and may in the future experience, difficulty in hiring and retaining employees with
appropriate
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qualifications. Qualified individuals in the regions where we have offices are in high demand, and we may incur significant costs to attract them. In
addition, with a current shortage of certain qualified caregivers in many areas of the United States, competition for sourcing of these professionals remains
intense. WeWW compete for qualified individuals with numerous other companies, many of whom have greater financial and other resources than we do. In
addition, in the future, we may experiment with different staffing and scheduling models to help attract and retain qualified personnel, including hiring
individuals that work remotely,yy incorporating more flexible work schedules, or deploying a temporary workforce. If we fail to effectively manage our
hiring needs or successfully integrate new hires, our employee morale and retention could suffer. Any of these events could also adversely affect our
customer and member satisfaction and harm our business.

Our future also depends on the continued contributions of our senior management team, each of whom would be difficult to replace. WeWW rely on our
leadership team in the areas of operations, technology,yy marketing, sales, and general and administrative functions. From time to time, there may be changes
in our senior management team that may be disruptive to our business, particularly if we have failed to have in place and execute an effective succession
plan. If our senior management team, including any new hires that we may make, fails to work together effectively and to execute our plans and strategies
on a timely basis, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be harmed.

In addition, we believe that our culture has been and will continue to be a critical contributor to our success and our ability to attract and retain
highly skilled personnel. If we do not continue to develop our corporate culture or maintain and preserve our core values as we grow and evolve both in the
United States and internationally,yy we may be unable to foster the innovation, curiosity,yy creativity,yy focus on execution, teamwork, and the facilitation of
critical knowledge transfer and knowledge sharing we believe we need to support our growth and recruit additional talent.

IfII we are not able tott maintatt in and enhance our repe utatt tion and brand recognitit on, our business, fiff nancial condition, and resultstt of opo eratit ons could be
advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctet d.dd

WeWW believe that maintaining and enhancing our reputation and brand recognition is critical to our relationships with existing clients, partners, and
sponsors, and to our ability to attract new clients, partners, and sponsors. The promotion of our brand may require us to make substantial investments and
we anticipate that, as our market becomes increasingly competitive, these marketing initiatives may become increasingly difficult and expensive. Brand
promotion and marketing activities may not be successful or yield increased revenue, and to the extent that these activities yield increased revenue, the
increased revenue may not offset the expenses we incur and our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be harmed. In addition, any
factor that diminishes our reputation or that of our management, including failing to meet the expectations of our clients, partners, or sponsors, could harm
our reputation and brand and make it substantially more difficult for us to attract new client, partners, and sponsors. If we do not successfully maintain and
enhance our reputation and brand recognition, our business may not grow or our current revenue may decline and we could lose our relationships with our
existing clients, partners, and sponsors, including, in particular, our enterprise clients, which would harm our business, financial condition, and results of
operations.

WeWW use offff sff hore thtt ird-p- artytt partntt ersrr locatett d in InII dia, thtt e Philipi ppp ines and othtt er countrtt ies, thtt at subjb ect us tott regulatott ryr ,yy economic,c social and polititt cal
uncertatt intit es and tott lawsww apa ppp licable tott U.UU S. compm anies opo eratit ng oversrr eas and othtt er risii ks of global opo eratit ons.

WeWW are subject to several risks associated with using third-party service providers in India, the Philippines and other countries. Our technological,
financial and customer service performance may be adversely affected by general economic conditions and economic and fiscal policy in the countries
where our workforce may operate, including changes in exchange rates and controls, interest rates and taxation policies, as well as social stability and
political, economic or diplomatic developments affecting such countries in the future. In particular, India has experienced significant economic growth over
the last several years, but faces maja or challenges in sustaining that growth in the years ahead. These challenges include the need for substantial
infrastructure development and improving access to healthcare and education. In addition, we may encounter negative publicity or other response to the use
of offshore resources in lieu of performing work domestically.

Risks Related to Future Growth

Acquisii itit ons and investmtt entstt could result in opo eratit ng diffff iff culties, dilutit on, and othtt er harmfuff l consequences thtt at maya advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ct our business,
fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo eratit ons. Additionallyl ,yy if we are not able tott identifyff and successfuff llyl acquire suitatt ble businesses, our opo eratit ng
resultstt and prosps ectstt could be harmed.dd

WeWW have made a number of acquisitions, and expect to continue making acquisitions to add employees, complementary companies, solutions,
technologies, or revenue. These transactions could be material to our business, financial condition, and results of operations. WeWW also expect to continue to
evaluate and enter into discussions regarding a number of potential partnerships and other transactions with third parties. The identification of suitable
acquisition candidates can be difficult, time-
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consuming, and costly,yy and we may not be able to complete acquisitions on favorable terms, if at all. The process of integrating an acquired company,yy
business or technology has created, and will continue to create unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditures. The areas where we face risks include:

• diversion of management time and focus from operating our business to addressing acquisition integration challenges;

• loss of key employees of the acquired company and other challenges associated with integrating new employees into our culture, as well as
reputational harm if integration is not successful;

• implementation or remediation of controls, procedures, and policies at the acquired company;

• difficulties in integrating and managing the combined operations, technologies, technology platforms, and solutions of the acquired companies and
realizing the anticipated economic, operational, and other benefits in a timely manner, which could result in substantial costs and delays or other
operational, technical, or financial problems;

• integration of the acquired company’s accounting, human resource, and other administrative systems, and coordination of product, engineering,
and sales and marketing functions;

• failure to successfully further develop the acquired technology or realize our intended business strategy;

• our dependence on unfamiliar affiliates and partners of acquired businesses;

• uncertainty of entry into markets in which we have limited or no prior experience or in which competitors have stronger market positions;

• unanticipated costs associated with pursuing acquisitions;

• failure to successfully onboard clients or maintain brand quality of acquired companies;

• responsibility for the liabilities of acquired businesses, including those that were not disclosed to us or exceed our estimates, as well as, without
limitation, liabilities arising out of their failure to maintain effective data protection and privacy controls and comply with applicable regulations;

• inability to maintain our internal standards, controls, procedures, and policies;

• difficulties in complying with antitrust and other government regulations;

• challenges in integrating and auditing the financial statements of acquired companies that have not historically prepared financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”);

• potential accounting charges to the extent intangibles recorded in connection with an acquisition, such as goodwill, trademarks, client
relationships, or intellectual property,yy are later determined to be impaired and written down in value; and

• failure to accurately forecast the impact of an acquisition transaction.

Moreover, we rely heavily on the representations and warranties provided to us by the sellers of acquired companies, including as they relate to the
creation of, and ownership and rights in, intellectual property,yy existence of open source, and compliance with laws and contractual requirements. If any of
these representations and warranties are inaccurate or breached, such inaccuracy or breach could result in costly litigation and assessment of liability for
which there may not be adequate recourse against such sellers, in part due to contractual time limitations and limitations of liability.

Future acquisitions could also result in expenditures of significant cash, dilutive issuances of our equity securities, the incurrence of debt, restrictions
on our business, contingent liabilities, amortization expenses or write-offs of goodwill, any of which could harm our financial condition. In addition, any
acquisitions we announce could be viewed negatively by partners, clients, members, investors or our other stakeholders.
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Additionally,yy competition within our industry for acquisitions of business, technologies, and assets is intense. Even if we are able to identify an
acquisition that we would like to consummate, we may not be able to complete the acquisition on commercially reasonable terms or the target may be
acquired by another company. WeWW may enter into negotiations for acquisitions that are not ultimately consummated. Those negotiations could result in
diversion of management time and significant out-of-pocket costs. If we fail to evaluate and execute acquisitions successfully,yy we may not be able to realize
the benefits of these acquisitions, and our operating results could be harmed. If we are unable to successfully address any of these risks, our business,
financial condition, and results of operations could be harmed.

WeWW maya not grow at thtt e ratett s we hisii tott ricallyl have achieved or at all,l even if our keye metrtt ics maya indicatett growthtt .

WeWW have experienced significant growth in the last 10 years. Future revenues may not grow at these same rates or may decline. Our future growth
will depend, in part, on our ability to expand our footprint and establish new client relationships, expand our existing client relationships, including offering
additional solutions to our existing clients, and grow and evolve our platform capabilities with the changing needs of our industry. WeWW can provide no
assurances that we will be successful in executing on these growth strategies or that, even if our key metrics would indicate future growth, we will continue
to grow our revenue or to generate net income. Our ability to execute on our existing sales pipeline, create additional sales pipelines, and expand our client
base depends on, among other things, the attractiveness of our solutions relative to those offered by our competitors, our ability to demonstrate the value of
our existing and future solutions, our ability to foster and develop our existing and new partner relationships, and our ability to attract and retain a sufficient
number of qualified sales and marketing leadership and support personnel. In addition, our existing clients may be slower to adopt our solutions than we
currently anticipate, which could adversely affect our results of operations and growth prospects.

IfII we faff il tott effff eff ctit velyl manage our growthtt , we maya be unable tott executet our business plan, adequatett lyl address compm etitt tit ve challenges or maintatt in our
corpr oratett culture, and our business, fiff nancial condititt on, and resultstt of opo eratit ons could be advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d.dd

Our historical rapid growth and expansion increases the complexity of our business and places significant strain on our management, personnel,
operations, systems, technical performance, financial resources, and internal financial control and reporting functions. WeWW may not be able to manage
growth effectively,yy which could damage our reputation, limit our growth, and negatively affect our operating results. In the event of continued growth of
our operations or in the number of our third-party relationships, our information technology systems and our internal controls and procedures may not be
adequate to support our operations. ToTT effectively manage our growth, we must continue to improve our operational, financial, and management processes
and systems and to effectively expand, train, and manage our employee base. As our organization continues to grow and we are required to implement
more complex organizational management structures, we may find it increasingly difficult to maintain the benefits of our corporate culture, including our
ability to quickly develop and launch new and innovative solutions or execute on our expansion strategy through acquisition or new partnership
relationships. This could negatively affect our business performance.

ThTT e estimatet s of market opo ppp ortunitytt and foff recaststt of market growthtt included herein maya prove tott be inaccuratett , and even if thtt e marketstt in which we
compm etett achieve thtt e foff recastett d growthtt , our business maya not grow at similar ratet s, or at all.

Market opportunity estimates and growth forecasts are subject to significant uncertainty and are based on assumptions and estimates that may not
prove to be accurate. The estimates in this Annual Report on Form 10-K relating to the expected growth of the digital healthcare market may prove to be
inaccurate. Even if the market in which we compete meets our size estimates and forecasted growth, our business could fail to grow at similar rates, if at
all.

As we expx and our intet rnatitt onal opo eratit ons, we will increasinglyl faff ce politit cal,ll legal and compm liance, opo eratit onal,l regulatott ryr ,yy economic and othtt er risii ks
thtt at we do not faff ce or are more sigi nififf cant thtt an in our domestit c opo eratit ons. Our expx osure tott thtt ese risii ks isii expx ectett d tott increase.

As we expand our international operations, we will increasingly face political, legal and compliance, operational, regulatory,yy economic, and other
risks that we do not face or that are more significant than in our domestic operations. These risks vary widely by country and include varying regional and
geopolitical business conditions and demands, government intervention and censorship, discriminatory regulation, nationalization or expropriation of assets
and pricing constraints. Our international solutions need to meet country-specific client and member preferences as well as country-specific legal
requirements, including those related to licensing, digital healthcare, privacy,yy data storage, location, protection and security. Our ability to provide solutions
internationally is subject to the applicable laws governing remote healthcare and the practice of medicine in such location, and the interpretation of these
laws is evolving and vary significantly from country to county and are enforced by governmental, judicial and regulatory authorities with broad discretion.
WeWW cannot, however, be certain that our interpretation of such laws and regulations is correct in how we structure our operations, our arrangements with
physicians, services agreements and customer arrangements.
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Our international operations increase our exposure to, and require us to devote management resources to implement controls and systems to comply
with, the privacy and data protection laws of non-U.S. jurisdictions and the anti-bribery,yy anti-corruption and anti-money laundering laws of the United
States (including the FCPAPP ) and similar laws in other jurisdictions. Implementing our compliance policies, internal controls, and other systems upon our
expansion into new countries and geographies may require the investment of considerable management time and financial and other resources over a
number of years before any significant revenues or profits are generated. ViVV olations of these laws and regulations could result in fines, criminal sanctions
against us, our officers or employees, restrictions or outright prohibitions on the conduct of our business, and significant brand and reputational harm. WeWW
must regularly reassess the size, capability,yy and location of our global infrastructure and make appropriate changes, and must have effective change
management processes and internal controls in place to address changes in our business and operations. Our success depends, in part, on our ability to
anticipate these risks and manage these difficulties, and the failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, financial
position, brand, reputation and/or long-term growth.

Our international operations require us to overcome logistical and other challenges based on differing languages, cultures, legal and regulatory
schemes, and time zones. Our international operations encounter labor laws, customs, and employee relationships that can be difficult, less flexible than in
our domestic operations and expensive to modify or terminate. In some countries we are required to, or choose to, operate with local business partners,
which requires us to manage our partner relationships and may reduce our operational flexibility and ability to quickly respond to business challenges. Our
international operations may also expose us to foreign currency exchange risks.

Risks Related to TeTT chnology and Data Privacy

ThTT e faff ilure of our platft off rm tott achieve and maintatt in market accepe tatt nce could result in us achieving sales below our expx ectatt tit ons, which would cause
our business, fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo eratit on tott be matett riallyl and advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d.dd

Our current business strategy is highly dependent on our platform achieving and maintaining market acceptance. Market acceptance and adoption of
our platform depends on educating our clients and members as to the distinct features, ease-of-use, positive lifestyle impact, cost savings, and other
perceived benefits of the solutions offered on our platform as compared to competitive solutions. If we are not successful in demonstrating to existing and
potential clients and members the benefits of our solutions, our sales may decline or we may fail to increase our sales in line with our forecasts.

Achieving and maintaining market acceptance of our solutions could be negatively impacted by many factors, including the perceived risks and rate
of acceptance associated with the use of digital healthcare technologies generally as compared to traditional healthcare solutions. In addition, our platform
may be perceived by our partners, clients, and members to be more complicated or less effective than traditional approaches, and people may be unwilling
to adopt our platform solutions.

IfII we are not able tott developo new solutit ons, or successfuff l enhancementstt , new feff atures and modififf catit ons tott our exisii titt ng solutions, or othtt erwrr isii e
incorpr oratett such new solutions or enhancementstt , new feff atures or modififf catit ons tott exisii tit ng solutit ons thtt rough acquisii ition or partntt ersrr hipi , our business,
fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo eratit ons could be advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d.dd

The markets in which we operate are characterized by rapid technological change, frequent new product and service introductions and
enhancements, changing customer demands, and evolving industry standards. The introduction of products and services embodying new technologies can
quickly make existing products and services obsolete and unmarketable. Additionally,yy changes in laws and regulations could impact the usefulness of our
solutions and could necessitate changes or modifications to our solutions to accommodate such changes. For example, consumers of our home health
solutions implemented as a result of the CareLinx acquisition often depend on reimbursement from third-party payors, including insurance companies and
Medicare. If applicable laws and regulations were to change, or if insurance companies were to reduce or eliminate reimbursement for certain home health
solutions, demand for these solutions could be adversely impacted.

WeWW invest substantial resources in researching and developing, or otherwise incorporating into our platform through acquisition or partnership, new
solutions or enhancements to our existing solutions by incorporating additional features, improving functionality,yy and adding other improvements to meet
our clients’ and members’ evolving needs. The success of any enhancements or improvements to our solutions or any new solutions depends on several
factors, including timely completion, competitive pricing, adequate quality testing, integration with new and existing technologies on our platform and
third-party partners’ technologies, and overall market acceptance. WeWW may not succeed in developing or incorporating, marketing, and delivering on a
timely and cost-effective basis enhancements or improvements to our solutions or any new solutions that respond to continued changes in market demands
or new client requirements, and any enhancements or improvements to our solutions or any new solutions may not achieve market acceptance. Since
developing, or incorporating through acquisition or partnership, our solutions is complex, the timetable for the release of new solutions and enhancements
to existing solutions is difficult to predict, and we may not offer new solutions and updates as rapidly as our clients require or expect. Any new
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solutions that we develop or incorporate into our platform, or through acquisition or partnership, may not be introduced in a timely or cost-effective
manner, may contain errors or defects, or may not achieve the broad market acceptance necessary to generate sufficient revenue. Moreover, even if we
introduce new solutions, we may experience a decline in revenue of our existing solutions that is not offset by revenue from the new solutions. For
example, clients may delay adoption of new solutions to permit them to make a more thorough evaluation of these solutions or until industry and
marketplace reviews become widely available. Some clients may hesitate to migrate to a new solution due to concerns regarding the performance of the
new solution. In addition, we may lose existing clients who choose a competitor’s products and services. This could result in a temporary or permanent
revenue shortfall and adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

WeWW may experience difficulties with software development, industry standards, design, or marketing that could delay or prevent our development or
incorporation in our platform, introduction or implementation of new solutions, enhancements, additional features, or capabilities. If clients do not widely
purchase and adopt our solutions, we may not be able to realize a return on our investment. If we do not accurately anticipate customer demand or we are
unable to develop, license, or acquire new features and capabilities on a timely and cost-effective basis, or if such enhancements do not achieve market
acceptance, it could result in adverse publicity,yy loss of revenue or market acceptance or claims by clients or members brought against us, each of which
could have a material and adverse effect on our reputation, business, financial condition, and results of operations.

WeWW relyl on intett rnet infrff astrtt ucture, bandwdd idthtt providersrr , thtt ird-p- artytt compm utett r hardwdd are and softff wtt are, and othtt er thtt ird partit es foff r providing services tott
our clientstt and membersrr , and anyn faff ilure or intet rrupu tit on in thtt e services provided byb thtt ese thtt ird parties or thtt e inabilitytt tott access our platft off rm on thtt ird-
partytt opo erating sys syy tett ms could negatit velyl impm act our relationshipi s withtt clientstt and membersrr , advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctit ng our business, fiff nancial conditit on, and
resultstt of opo eratit ons.

Our ability to deliver our internet-based services depends on the development and maintenance of the infrastructure of the internet by third parties.
This includes maintenance of a reliable network backbone with the necessary speed, data capacity,yy bandwidth capacity,yy and security. Our services are
designed to operate without interruption. However, we may experience future interruptions and delays in services and availability from time to time. In the
event of a catastrophic event with respect to one or more of our systems, we may experience an extended period of system unavailability,yy which could
negatively impact our relationship with clients and members.

Our platform relies, in part, on broad interoperability with a range of operating systems and third-party applications. WeWW are dependent on the
accessibility of our platform across these third-party operating systems and applications that we do not control. Third-party services and products are
constantly evolving, and we may not be able to modify our platform to assure its compatibility with that of other third parties following development
changes. Should the interoperability of our platform across devices, operating systems and third-party applications decrease, or if members are unable to
easily and seamlessly access our application or information stored in our platform, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be
harmed.

WeWW also rely on software licensed from third parties in order to offer our services. These licenses are generally commercially available on varying
terms. However, it is possible that this software may not continue to be available on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Any loss of the right to use
any of this software could result in delays in the provisioning of our services until equivalent technology is either developed by us, or, if available, is
identified, obtained, and integrated. Furthermore, our use of additional or alternative third-party software would require us to enter into license agreements
with third parties, and integration of our software with new third-party software may require significant work and require substantial investment of our time
and resources. Also, any undetected errors or defects in third-party software could prevent the deployment or impair the functionality of our software, delay
new updates or enhancements to our solutions, result in a failure of our solutions, and injn ure our reputation.

Our solutit ons maya not opo eratett propo erlyl ,yy which could damage our repe utatt titt on, give risii e tott claims against us or our partntt ersrr , or divert apa ppp licatit on of our
resources frff om othtt er purpr oses, anyn of which could harm our business, fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo eratitt ons.

Software development is time-consuming, expensive, and complex, and may involve unforeseen difficulties. WeWW may encounter technical obstacles,
and it is possible that we discover problems or design defects that prevent our solutions and platform, including third-party solutions integrated into our
platform, from operating properly. Moreover, we may encounter incompatibilities or other technical issues resulting from the interaction of proprietary
and/or third-party solutions included in our platform. If our proprietary or third-party solutions do not function reliably,yy malfunction, or fail to achieve
client expectations in terms of performance, clients could assert liability claims against us or our partners or attempt to cancel their contracts with us. This
could damage our reputation, or the reputation of our partners, and impair our ability to attract or maintain clients.

The software underlying our platform is highly complex and may contain undetected errors or vulnerabilities, some of which may only be
discovered after the code has been used by our clients and members. Any real or perceived errors, failures,
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bugs, or other vulnerabilities discovered in our code could result in negative publicity and damage to our reputation, or the reputation of our partners, loss
of clients, loss of members, loss of or delay in market acceptance of our platform, loss of competitive position, loss of revenue, or liability for damages,
overpayments and/or underpayments, any of which could harm our enrollment rates. In such an event, we may be required or may choose to expend
additional resources to remediate the problem. These efforts could be costly,yy or ultimately unsuccessful. Even if we are successful at remediating issues, we
may experience damage to our reputation and brand. There can be no assurance that provisions typically included in our agreements with partners that
attempt to limit our exposure to claims would be enforceable or adequate or would otherwise protect us from liabilities or damages with respect to a
particular claim. Even if unsuccessful, a claim brought against us by any client or partners would likely be time-consuming and costly to defend and could
seriously damage our reputation and brand.

IfII our entet rpr risii e resource planning sys syy tett m or othtt er licensed softff wtt are sys syy tett ms prove ineffff eff ctive, we maya be unable tott timelyl or accuratett lyl prepe are
fiff nancial repe ortstt , make paya mentstt tott our supu ppp liersrr and empm loyo ees, or invoice and collect frff om our membersrr and clientstt .

Data integrity problems in our enterprise resource planning system or other licensed software systems or other issues may be discovered which, if
not corrected, could impact our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition, we may experience periodic or prolonged disruption of
our financial functions arising out of our use of such system, migrations, or improvements to our systems, integration of newly acquired businesses into our
system, other periodic upgrades or updates, or other external factors that are outside of our control. From time to time we implement additional software
systems, and we may also transition to new systems, which may be disruptive to our business if they do not work as planned or if we experience issues
relating to their implementation. Such disruptions could impact our ability to timely or accurately make payments to our suppliers and employees, and
could also inhibit our ability to invoice and collect from our users. If we encounter unforeseen problems with our enterprise resource planning system or
other related systems and infrastructure, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Securitytt breaches, loss of datatt , and othtt er disii rupu tit ons could compm romisii e sensitit ve infoff rmatitt on relatett d tott our business, partntt ersrr , clientstt , or membersrr , or
prevent us frff om accessing critit cal infoff rmatit on and expx ose us tott liabilitytt ,yy which could advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ct our business and our repe utatt tit on.

In the ordinary course of our business, we collect, store, use, and disclose sensitive data, including protected health information (“PHI”) and other
types of personal data or personally identifiable information (“PII”). WeWW also process and store, and use additional third parties to process and store,
sensitive information including intellectual property and other proprietary business information, including that of our partners, clients, and members. Our
user information is encrypted but not always de-identified. WeWW manage and maintain our platform and data utilizing a combination of on-site systems,
managed data center systems, and cloud-based computing center systems.

WeWW are highly dependent on information technology networks and systems, including the internet, to securely process, transmit, and store this critical
information. Security breaches of this infrastructure, including physical or electronic break-ins, computer viruses, attacks by hackers and similar breaches,
and employee or contractor error, negligence, or malfeasance, have created, and can in the future create system disruptions, shutdowns, or unauthorized
disclosure or modifications of confidential information, causing member health information to be accessed or acquired without authorization or to become
publicly available. WeWW utilize third-party service providers for important aspects of the collection, storage, and transmission of client, user, and patient
information, and other confidential and sensitive information, and therefore rely on third parties to manage functions that have material cybersecurity risks.
Because of the sensitivity of the PHI, other PII, and other confidential information, we and our service providers collect, store, transmit, and otherwise
process, the security of our technology platform and other aspects of our services, including those provided or facilitated by our third-party service
providers, are important to our operations and business strategy. WeWW take certain administrative, physical, and technological safeguards to address these
risks, such as by requiring outsourcing subcontractors who handle client, and member information for us to enter into agreements that contractually
obligate those subcontractors to use reasonable efforts to safeguard PHI, other PII, and other sensitive information. Measures taken to protect our systems,
those of our subcontractors, or the PHI, other PII, or other sensitive data we or our subcontractors process or maintain, may not adequately protect us from
the risks associated with the collection, storage, and transmission of such information. Although we take steps to help protect confidential and other
sensitive information from unauthorized access or disclosure, our information technology and infrastructure may be vulnerable to attacks by hackers or
viruses, failures, or breaches due to third-party action, employee negligence or error, malfeasance, or other disruptions.

A security breach or privacy violation that leads to disclosure or unauthorized use or modification of, or that prevents access to or otherwise impacts
the confidentiality,yy security,yy or integrity of, member information, including PHI or other PII, or other sensitive information we or our subcontractors
maintain or otherwise process, could harm our reputation, compel us to comply with breach notification laws, cause us to incur significant costs for
remediation, fines, penalties, notification to
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individuals and for measures intended to repair or replace systems or technology and to prevent future occurrences, potential increases in insurance
premiums, and require us to verify the accuracy of database contents, resulting in increased costs or loss of revenue. If we are unable to prevent such
security breaches or privacy violations or implement satisfactory remedial measures, or if it is perceived that we have been unable to do so, our operations
could be disrupted, we may be unable to provide access to our platform, and could suffer a loss of clients or members or a decrease in the use of our
platform, and we may suffer loss of reputation, adverse impacts on client, member, and investor confidence, financial loss, governmental investigations or
other actions, regulatory or contractual penalties, and other claims and liability. In addition, security breaches and other inappropriate access to, or
acquisition or processing of, information can be difficult to detect, and any delay in identifying such incidents or in providing any notification of such
incidents may lead to increased harm.

Any such breach or interruption of our systems or any of our third-party information technology partners has, and in the future could, compromise
our networks or data security processes and sensitive information could be inaccessible or could be accessed by unauthorized parties, publicly disclosed,
lost, or stolen. Any such interruption in access, improper access, disclosure or other loss of information could result in legal claims or proceedings, liability
under laws and regulations that protect the privacy of member information or other personal information, and regulatory penalties. Unauthorized access,
loss, or dissemination could also disrupt our operations, including our ability to perform our services, provide member assistance services, conduct
development activities, collect, process, and prepare company financial information, provide information about our current and future solutions, and engage
in other education and outreach efforts. Any such breach could also result in the compromise of our trade secrets and other proprietary information, which
could adversely affect our business and competitive position. While we maintain insurance covering certain security and privacy damages and claim
expenses, we may not carry insurance or maintain coverage sufficient to compensate for all liability and in any event, insurance coverage would not
address the reputational damage that could result from a security incident.

In addition, we are currently making, and expect to continue to make, substantial investments in our information technology systems, infrastructure
and personnel, in certain cases with the assistance of strategic partners and other third-party service providers (both domestic and abroad). These
investments involve replacing existing systems, some of which are older, legacy systems that are less flexible and efficient, with successor systems;
outsourcing certain technology and business processes to third-party service providers, including in India; making changes to existing systems, including
the migration of applications to the cloud; maintaining or enhancing legacy systems that are not currently being replaced; or designing or cost-effectively
acquiring new systems with new functionality. These efforts can result in significant potential risks, including failure of the systems to operate as designed,
potential loss or corruption of data, changes in security processes and internal controls, cost overruns, implementation delays or errors, disruption of
operations, and the potential inability to meet business and reporting requirements. Any system implementation and transition may result in operational
challenges, security failures, reputational harm, and increased costs that could adversely affect our business operations and results of operations.

Risks Related to Legal and Regulatory Matters

WeWW maya be subjb ect tott legal proceedings, litit gi atit on, regulatott ryr and othtt er disii ps utett s, and governmentatt l inquiries which are costltt yl tott defeff nd and could
advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ct our business, fiff nancial condititt on, and resultstt of opo eratit ons.

WeWW may be party to lawsuits, legal proceedings and other disputes in the normal course of business. These matters are often expensive and disruptive
to normal business operations. WeWW have faced, and may in the future face allegations, lawsuits, and regulatory inquiries, audits and investigations regarding
data privacy,yy medical liability,yy security,yy labor and employment, consumer protection and intellectual property infringement, misappropriation, or other
violation, including claims related to privacy,yy patents, publicity,yy trademarks, copyrights, contractual obligations and other rights. A portion of the
technologies we use incorporates open source software, and we may face claims claiming ownership of open source software or patents related to that
software, rights to our intellectual property or breach of open source license terms, including a demand to release material portions of our source code, or
otherwise seeking to enforce the terms of the applicable open source license. WeWW may also face allegations or litigation related to our acquisitions, securities
issuances, business practices or other contractual obligations, including public disclosures about our business.

Litigation and regulatory proceedings, and particularly the patent infringement and class action matters we could face, may be protracted and
expensive, and the results are difficult to predict. Certain of these matters may include speculative claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts of
damages and include claims for injn unctive relief. Additionally,yy our litigation costs could be significant and not covered by applicable indemnification
arrangements or otherwise exceed the limits of our insurance. Adverse outcomes with respect to litigation or any of these legal proceedings or other
disputes may result in significant settlement costs or judgments, penalties and fines, or require us to modify our solutions or require us to stop offering
certain features, all of which could negatively impact our enrollment rate and revenue growth. WeWW may also become subject to periodic audits, which would
likely increase our regulatory compliance costs and may require us to change our business
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practices, which could negatively impact our revenue growth. Managing legal proceedings, litigation and audits, even if we achieve favorable outcomes, is
time-consuming and diverts management’s attention from our business.

Changes in thtt e healthtt insurance market,tt ERISII ASS lawsww , statt tett insurance lawsww , or othtt er lawsww could harm our business.

The market for private health insurance in the United States is evolving and, as our customers include health plans/ employers that deploy our
offerings to members/employees and their families, our future financial performance will depend in part on the growth in this market. Changes and
developments in the health insurance system in the United States could reduce demand for our existing and future offerings and harm our business. In
addition, changes in laws or regulations regarding the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), changes in state insurance laws, or
other changes in laws could materially impact the self-insured employer healthcare and benefits markets, or the markets in which our other existing or
potential customers procure and provide benefits.

Evolving government regulatitt ons maya require increased coststt or advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ct our business, fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo erations.

In a regulatory climate that is uncertain, our operations may be subject to direct and indirect adoption, expansion, or reinterpretation of various laws
and regulations. Compliance with these future laws and regulations may require us to change our practices at an undeterminable and possibly significant
initial monetary and annual expense. These additional monetary expenditures may increase future overhead, which could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

There is also uncertainty regarding whether, when, and what other health or data privacy reform initiatives will be adopted and the impact of such
efforts on our business, as well as on the businesses of our partners and clients. The implications of such proposals may be unexpected, and such measures,
if implemented, could alter the landscape of our industry in ways that adversely affect our business. In particular, our medical records release of
information business is subject to changes in federal and state law regarding patients’ and their representatives’ access to medical records.

There could be laws and regulations applicable to our business that we have not identified or that, if changed, may be costly to us, and we cannot
predict all the ways in which implementation of such laws and regulations may affect us.

In the states in which we operate, we believe we are in compliance with all applicable material regulations, but, due to the uncertain regulatory
environment, certain states may determine that we are in violation of their laws and regulations. Similarly,yy we believe we are in compliance with all
applicable material regulations in each international jurisdiction that we operate. In the event that we must remedy such violations, we may be required to
modify our solutions in such states or other jurisdictions in a manner that undermines our solution’s attractiveness to partners, clients, or members, we may
become subject to fines or other penalties or, if we determine that the requirements to operate in compliance in such states or other jurisdictions are overly
burdensome, we may elect to terminate our operations in such states or other jurisdictions. In each case, our revenue may decline and our business,
financial condition, and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Additionally,yy the introduction of new solutions may require us to comply with additional, yet undetermined, laws and regulations. Compliance may
require obtaining appropriate state or jurisdictional medical board licenses or certificates, increasing our security measures, and expending additional
resources to monitor developments in applicable rules and ensure compliance. The failure to adequately comply with these future laws and regulations may
delay or possibly prevent our solutions from being offered to clients and members, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, and results of operations.

IfII we faff il tott compm lyl withtt healthtt care and othtt er governmentatt l regulatit ons, we could faff ce substatt ntit al penaltit es, liabilities, or repe utatt titt onal harm and our
business, fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo eratit ons could be advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d.dd

Our solutions, as well as our business activities, are or may in the future be subject to a complex set of regulations and rigorous enforcement,
including by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (the “FDA”), Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC”), U.S. Department of Justice, U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services (“HHS”), Office of the Inspector General and Office for Civil Rights, and numerous other federal and state governmental
authorities.

Our employees, consultants, and commercial partners may engage in misconduct or other improper activities, including non-compliance with
regulatory standards and requirements. Federal, state and foreign healthcare laws and regulations that may affect our ability to conduct business include,
without limitation:

• HIPAPP A, as amended by the Health Information TeTT chnology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, and its implementing regulations, which
impose certain requirements relating to the privacy,yy security,yy and transmission of PHI
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on certain healthcare providers, health plans, and healthcare clearinghouses, and their business associates that access or otherwise process
individually identifiable health information on their behalf; HIPAPP A also created criminal liability for knowingly and willfully falsifying or
concealing a material fact or making a materially false statement in connection with the delivery of or payment for healthcare benefits, items, or
services;

• state laws governing the privacy and security of personal information beyond health information, including state breach notification requirements,
which differ from each other in significant ways with respect to scope, application, and requirements and which often exceed the standards under
HIPAPP A, thus complicating compliance efforts;

• foreign laws governing the privacy and security of personal information, such as the GDPR;

• laws that regulate how businesses operate online, including measures relating to privacy and data security and how such information is
communicated to customers (i) under the FTC’s unfair and deceptive trade practice authority from the FTC Act and (ii) from state attorneys
general under state consumer protection laws and data privacy laws;

• state laws governing the corporate practice of medicine and other healthcare professions and related fee-splitting laws;

• potential regulation of certain of our solutions and research by the FDA; the federal Anti-Kickback Statute, which prohibits, among other things,
any person from knowingly and willfully offering, soliciting, receiving, or providing remuneration, directly or indirectly,yy in exchange for or to
induce either the referral of an individual for, or the purchase, order or recommendation of, any good or service for which payment may be made
under federal healthcare programs, such as the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services programs;

• the federal civil false claims and civil monetary penalties laws, including, without limitation, the federal False Claims Act, which prohibits, among
other things, individuals or entities from knowingly presenting, or causing to be presented, false claims, or knowingly using false statements, to
obtain payment from the federal government;

• federal criminal laws that prohibit executing a scheme to defraud any healthcare benefit program or making false statements relating to healthcare
matters; and

• state law equivalents of each of the above federal laws, such as anti-kickback and false claims laws which may apply to items or services
reimbursed by any third-party payor, including commercial insurers.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act (the “Affordable Care Act”)
among other things, amends the intent requirement of the federal Anti-Kickback Statute and criminal healthcare fraud statutes. A person or entity no longer
needs to have actual knowledge of this statute or specific intent to violate it. In addition, the Affordable Care Act provides that the government may assert
that a claim including items or services resulting from a violation of the federal Anti-Kickback Statute constitutes a false or fraudulent claim for purposes
of the federal False Claims Act.

Because of the breadth of these laws and the narrowness of available statutory and regulatory exemptions, it is possible that some of our activities
could be subject to challenge under one or more of such laws. Any action brought against us for violations of these laws or regulations, even if successfully
defended, could cause us to incur significant legal expenses and divert management’s attention from the operation of our business. WeWW may be subject to
private “qui tam” actions brought by individual whistleblowers on behalf of the federal or state governments, with potential liability under the federal False
Claims Act including mandatory treble damages and significant per-claim penalties.

Although we have adopted policies and procedures designed to comply with these laws and regulations and conduct internal reviews of our
compliance with these laws, our compliance is also subject to governmental review. The growth of our business and sales organization and any future
expansion outside of the United States may increase the potential of violating these laws or our internal policies and procedures. The risk of our being
found in violation of these or other laws and regulations is further increased by the fact that many have not been fully interpreted by the regulatory
authorities or the courts, and their provisions are open to a variety of interpretations. Any action brought against us for violation of these or other laws or
regulations, even if we successfully defend against it, could cause us to incur significant legal expenses and divert management’s attention from the
operation of our business. If our operations are found to be in violation of any of the federal, state, and foreign laws described above or any other current or
future fraud and abuse or other healthcare laws and regulations that apply to us, we may be subject to penalties, including significant criminal, civil, and
administrative penalties, damages and
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fines, disgorgement, additional reporting requirements and oversight if we become subject to a corporate integrity agreement or similar agreement to
resolve allegations of noncompliance with these laws, imprisonment for individuals and exclusion from participation in government programs, such as
Medicare and Medicaid, as well as contractual damages and reputational harm. Any of the foregoing consequences could seriously harm our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

InII dividualsll maya claim our outbtt ound engagement tett chniques, including digi itatt l outrtt each, are not compm liant withtt HIHH PII APP AAA or feff deral marketit ng lawsww .

Several federal laws are designed to protect consumers from various types and modes of marketing. HIPAPP A prohibits certain types of marketing to
individuals using PHI, except for certain treatment and healthcare operations, including communications made to describe a health-related product or
service (or payment for such product or service) that is provided by,yy or included in, a plan of benefits. Our solutions may be subject to regulatory review
and deemed in violation of HIPAPP A, which could subject us to fines or other penalties. In addition, the TeTT lephone Consumer Protection Act (the “TCPAPP ”) is
a federal statute that protects consumers from unwanted telephone calls and faxes. Since its inception, the TCPAPP ’AA s purview has extended to text messages
sent to consumers. WeWW may communicate with and perform outreach to members through multiple modes of communication, including email and secure
messaging. WeWW must ensure that our solutions that leverage secure messaging comply with TCPAPP regulations and agency guidance. While we strive to
adhere to strict policies and procedures, the Federal Communications Commission, as the agency that implements and enforces the TCPAPP , may disagree
with our interpretation of the TCPAPP and subject us to penalties and other consequences for noncompliance. Determination by a court or regulatory agency
that our solutions violate the TCPAPP could subject us to civil penalties, could invalidate all or portions of some of our client contracts, could require us to
change or terminate some portions of our offerings, could require us to refund portions of our fees, and could have an adverse effect on our business. Even
an unsuccessful challenge by consumers or regulatory authorities of our activities could result in adverse publicity and could require a costly response from
us. Other laws focus on unsolicited email, such as the Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003 (the “CAN-SPAPP M
Act”) which establishes requirements for the transmission of commercial email messages and specifies penalties for unsolicited commercial email
messages that follow a recipient’s opt-out request or deceive the receiving consumer.

In addition, some of our marketing activities require that we obtain permissions consistent with HIPAPP A and applicable state health information
privacy laws. If we are unable to secure such permissions, or if there is a future change in law,ww we may face limitations on the use of such information,
which may harm our business.

IfII our arrangementstt withtt our clientstt are foff und tott violatett statt tet lawsww prohibititt ng thtt e corpr oratet practit ce of medicine or feff e sps littit ng, our business,
fiff nancial conditit on, resultstt of opo erations, and our abilitytt tott opo eratett in thtt ose statt tet s could be advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d.dd

The laws of most states, including states in which our clients are located, prohibit us from practicing medicine, providing any treatment or diagnosis,
or otherwise exercising any control over the medical judgments or decisions of licensed physicians and from engaging in certain financial arrangements,
such as splitting professional fees with physicians. These laws and their interpretations vary from state to state and are enforced by state courts and
regulatory authorities, each with broad discretion. WeWW enter into contracts with our clients to deliver certain solutions in exchange for fees. Although we
comply,yy to the extent applicable, with state prohibitions on the corporate practice of medicine and fee splitting, state officials who administer these laws or
other third parties may successfully challenge our existing organization and contractual arrangements. If such a claim were successful, we could be subject
to civil and criminal penalties and could be required to restructure or terminate the applicable contractual arrangements. A determination that these
arrangements violate state statutes, or our inability to successfully restructure our relationships with our clients to comply with these statutes, could
eliminate clients or members located in certain states from the market for our solutions, which would have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

Our business could be advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d if certatt in indepe endent contrtt actott rsrr were tott be classififf ed as empm loyo ees.

Portions of our business are reliant on attracting independent contractors to provide their services, particularly for our home care and nurse on
demand platforms. In August 2021, we consummated the acquisition of CareLinx, a nationwide home care platform able to deliver intermittent, on-demand
personal care services. Our CareLinx network engages care providers as independent contractors in the United States to offer their home care services
through our platform. WeWW also provide a nurse on demand offering that allows nurses on our platform with the ability to source opportunities for shifts and
provide their services as independent contractors to health care providers. WeWW recently settled class action litigation in California regarding the
classification of certain nurses on our platform as independent contractors. While we believe our independent contractors are correctly classified because,
among other things, they can choose whether, when, and where to provide services on our platform, and are free to provide services on our competitors’
platforms, we may not be successful in defending, settling or resolving pending and future lawsuits relating to the classification of independent contractors.
If we are unsuccessful in defending these claims, or if we elect to change our approach to caregiver and/or nurse classification for any reason, we could
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incur additional expenses for compensating these workers, including expenses associated with the application of wage and hour laws (including minimum
wage, overtime, and meal and rest period requirements), employee benefits, social security contributions, taxes (direct and indirect), and potential penalties.
As part of the CareLinx acquisition, the sellers provided us with an indemnity with respect to any losses resulting from a misclassification of these workers.
If the CareLinx sellers were to fail to indemnify us for all or part of any losses we were to incur, we would be responsible for the monetary damages, which
could adversely affect our business and financial condition. WeWW do not believe that a probable loss will be incurred, nor do we anticipate a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations, stemming from the classification of CareLinx workers as independent contractors.

In addition, the success of our home care and nurse on demand platforms depends on our ability to maintain or increase our scale by attracting
participants to offer their services on our platform. If our platform were to become less appealing to users, including due to being required to become an
employee or otherwise, our growth prospects may suffer.

IfII thtt e indepe endent contrtt actott rsrr we utit lizii e tott provide home care services engage in, or are subjb ect tott , criminal,l violent,tt or inapa ppp ropo riatet conduct,tt our
repe utatt tit on, business, fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo erations could be advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d.dd

WeWW are not able to control or predict the actions of the independent contractors we utilize to provide home care services, such as those offered as a
part of our CareLinx offering. If these independent contractors, engage in criminal, violent or inappropriate conduct our reputation, business, financial
condition, and results of operations could be adversely affected. Although we administer certain qualification processes prior to utilizing these independent
contractors, including background checks, these qualification processes and background checks may not expose all potentially relevant information and are
limited in certain jurisdictions according to national and local laws, and individuals may fail to disclose information that could be relevant to a
determination of eligibility.

In addition, if these independent contractors are subject to criminal, violent or inappropriate conduct while performing services on our platforms, we
may be subject to liability,yy and our ability to recruit and maintain independent contractors to perform in-home services on our platform may be adversely
impacted.

Failure tott compm lyl withtt antit -briberyr ,yy antit -corrupu tit on, and anti-moneye laundering lawsww could subjb ect us tott penaltit es and othtt er advdd ersrr e consequences.

WeWW are subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices (the “FCPAPP ”) and other anti-corruption, anti-bribery,yy and anti-money laundering laws in the
jurisdictions in which we do business, both domestic and abroad. These laws generally prohibit us and our employees from improperly influencing
government officials or commercial parties in order to obtain or retain business, direct business to any person, or gain any improper advantage. The FCPAPP
and similar applicable anti-bribery and anti-corruption laws also prohibit our third-party business partners, representatives, and agents from engaging in
corruption and bribery. WeWW and our third-party business partners, representatives, and agents may have direct or indirect interactions with officials and
employees of government agencies or state-owned or affiliated entities. WeWW may be held liable for the corrupt or other illegal activities of these third-party
business partners and intermediaries, our employees, representatives, contractors, partners, and agents, even if we do not explicitly authorize such activities.
These laws also require that we keep accurate books and records and maintain internal controls and compliance procedures designed to prevent any such
actions. While we have policies and procedures to address compliance with such laws, we cannot assure you that our employees and agents will not take
actions in violation of our policies or applicable law,ww for which we may be ultimately held responsible. Our exposure for violating these laws may increase
as we expand internationally and as we commence sales and operations in additional foreign jurisdictions. Any violation of the FCPAPP or other applicable
anti-bribery,yy anti-corruption laws, and anti-money laundering laws could result in whistleblower complaints, adverse media coverage, investigations,
imposition of significant legal fees, severe criminal or civil sanctions or suspension or debarment from U.S. government contracts, substantial diversion of
management’s attention, a drop in stock price or overall adverse consequences to our business, all of which may have an adverse effect on our reputation,
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our use, disii closure, and othtt er processing of PIPP III and PHPP IHH isii subjb ect tott HIHH PII APP AAA and othtt er feff deral,l statt tett , and foff reigi n privacyc and securitytt regulatit ons,
and our faff ilure tott compm lyl withtt thtt ose regulatit ons or tott adequatett lyl secure thtt e infoff rmatitt on we hold could result in sigi nififf cant liabilitytt or repe utatt tional
harm and,dd in turn, have a matett rial advdd ersrr e effff eff ct on our client base, member base and revenue.

Numerous state and federal laws and regulations govern the collection, dissemination, use, privacy,yy confidentiality,yy security,yy availability,yy integrity,yy
and other processing of PHI and PII. These laws and regulations include HIPAPP A, which establishes a set of national privacy and security standards for the
protection of PHI by health plans, healthcare clearinghouses and certain healthcare providers, referred to as covered entities, and the business associates
with whom such covered entities contract for services. WeWW are generally considered a business associate under HIPAPP A but in limited circumstances will
also act as a covered entity. HIPAPP A requires covered entities and business associates, such as us, to develop and maintain policies and

31



procedures with respect to PHI that is used or disclosed, including the adoption of administrative, physical, and technical safeguards to protect such
information. As an example of the evolving HIPAPP A landscape, in December 2022 the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services issued guidance
indicating certain data collected on authenticated websites and apps — and even some public-facing, unauthenticated websites — offered by HIPAPP A-
regulated entities may be deemed PHI, and warning against the use of common third-party tracking technologies such as pixels and cookies on such sites;
as noted, Sharecare often operates as a HIPAPP A-regulated entity that offers various websites and apps that may use tracking technologies such as pixels and
cookies.

Some of our business activities require that we or our partners obtain permissions consistent with HIPAPP A to provide certain marketing and data
aggregation services as well as those activities that require the creation and use of de-identified information. If we or our partners are unable to secure these
rights, or if there is a future change in law,ww we may face limitations on the use of PHI and our ability to provide marketing services and use de-identified
information, which could harm our business or subject us to potential government actions or penalties. Also, there are ongoing public policy discussions
regarding whether the standards for de-identified, anonymous or pseudonymized health information are sufficient, and the risk of re-identification
sufficiently small, to adequately protect patient privacy. These discussions may lead to further restrictions on the use of such information or create
additional regulatory burdens. There can be no assurance that these initiatives or future initiatives will not adversely affect our ability to access and use data
or to develop or market current or future services.

In addition, we could be subject to periodic audits for compliance with the HIPAPP A Privacy and Security Standards by HHS and our clients.
Currently,yy penalties for violations of HIPAPP A and its implementing regulations start at $127 per violation and are not to exceed $1.91 million in a calendar
year. However, a single breach incident can result in violations of multiple standards. HIPAPP A also authorizes state attorneys general to file suit on behalf of
their residents. Courts may award damages, costs and attorneys’ fees related to violations of HIPAPP A in such cases. While HIPAPP A does not create a private
right of action allowing individuals to sue us in civil court for violations of HIPAPP A, its standards have been used as the basis for duty of care in state civil
suits such as those for negligence or recklessness in the misuse or breach of PHI.

In addition to HIPAPP A, numerous other federal, state, and foreign laws and regulations protect the confidentiality,yy privacy,yy availability,yy integrity,yy and
security of PHI and other types of PII. For example, for the limited products of ours which are offered in Europe, we have obligations under GDPR and
related European Union (the “EU”) privacy laws and regulations related to the use, transfer, and protection of employee-related data. These laws and
regulations in many cases may be more restrictive than, and may not be preempted by,yy HIPAPP A and its implementing rules. These laws and regulations may
also require additional compliance obligations relating to the transfer of data between Sharecare and its subsidiaries. There is a risk that regulatory
authorities may determine that we have not implemented our compliance obligations in a timely or appropriate manner. Penalties for noncompliance under
GDPR and related EU privacy laws may include significant monetary fines, up to a maximum of €20 million, or four percent of worldwide turnover. In
addition, as we pursue business opportunities internationally,yy newly adopted and emerging regulations in foreign jurisdictions may require different
infrastructure development and security measures that are not accounted for today. These laws and regulations are often uncertain, unclear, and subject to
changed or differing interpretations, and we expect new laws, rules and regulations regarding privacy,yy data protection, and information security to be
proposed and enacted in the future.

Such new regulations and legislative actions (or changes in interpretation of existing laws or regulations regarding data privacy and security together
with applicable industry standards) may increase our costs of doing business. In this regard, we expect that there will continue to be new laws, regulations,
and industry standards relating to privacy and data protection in the United States, the EU and other jurisdictions, such as the California Consumer Privacy
Act of 2018 (the “CCPAPP ”) which has been characterized as the first “GDPR-like” privacy statute to be enacted in the United States, and we cannot
determine how broadly or narrowly regulators will interpret and enforce such new laws, regulations, and standards and the corresponding impact it may
have on our business. Although we are modifying our data collection, use and processing practices and policies in an effort to comply with the law,ww there is
a risk that the California Attorney General does not find our practices or policies to be compliant with the CCPAPP , which would potentially subject us to
civil penalties or an inability to use information collected from California consumers. In addition, such laws and regulations could restrict our ability to
store and process personal data (in particular, our ability to use certain data for purposes such as risk or fraud avoidance, marketing, or advertising due to
the expansive definition of personal information under CCPAPP ), our ability to control our costs by using certain vendors or service providers, or impact our
ability to offer certain services in certain jurisdictions. Further, the CCPAPP requires covered companies to provide new disclosures to California consumers,
provide such consumers new ways to opt-out of certain sales of personal information (which may not fall under the CCPAPP HIPAPP A exemption), and allow
for a new cause of action for data breaches. Additionally,yy such laws and regulations are often inconsistent and may be subject to amendment or re-
interpretation, which may cause us to incur significant costs and expend significant effort to ensure compliance. For example, the CCPAPP has already been
substantially amended by the California Privacy Rights Act of 2020, which came into effect in January 1, 2023. Given that requirements may be
inconsistent and evolving, our response to these requirements may not meet the expectations of our customers and/or users, which could thereby reduce the
demand for our services. Of note, the decision of the U.S. Supreme
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Court in Dobbs v.vv JaJJ ckskk on WoWW men’s’’ HeHH alth Orgrr anization has caused increased public scrutiny of data privacy practices with respect to women’s health
information, with what some believe is an increased threat of law enforcement requests for such information. While we have not received any law
enforcement requests for such information and believe our privacy,yy security,yy and compliance practices adequately protect such information, there is inherent
legal and reputational risk in the fact that we collect and maintain certain women’s health information. Additionally,yy some clients may respond to these
evolving laws and regulations by asking us to make certain privacy or data-related contractual commitments that we are unable or unwilling to make. This
could lead to the loss of current or prospective clients or other business relationships. Finally,yy as a result of the Dobbs v.vv JaJJ ckskk on WoWW men’s’’ HeHH alth
Orgrr anization decision, states or the federal government may pass additional privacy laws that regulate the collection, use and disclosure of women’s health
information, and we may incur additional costs to ensure that our privacy,yy security,yy and compliance practices comply with applicable and evolving legal
requirements

This complex, dynamic legal landscape regarding privacy,yy data protection, and information security creates significant compliance issues for us and
our clients and potentially exposes us to additional expense, adverse publicity and liability. Although we take steps to help protect confidential and other
sensitive information from unauthorized access or disclosure, our information technology and infrastructure has been subject to, and may be vulnerable in
the future to, attacks by hackers or viruses, failures, or breaches due to third-party action, employee negligence or error, malfeasance, or other incidents or
disruptions. Furthermore, while we have implemented data privacy and security measures in an effort to comply with applicable laws and regulations
relating to privacy and data protection, some PHI and other PII or confidential information is transmitted to us by third parties or by us to third parties, who
may not implement adequate security and privacy measures, and it is possible that laws, rules and regulations relating to privacy,yy data protection, or
information security may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent with our practices or those of third parties who transmit PHI and other
PII or confidential information to us. If we or these third parties are found to have violated such laws, rules or regulations, it could result in government-
imposed fines, orders requiring that we or these third parties change our or their practices, or criminal charges, which could adversely affect our business.

WeWW outsource important aspects of the storage and transmission of customer and member information, and thus, rely on third parties to manage
functions that have material cyber-security risks. A breach of privacy or security of such information by a subcontractor may result in an enforcement
action against us. WeWW attempt to address these risks by requiring outsourcing subcontractors who handle such information to sign business associate
agreements contractually requiring those subcontractors to adequately safeguard such information. However, we cannot be assured that these contractual
measures and other safeguards will adequately protect us from the risks associated with the storage and transmission of such information on our behalf by
our subcontractors.

Complying with these various laws and regulations could cause us to incur substantial costs or require us to change our business practices, systems
and compliance procedures in a manner adverse to our business. WeWW also publish statements to our clients and members that describe how we handle and
protect PHI (for example, through our privacy policies connected with our website, mobile applications and other digital tools). If federal or state
regulatory authorities, such as the FTC or state attorneys general, or private litigants consider any portion of these statements to be untrue, we may be
subject to claims of deceptive practices, which could lead to significant liabilities and consequences, including costs of responding to investigations,
defending against litigation, settling claims, and complying with regulatory or court orders. Any of the foregoing consequences could seriously harm our
business and our financial results. Furthermore, the costs of compliance with, and other burdens imposed by,yy the laws, regulations and policies that are
applicable to the businesses of our clients may limit the use and adoption of, and reduce the overall demand for, our existing and future solutions. Any of
the foregoing consequences could harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Anyn restrtt ictit ons on our abilitytt tott obtatt in or use datatt could harm our business.

Our business depends, in part, on data provided to us by,yy among other sources, health plans, benefits administrators, data warehouses, electronic data
interchange transaction data providers, and our trusted suppliers. Any errors or defects in any third-party data or other technology could result in errors in
our existing and future solutions that could harm our business and damage our reputation and cause losses in revenue, and we could be required to spend
significant amounts of additional resources to fix any problems. In addition, certain of our solutions depend on maintaining our data and analytics
technology platform, which is populated with data provided by third parties. While our existing agreements with these data providers have multiple-year
terms, these agreements could be terminated and/or these providers could become our competitors in the future. Any loss of the right to use of data
provided by any health plan providers, benefits administrators, or other entities that provide us data, could result in delays in producing or delivering our
solutions until equivalent data, other technology,yy or intellectual property is identified and integrated, which delays could harm our business. In this situation
we would be required to either redesign our solutions to function with technology,yy data, or intellectual property available from other parties or to develop
these components ourselves, which would result in increased costs. Furthermore, we might be forced to limit the features available in our existing or future
solutions. If we fail to maintain or renegotiate any of these technology or intellectual property licenses, we

33



could face significant delays and diversion of resources in attempting to develop similar or replacement solutions or to license and integrate a functional
equivalent of the technology or intellectual property. The occurrence of any of these events may harm our business.

Failure tott protett ct or enfoff rce our intett llectual propo ertytt rigi htstt could harm our business, fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo eratitt ons.

Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain, maintain, protect, and enforce our intellectual property and other proprietary rights (including
intellectual property and other proprietary rights acquired through acquisitions). WeWW rely upon a combination of trademark, patents, copyrights, and trade
secret laws, as well as license agreements, intellectual property assignment agreements, confidentiality agreements and other similar agreements, to protect
our intellectual property and other proprietary rights. These laws, procedures and restrictions provide only limited protection and any of our intellectual
property rights may be challenged, invalidated, circumvented, infringed, misappropriated or otherwise violated. There can also be no assurances that third
parties will not also independently develop or offer products, services and/or technology that is similar to, or competitive with, our technology,yy products
and services. Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property,yy unauthorized parties may also attempt to disclose, copy,yy use, duplicate or obtain and
use our technology including to develop applications with the same functionality as our solutions, and policing unauthorized use of our technology and
intellectual property rights is difficult, costly and may not be effective. In order to adequately protect our intellectual property and other proprietary rights,
we may be required to devote significant time and resources to defending against claims or protecting and enforcing our own rights. Furthermore, attempts
to enforce our intellectual property rights against third parties could also provoke these third parties to assert their own intellectual property or other rights
against us, or result in a holding that invalidates or narrows the scope of our rights, in whole or in part. These actions as well as any failure to protect our
intellectual property and other proprietary rights could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Risks Related to Financing and TaTT x

WeWW have a hisii tott ryr of net losses, we antit cipi atett increasing expx enses in thtt e fuff ture, and we maya not be able tott achieve or maintatt in profiff tatt bilitytt .yy

WeWW are in a cumulative loss position, and we have incurred net losses attributable to Sharecare of $60.0 million, $85.0 million, and $118.7 million,
for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2021, and 2022, respectively. WeWW expect our costs will increase substantially in the foreseeable future and our
losses will continue as we expect to invest significant additional funds towards growing our business and operating as a public company and as we continue
to invest in increasing our client base, expanding our marketing channels and operations, hiring additional employees, developing new solutions, and
otherwise incorporating new solutions into our platform through acquisition or partnership. These efforts may prove more expensive than we currently
anticipate, and we may not succeed in increasing our revenue sufficiently to offset these higher expenses. Historically,yy we have financed our operations
principally from the sale of our equity,yy revenue from sales of our solutions, and the incurrence of indebtedness. Despite having achieved Adjd usted EBITDA
profitability in 2017, we may be unable to achieve positive cash flow from operations or profitability in any given period. Our failure to achieve or
maintain profitability could negatively impact the value of our common stock.

Our abilitytt tott use our net opo eratit ng loss carryr fyy off rwrr ardsdd and certatt in othtt er tatt x attrtt ibutet s maya be limitett d.dd

As of December 31, 2022, we had net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards for federal and state income tax purposes of approximately $371.8
million and $325.4 million, respectively,yy which may be available to offset future taxable income. The state and pre-2018 federal net operating loss
carryforwards will start to expire in 2023 (through 2037), while the foreign and post-2017 federal net operating loss carryforwards are indefinite.

Under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendment (the “Code”), a corporation that undergoes an “ownership change” (as
defined under Section 382 of the Code and applicable Treasury Regulations) may be subject to limitations on its ability to utilize its pre-change NOLs to
offset its future taxable income. In general, an ownership change occurs if there is a cumulative change in the corporation’s equity ownership by certain
stockholders that exceeds fifty percentage points over a rolling three-year period. A corporation that experiences an ownership change generally will be
subject to an annual limitation on its utilization of pre-ownership change NOLs. The realization of the Company’s existing net operating losses, under
Section 382, was analyzed to determine if any of the losses would be limited under Section 382.

The Company has evaluated the positive and negative evidence bearing upon its ability to realize the deferred tax assets. Management has
considered the Company’s history of cumulative net losses incurred since inception and has concluded that it is more likely than not that the Company will
not realize the benefits of the deferred tax assets. Accordingly,yy a valuation allowance has been established against the net deferred tax assets. Therefore, no
federal tax benefit has been recorded for the net operating losses and the researched tax credits during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020.
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Furthermore, our ability to utilize NOLs of companies that we have acquired or may acquire in the future may be subject to limitations. There is also
a risk that due to changes in law,ww such as suspensions on the use of NOLs or other unforeseen reasons, our existing NOLs could expire or otherwise be
unavailable to reduce future income tax liabilities, including for state income tax purposes. For these reasons, we may not be able to utilize a material
portion of our NOLs, even if we attain profitability,yy which could potentially result in increased future tax liability to us and could adversely affect our
business, financial condition, and results of operations.

WeWW maya require additit onal capa itatt l tott supu ppp ort business growthtt , and thtt isii capa itatt l migi ht not be available on accepe tatt ble tet rms, if at all.

WeWW intend to continue to make investments to support our business growth and may require additional funds to respond to business challenges,
including the need to develop new solutions, or enhance our existing solutions, enhance our operating infrastructure, and acquire complementary
businesses and technologies. In order to achieve these objectives, we may need to engage in equity or debt financings to secure additional funds. If we raise
additional funds through further issuances of equity or convertible debt securities, our existing stockholders could suffer dilution, and any new equity
securities we issue could have rights, preferences, and privileges superior to those of holders of our common stock. Any debt financing secured by us in the
future could involve restrictive covenants relating to our capital raising activities and other financial and operational matters. Future indebtedness may also
utilize the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and may be adversely affected by changes in the method of determining or the replacement of
LIBOR with an alternative reference rate for variable rate loans, derivative contracts and other financial assets and liabilities. VaVV rious financial instruments
indexed to LIBOR could experience different outcomes based on their contractual terms, ability to amend those terms, market or product type, legal or
regulatory jurisdiction, and other factors. In addition, we may not be able to obtain additional financing on terms favorable to us, if at all. If we are unable
to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms satisfactory to us, when we require it, our ability to continue to support our business growth and to
respond to business challenges could be significantly limited.

Our debt agreementstt contatt in certatt in restrtt ictitt ons thtt at maya limit our abilitytt tott opo eratett our business.

The terms of our existing debt agreements and related collateral documents contain, and any future indebtedness would likely contain, a number of
restrictive covenants that impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us, including restrictions on our ability,yy and the ability of our
subsidiaries, to take actions that may be in our best interests, including, among others, disposing of assets, entering into change of control transactions,
mergers or acquisitions, incurring additional indebtedness, granting liens on our assets, declaring and paying dividends, and agreeing to do any of the
foregoing. Our ability to meet financial covenants can be affected by events beyond our control, and we may not be able to continue to meet this covenant.
A breach of any of these covenants or the occurrence of other events (including a material adverse effect or the inability to generate cash to service our
obligations under our debt agreements) specified in the debt agreements and/or the related collateral documents could result in an event of default under the
same. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, our lenders could elect to declare all amounts outstanding, if any,yy to be immediately due and payable and
terminate all commitments to extend further credit. If we were unable to repay those amounts, lenders could proceed against the collateral, if any,yy granted to
them to secure such indebtedness. WeWW have pledged substantially all of our respective assets (other than intellectual property) as collateral under the loan
documents. If lenders accelerate the repayment of borrowings, if any,yy we may not have sufficient funds to repay our existing debt.

ThTT e apa ppp licabilitytt of sales, use, and othtt er tatt x lawsww or regulations on our business isii uncertatt in. Advdd ersrr e tatt x lawsww or regulatitt ons could be enactett d or
exisii tit ng lawsww could be apa ppp lied tott us or our clientstt or membersrr , which could subjb ect us tott additional tatt x liabilitytt and relatett d intett rest and penalties,
increase thtt e coststt of our solutit ons, and advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ct our business, fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of opo eratit ons.

The application of federal, state, local, and international tax laws to services provided electronically is evolving. New income, sales, use, value-
added or other tax laws, statutes, rules, regulations, or ordinances could be enacted at any time (possibly with retroactive effect), and could be applied
solely or disproportionately to services provided over the internet or could otherwise materially affect our business, financial position, and results of
operations.

In addition, state, local and foreign tax jurisdictions have differing rules and regulations governing sales, use, value-added and other taxes, and these
rules and regulations can be complex and are subject to varying interpretations that may change over time. Existing tax laws, statutes, rules, regulations, or
ordinances could be interpreted, changed, modified, or applied adversely to us (possibly with retroactive effect). WeWW have not collected sales taxes in all
jurisdictions in which we have made sales to our clients, and we believe we may have exposure for potential sales tax liability,yy including interest and
penalties, for which we have established a reserve in our financial statements, and any sales tax exposure may be material to our operating results.
Although our contracts typically provide that our clients must pay all applicable sales and similar taxes, our clients may be reluctant to pay back taxes and
associated interest or penalties, or we may determine that it would not be commercially feasible to seek reimbursement. In addition, we or our clients could
be required to pay additional tax amounts on both future as
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well as prior sales, and possibly fines or penalties and interest for past due taxes. If we are required to collect and pay back taxes and associated interest and
penalties, and if the amount we are required to collect and pay exceeds our estimates and reserves, or if we are unsuccessful in collecting such amounts
from our clients, we could incur potentially substantial unplanned expenses, thereby adversely impacting our operating results and cash flows. Imposition
of such taxes on our solutions going forward or collection of sales tax from our clients in respect of prior sales could also adversely affect our sales activity
and have a negative impact on our operating results and cash flows.

One or more states may seek to impose incremental or new sales, use, value added or other tax collection obligations on us, including for past sales
by us or our partners. A successful assertion by a state, country or other jurisdiction that we should have been or should be collecting additional sales, use,
value added or other taxes on our solutions could, among other things, result in substantial tax liabilities for past sales, create significant administrative
burdens for us, discourage users from utilizing our solutions or otherwise harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Certatt in U.UU S. statt tett tatt x authtt oritit es maya assert thtt at we have a statt tett nexus and seek tott impm ose statt tet and local income tatt xes which could harm our resultstt of
opo eratit ons.

WeWW are qualified to operate in, and file income tax returns in multiple states. There is a risk that certain state tax authorities where we do not
currently file a state income tax return could assert that we are liable for state and local income taxes based upon income or gross receipts allocable to such
states. States are becoming increasingly aggressive in asserting a nexus for state income tax purposes. WeWW could be subject to state and local taxation,
including penalties and interest attributable to prior periods, if a state tax authority successfully asserts that our activities give rise to a nexus. Such tax
assessments, penalties and interest may adversely impact our results of operations.

Risks Related to Being a Public Company

WeWW faff ce higi h coststt and demandsdd upu on management as a result of compm lyl ing withtt thtt e lawsww and regulatitt ons affff eff ctitt ng public compm anies, which could
advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ct our business, fiff nancial condititt on, and resultstt of opo eratit ons.

As a public company,yy we are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the listing standards of Nasdaq and other applicable
securities rules and regulations. The requirements of these rules and regulations have increased, and we expect will continue to increase, our legal,
accounting, and financial compliance costs, make some activities more difficult, time-consuming and costly,yy and place significant strain on our personnel,
systems, and resources. For example, the Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we timely file annual, quarterly,yy and current reports with respect
to our business and results of operations. As a result of the complexity involved in complying with the rules and regulations applicable to public
companies, our management’s attention may be diverted from other business concerns, which could harm our business, financial condition, and results of
operations, although we have already hired additional employees to assist us in complying with these requirements, we may need to hire more employees in
the future or engage outside consultants, which will increase our operating expenses.

If we fail to satisfy the continued listing requirements of Nasdaq, such as minimum financial and other continued listing requirements and standards,
including those regarding minimum stockholders’ equity,yy minimum share price, and certain corporate governance requirements, Nasdaq may take steps to
delist our common stock. Such a delisting would likely have a negative effect on the price of our common stock and would impair your ability to sell or
purchase our common stock when you wish to do so. In the event of a delisting, we would expect to take actions to restore our compliance with Nasdaq’s
listing requirements, but we can provide no assurance that any such action taken by us would allow our common stock to become listed again, stabilize the
market price or improve the liquidity of our common stock, prevent our common stock from dropping below the Nasdaq minimum bid price requirement,
or prevent future non-compliance with Nasdaq’s listing requirements.

In addition, changing laws, regulations, and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure are creating uncertainty for public
companies, increasing legal and financial compliance costs, and making some activities more time-consuming. These laws, regulations and standards are
subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their lack of specificity,yy and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new
guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies. This could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs
necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. WeWW intend to continue investing substantial resources to comply with evolving
laws, regulations, and standards, and this investment may result in increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management’s time
and attention from business operations to compliance activities. If our efforts to comply with new laws, regulations, and standards differ from the activities
intended by regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities related to their application and practice, regulatory authorities may initiate legal proceedings
against us and our business may be harmed.
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WeWW also expect that these new rules and regulations will make it more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, and we may
be required to accept reduced coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain coverage. These factors could also make it more difficult for us to
attract and retain qualified members of our board of directors (the “Sharecare Board”), particularly to serve on our audit committee and compensation and
human capital committee, and qualified executive officers.

As a result of disclosure of information in filings required of a public company,yy our business and financial condition is more visible than that of a
private company,yy which may result in an increased risk of threatened or actual litigation, including by competitors and other third parties. If such claims are
successful, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be harmed, and even if the claims do not result in litigation or are resolved in
our favor, these claims, and the time and resources necessary to resolve them, could divert the resources of our management and harm our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.

WeWW are an “emergr ing growthtt compm anyn ,yy ” and our election tott compm lyl withtt thtt e reduced disii closure requirementstt as a public compm anyn maya make our
common stott ck less attrtt actitt ve tott investott rsrr .

For so long as we remain an “emerging growth company” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (“JOBS Act”, we may take
advantage of certain exemptions from various requirements that are applicable to public companies that are not “emerging growth companies,” including
not being required to comply with the independent auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure
obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, being required to provide fewer years of audited financial
statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a non-binding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any
golden parachute payments not previously approved.

WeWW may lose our emerging growth company status and become subject to the SEC’s internal control over financial reporting management and
auditor attestation requirements. If we are unable to certify the effectiveness of our internal controls, or if our internal controls have a material weakness,
we could be subject to regulatory scrutiny and a loss of confidence by stockholders, which could harm our business and adversely affect the market price of
our common stock. WeWW will cease to be an “emerging growth company” upon the earliest to occur of: (i) the last day of the fiscal year in which we have
more than $1.235 billion in annual revenue; (ii) the date we qualify as a large accelerated filer, with at least $700 million of equity securities held by non-
affiliates; (iii) the date on which we have, in any three-year period, issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt securities; and (iv) December 31,
2025 (the last day of the fiscal year following the fifth anniversary of becoming a public company).

As an emerging growth company,yy we may choose to take advantage of some but not all of these reduced reporting burdens. Accordingly,yy the
information we provide to our stockholders may be different than the information you receive from other public companies in which you hold stock. In
addition, the JOBS Act also provides that an “emerging growth company” can take advantage of an extended transition period for complying with new or
revised accounting standards. WeWW have elected to take advantage of this extended transition period under the JOBS Act. As a result, our operating results
and financial statements may not be comparable to the operating results and financial statements of other companies who have adopted the new or revised
accounting standards. It is possible that some investors will find our common stock less attractive as a result, which may result in a less active trading
market for our common stock and higher volatility in our stock price.

Investors may find our common stock less attractive because we may rely on these exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less
attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our common stock, and our stock price may be more volatile and may decline.

IfII we faff il tott maintatt in an effff eff ctit ve sys syy tett m of disii closure contrtt olsll and intet rnal contrtt ol over fiff nancial repe orting, including faff iling tott remediatett an
identit fiff ed matet rial weakness in our intett rnal contrtt olsll over fiff nancial repe orting, thtt e price of our common stott ck maya be advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d,dd and our abilitytt
tott produce tit melyl and accuratett fiff nancial statt tet mentstt or compm lyl withtt apa ppp licable regulatit ons could be impm aired.dd

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over
financial reporting. In connection with the audit of our financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, we identified a material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. Specifically,yy the Company did not design and maintain effective controls related to the review of a
unique contract for a new product offering to a new customer. This deficiency resulted in a pre-filing adjd ustment related to the timing of revenue for that
contract in the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021, and could have resulted in a material misstatement of
the annual or interim consolidated financial statements not being prevented or detected. Accordingly,yy the Company’s management determined that this
control deficiency constituted a material weakness and implemented a remediation plan. As a result of the remediation activities and controls in place as of
December 31, 2022, we have remediated
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this material weakness. However, completion of remediation does not provide assurance that our remediated controls will continue to operate properly or
that our financial statements will be free from error. In addition, prior to the Business Combination, FCAC identified a material weakness in its internal
controls over financial reporting relating to the accounting for a significant and unusual transaction related to the warrants it issued in connection with its
initial public offering September 2020, which we believe has been remediated.

WeWW are continuing to develop and refine our disclosure controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we will file with the SEC is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules
and forms and that information required to be disclosed in reports under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our principal executive and
financial officers. WeWW are also continuing to improve our internal control over financial reporting, including remediation of the described material
weakness, which includes hiring additional accounting and financial personnel to implement such processes and controls. In order to maintain and improve
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting, we have expended, and anticipate that we will
continue to expend, significant resources, including accounting-related costs and significant management oversight. If any of these new or improved
controls and systems do not perform as expected, we may not be able to remediate the identified material weakness or may experience additional material
weaknesses in our controls.

Our current controls and any new controls that we develop may be inadequate because of changes in conditions in our business. Further, weaknesses
in our disclosure controls and internal control over financial reporting may be discovered in the future. Any failure to remediate our current material
weakness or to develop or maintain effective controls or any difficulties encountered in their implementation or improvement could harm our results of
operations or cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations and may result in a restatement of our financial statements for prior periods. Any failure to
implement and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting and complete required remediations also could adversely affect the results of
periodic management evaluations and annual independent registered public accounting firm attestation reports regarding the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting that we will eventually be required to include in our periodic reports that will be filed with the SEC. Ineffective disclosure
controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial and other
information, which would likely have a negative effect on the trading price of our common stock. In addition, if we are unable to continue to meet these
requirements, we may not be able to remain listed on Nasdaq.

Rules adopted by the SEC pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act require an annual assessment of internal control over financial
reporting, and for certain issuers an attestation of this assessment by the issuer’s independent registered public accounting firm. The standards that must be
met for management to assess the internal control over financial reporting as effective are evolving and complex, and require significant documentation,
testing, and possible remediation to meet the detailed standards. WeWW expect to incur significant expenses and to devote resources to Section 404 compliance
on an ongoing basis. It is difficult for us to predict how long it will take or costly it will be to complete the assessment of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting for each year and to remediate any deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting. As a result, we may not be
able to complete the assessment and remediation process on a timely basis. In addition, although attestation requirements by our independent registered
public accounting firm are not presently applicable to us we could become subject to these requirements in the future and we may encounter problems or
delays in completing the implementation of any resulting changes to internal control over financial reporting. In the event that our Chief Executive Officer
or Chief Financial Officer determine that our internal control over financial reporting is not effective as defined under Section 404, we cannot predict how
regulators will react or how the market prices of our shares will be affected; however, we believe that there is a risk that investor confidence and share
value may be negatively affected.

Our independent registered public accounting firm is not required to formally attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting until after we are no longer an “emerging growth company” as defined in the JOBS Act. At such time, our independent registered public
accounting firm may issue a report that is adverse in the event it is not satisfied with the level at which our internal control over financial reporting is
documented, designed or operating. Any failure to remediate the identified material weakness and maintain effective disclosure controls and internal
control over financial reporting could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations and could cause a decline in the price of our common
stock.

Our business, fiff nancial condition, and resultstt of opo eratit ons maya flff uctuatet on a quartet rlyl and annual basisii , which maya result in a decline in our stott ck
price if such flff uctuations result in a faff ilure tott meet thtt e expx ectatt tit ons of securities analyl syy tstt or investott rsrr .

Our operating results have in the past and could in the future vary significantly from quarter-to-quarter and year-to-year and may fail to match our
past performance, our projections or the expectations of securities analysts because of a variety of factors, many of which are outside of our control and, as
a result, should not be relied upon as an indicator of future
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performance. As a result, we may not be able to accurately forecast our operating results and growth rate. Any of these events could cause the market price
of our common stock to fluctuate. Factors that may contribute to the variability of our operating results include, but are not limited to: our ability to attract
new clients and partners, retain existing clients and partners and maximize engagement and enrollment with existing and future clients; changes in our sales
and implementation cycles, especially in the case of our large clients; new solution introductions and expansions, or challenges with such introductions;
changes in our pricing or fee policies or those of our competitors; the timing and success of new solution introductions by us or our competitors or
announcements by competitors or other third parties of significant new products or acquisitions or entrance into certain markets; any other change in the
competitive landscape of our industry,yy including consolidation among our competitors; increases in operating expenses that we may incur to grow and
expand our operations and to remain competitive; our ability to successfully expand our business, whether domestically or internationally; breaches of
security or privacy; changes in stock-based compensation expenses; the amount and timing of operating costs and capital expenditures related to the
expansion of our business; adverse litigation judgments, settlements, or other litigation-related costs; changes in the legislative or regulatory environment,
including with respect to privacy or data protection, or enforcement by government regulators, including fines, orders, or consent decrees; the cost and
potential outcomes of ongoing or future regulatory investigations or examinations, or of future litigation; changes in our effective tax rate; our ability to
make accurate accounting estimates and appropriately recognize revenue for our solutions for which there are no relevant comparable products; changes in
accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations, or principles; instability in the financial markets; general economic conditions, both domestic and
international; volatility in the global financial markets; political, economic, and social instability,yy including terrorist activities and public health
emergencies (such as the COVID-19 pandemic), and any disruption these events may cause to the global economy; and changes in business or
macroeconomic conditions. The impact of one or more of the foregoing or other factors may cause our operating results to vary significantly.

Changes in accountit ng principi les maya cause previouslyl unantit cipi atet d flff uctuatit ons in our fiff nancial resultstt , and thtt e impm lementatt tion of such changes
maya impm act our abilitytt tott meet our fiff nancial repe ortit ng obligi atit ons.

WeWW prepare our financial statements in accordance with GAAP,PP which are subject to interpretation or changes by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FAFF SB”), the SEC, and other various bodies formed to promulgate and interpret appropriate accounting principles. New accounting
pronouncements and changes in accounting principles have occurred in the past and are expected to occur in the future which may have a significant effect
on our financial results. Furthermore, any difficulties in implementation of changes in accounting principles, including the ability to modify our accounting
systems, could cause us to fail to meet our financial reporting obligations, which could result in regulatory discipline and harm investors’ confidence in us.

IfII our estit matett s or judgd mentstt relatit ng tott our critit cal accountit ng policies prove tott be incorrect,tt our business, fiff nancial conditit on, and resultstt of
opo eratit ons could be advdd ersrr elyl affff eff ctett d.dd

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP and our key metrics require management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes and amounts reported in our key metrics. WeWW base our
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, as provided in the section
entitled “MaMM nagement’s’’ Discussion and Analyl sis of Financial Condition and Resultstt of OpO erations.” The results of these estimates form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets, liabilities, and equity and the amount of revenue and expenses that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Significant assumptions and estimates used in preparing our consolidated financial statements include those related to allowance for doubtful
accounts, assessment of the useful life and recoverability of long-lived assets, fair value of guarantees included in revenue arrangements and fair values of
stock-based awards, warrants, contingent consideration, and income taxes. Our results of operations may be adversely affected if our assumptions change
or if actual circumstances differ from those in our assumptions, which could cause our results of operations to fall below the expectations of securities
analysts and investors, resulting in a decline in the trading price of our common stock.

Risks Related to Owning Our Securities

ThTT e trtt ading price of our common stott ck and warrantstt maya be volatit le.

The trading price of our securities could be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to various factors, some of which are beyond our
control. Any of the factors listed below could have a material adverse effect on your investment in our securities may trade at prices significantly below the
price you paid for them. In such circumstances, the trading price of our securities may not recover and may experience a further decline.

Factors affecting the trading price of our securities may include:
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• actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly financial results or the quarterly financial results of companies perceived to be similar to us;

• changes in the market’s expectations about our operating results;

• failure to meet our projections;

• success of competitors;

• operating results failing to meet the expectations of securities analysts or investors in a particular period;

• changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts concerning us or the industry in which we operate in general;

• operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors deem comparable to us;

• ability to market new and enhanced products and services on a timely basis;

• changes in laws and regulations affecting our business;

• commencement of, or involvement in, litigation;

• changes in our capital structure, such as future issuances of securities or the incurrence of additional debt;

• the volume of shares of our common stock available for public sale;

• any maja or change in the Sharecare Board;

• sales of substantial amounts of Sharecare common stock by our directors, executive officers or significant stockholders or the perception that such
sales could occur; and

• general economic and political conditions such as recessions, inflation, interest rates, fuel prices, international currency fluctuations and acts of
war (such as the recent Russian invasion of Ukraine) or terrorism.

Broad market and industry factors may materially harm the market price of our securities irrespective of our operating performance. The stock
market in general, and Nasdaq specifically,yy have experienced extreme volatility that has often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular
companies. As a result of this volatility,yy you may not be able to sell your securities at or above the price at which it was acquired. A loss of investor
confidence in the market for the stocks of other companies which investors perceive to be similar to Sharecare could depress our stock price regardless of
our business, prospects, financial conditions or results of operations. A decline in the market price of our securities also could adversely affect our ability to
issue additional securities and our ability to obtain additional financing in the future.

WeWW maya in thtt e fuff ture isii sue additit onal shares of common stott ck (i(( ncluding upu on thtt e exercisii e of warrantstt or conversrr ion of our prefeff rred stott ck)k which
would increase thtt e number of shares eligi ible foff r fuff ture resale in thtt e public market and result in dilutitt on tott our stott ckholdersrr .

As of December 31, 2022, we had (i) public warrants and private placement warrants outstanding to purchase up to an aggregate of 17,433,334
shares of common stock, (ii) warrants to purchase up to 1,038,678 shares of common stock that were issued in connection with Legacy Sharecare warrant
agreements with customers and (iii) 5,000,000 shares of Series A convertible preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock”),
that are currently convertible into 5,000,000 shares of common stock. WeWW may also issue a substantial number of additional shares of common stock (or
securities convertible, exercisable or exchangeable for common stock) in the future, including in connection with contractual relationships with customers,
acquisitions, pursuant to compensation arrangements (including under the Sharecare, Inc. 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan) or as a result of financing
transactions. For example, we have entered into, and may in the future enter into, contractual arrangements with certain customers and other parties and
earnout arrangements in connection with acquisitions that, in each case, provide for the issuance of warrants and/or common stock upon achievement of
specified milestones. As of December 31, 2022, these agreements provide for the issuance of up to 6,173,886 shares of common stock (which amount
includes Earnout Shares (as defined herein)) and 9,008,594 warrants to purchase shares of common stock. WiWW th respect to these arrangements, there were
167,107 warrants earned but not issued as of December 31, 2022.
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The issuance of additional shares of our common stock as a result of any of the aforementioned transactions may result in dilution to the holders of
our common stock and increase in the number of shares eligible for resale in the public market. Sales of a substantial number of such shares in the public
markets may adversely affect the market price of our common stock, the impact of which is increased as the value of our stock price increases.

WeWW maya redeem our unexpx ired warrantstt prior tott thtt eir exercisii e at a time thtt at isii disii advdd antatt geous tott holdersrr , thtt erebyb making such warrantstt worthtt less.

WeWW will have the ability to redeem outstanding public warrants at any time prior to their expiration, at a price of $0.01 per warrant, if the closing
price of our common stock equals or exceeds $18.00 per share for any 20 trading days within a 30 trading-day period ending on the third business day prior
to the date we give notice of redemption. If and when the warrants become redeemable by us, we may exercise the redemption right even if we are unable
to register or qualify the underlying securities for sale under all applicable state securities laws. Redemption of the outstanding warrants could force holders
to (i) exercise the warrants and pay the exercise price therefor at a time when it may be disadvantageous to do so, (ii) sell the warrants at the then-current
market price when the holder might otherwise wish to hold on to such warrants or (iii) accept the nominal redemption price which, at the time the
outstanding warrants are called for redemption, is likely to be substantially less than the market value of the warrants. None of the private placement
warrants will be redeemable by us so long as they are held by their initial purchasers or their permitted transferees.

ThTT ere can be no assurance thtt at thtt e warrantstt will be in thtt e moneye at thtt e time thtt eye become exercisii able, and thtt eye maya expx ire worthtt less.

The exercise price for the vast maja ority of our outstanding warrants is $11.50 per share of common stock. There can be no assurance that our
warrants will be in the money prior to their expiration, and therefore may expire worthless.

Anyn fuff ture series of our prefeff rred stott ck maya have rigi htstt and prefeff rences thtt at are senior,rr or in addition, tott thtt e rigi htstt and prefeff rences of our common
stott ck.

Our Charter authorizes the issuance by us of up to 15,000,000 shares of preferred stock (including 5,000,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock). In
connection with the consummation of the Business Combination, 5,000,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock were issued upon conversion of Legacy
Sharecare’s Series D redeemable convertible preferred stock (the “Legacy Sharecare Series D Preferred Stock”) pursuant to terms of the Merger
Agreement. The Series A Preferred Stock has, and any future series of preferred stock may have, rights, preferences and privileges that are senior, or in
addition, to the rights, preferences and privileges of our common stock. For example, the Series A Preferred Stock has a right to receive, upon a liquidation
of Sharecare, a preference amount out of the assets available for distribution to stockholders before any distribution can be made to holders of our common
stock. If we were to file for bankruptcy,yy holders of our preferred stock that remain outstanding would have a claim in bankruptcy that is senior to any claim
holders of our common stock would have. The Series A Preferred Stock is also subject to mandatory redemption by us on the fifth anniversary of its issue
date. Future series of preferred stock may also have rights to dividends in priority to dividends on our common stock. These rights, preferences and
privileges of holders of our preferred stock could negatively affect the investment of holders of common stock. Holders of common stock could potentially
not receive dividends that they might otherwise have received and could receive less proceeds in connection with any future sale of Sharecare, in
liquidation or on any other basis.

IfII securitit es analyl syy tstt do not publisii h research or repe ortstt about our business or if thtt eye downgrade our stott ck or our sectott r,rr our stott ck price and trtt ading
volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock relies, in part, on the research and reports that industry or financial analysts publish about us or our
business. WeWW do not control these analysts. Furthermore, if one or more of the analysts who cover us downgrade our stock or our industry,yy or the stock of
any of our competitors, or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, the price of our stock could decline. If one or more of these
analysts stops covering us or fails to publish reports on us regularly,yy we could lose visibility in the market, which in turn could cause our stock price or
trading volume to decline. If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about our business or if they downgrade our stock or our sector, our stock
price and trading volume could decline.

Anti-tatt keover provisii ions contatt ined in our Chartet r as well as provisii ions of Delaware law,ww could impm air a tatt keover attett mpm t.tt

Our Charter contains provisions that may discourage unsolicited takeover proposals that stockholders may consider to be in their best interests.
Sharecare is also subject to anti-takeover provisions under Delaware law,ww which could delay or prevent a change of control. ToTT gether these provisions may
make more difficult the removal of management and may discourage transactions that otherwise could involve payment of a premium over prevailing
market prices for our securities. These provisions include:
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• no cumulative voting in the election of directors, which limits the ability of minority stockholders to elect director candidates;

• a classified board of directors with three-year staggered terms, which could delay the ability of stockholders to change the membership of a
maja ority of the Sharecare Board;

• the right of the Sharecare Board to elect a director to fill a vacancy created by the expansion of the Sharecare Board or the resignation, death or
removal of a director in certain circumstances, which prevents stockholders from being able to fill vacancies on the Sharecare Board;

• a prohibition on stockholder action by written consent, which forces stockholder action to be taken at an annual or special meeting of our
stockholders; and

• the requirement that a meeting of stockholders may only be called by the Chair of the Sharecare Board, our Chief Executive Officer, or the
Sharecare Board pursuant to a resolution adopted by a maja ority of the Sharecare Board, which may delay the ability of our stockholders to force
consideration of a proposal or to take action, including the removal of directors.

These provisions, alone or together, could delay hostile takeovers and changes in control of Sharecare or changes in the Sharecare Board and our
management. As a Delaware corporation, we are also subject to provisions of Delaware law,ww including Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation
Law (the “DGCL”), which prevents some stockholders holding more than 15% of outstanding Sharecare common stock from engaging in certain business
combinations without approval of the holders of substantially all of Sharecare common stock. Any provision of the Charter or bylaws or Delaware law that
has the effect of delaying or deterring a change in control could limit the opportunity for our stockholders to receive a premium for their shares of common
stock and could also affect the price that some investors are willing to pay for common stock.

Our Chartett r desigi natett s thtt e Court of Chanceryr of thtt e Statt tett of Delaware as thtt e sole and exclusive foff rum foff r certatt in tytt pyy es of actit ons and proceedings
and thtt e feff deral disii trtt ict courtstt as thtt e sole and exclusive foff rum foff r othtt er tytt pyy es of actit ons and proceedings, in each case, thtt at maya be initiatett d byb our
stott ckholdersrr , which could limit our stott ckholdersrr ’ abilitytt tott obtatt in what such stott ckholdersrr believe tott be a faff vorable judicial foff rum foff r disii ps utett s withtt us
or our directott rsrr , offff iff cersrr or othtt er empm loyo ees.

The Charter provides that, unless Sharecare consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of
Delaware shall be the sole and exclusive forum for any stockholder to bring (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of Sharecare, (ii) any
action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer or other employee of Sharecare to Sharecare or Sharecare’s stockholders,
(iii) any action asserting a claim against Sharecare, its directors, officers or employees arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL, the Charter or the
bylaws, or (iv) any action asserting a claim against Sharecare, its directors, officers or employees governed by the internal affairs doctrine, except any
action (A) as to which the Court of Chancery in the State of Delaware determines that there is an indispensable party not subject to the jurisdiction of the
Court of Chancery (and the indispensable party does not consent to the personal jurisdiction of the Court of Chancery within ten days following such
determination), (B) which is vested in the exclusive jurisdiction of a court or forum other than the Court of Chancery,yy (C) for which the Court of Chancery
does not have subject matter jurisdiction, or (D) any action arising under the Securities Act, as to which the Court of Chancery and the federal district court
for the District of Delaware shall have concurrent jurisdiction. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring an interest in any shares of
Sharecare’s capital stock shall be deemed to have notice of and to have consented to the forum provisions in the Charter. These choice-of-forum provisions
may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that he, she or it believes to be favorable for disputes with Sharecare or Sharecare’s
directors, officers or other employees, which may discourage such lawsuits. WeWW note that there is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce these
provisions and that investors cannot waive compliance with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder. Section 22 of the Securities
Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for state and federal courts over all suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules
and regulations thereunder.

Alternatively,yy if a court were to find these provisions of the Charter or unenforceable with respect to one or more of the specified types of actions or
proceedings, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such matters in other jurisdictions, which could materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations and result in a diversion of the time and resources of our management and board of directors.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVLL ED STATT FF COMMENTS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTRR IES

WeWW are party to an office lease agreement effective through 2028 for approximately 16,304 square feet of office space that houses our corporate
headquarters in Atlanta, Georgia. WeWW also lease additional office space around the world, including TeTT nnessee, California, New YoYY rk, and Germany. WeWW
believe our facilities are sufficient for our current needs and that, should it be needed, suitable additional or alternative space will be available to
accommodate our operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time-to-time, we may be subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the normal course of our business activities. Although the
results of these legal proceedings, claims, and investigations cannot be predicted with certainty,yy we do not believe that the final outcome of any matters that
we, or any of our subsidiaries, are currently involved in are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results
of operations. Regardless of final outcomes, however, any such proceedings, claims and investigations may nonetheless impose a significant burden on
management and employees and be costly to defend, with unfavorable preliminary or interim rulings.

The section entitled “Legal MaMM tters” in Note 13 to Sharecare’s consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form
10-K is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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Part II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY,YY RELATAA ED STOCKHOLDER MATAA TERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information for our Securities

Sharecare’s common stock and public warrants are currently listed on Nasdaq under the symbols “SHCR” and “SHCRWRR ,WW” respectively. The closing
price of Sharecare’s common stock and public warrants on March 24, 2023 was $2.20 and $0.24, respectively.

Holders of our Securities

As of March 24, 2023, there were approximately 193 holders of record of our common stock, one holder of record of our Series A Preferred Stock
and approximately 35 holders of record of our warrants. The number of holders of record does not include a substantially greater number of “street name”
holders or beneficial holders whose common stock and warrants are held of record by banks, brokers and other financial institutions. There is no public
market for our Series A Preferred Stock.

Dividend Policy

WeWW have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock to date. The payment of cash dividends is dependent upon Sharecare’s revenue and
earnings, if any,yy capital requirements and general financial condition. Our Series A Preferred Stock may have priority over our common stock with respect
to dividends, and our Senior Secured Credit Agreement also imposes certain restrictions on our ability to pay dividends. The payment of any cash
dividends is within the discretion of the Sharecare Board. The Sharecare Board is not currently contemplating and does not anticipate declaring any stock
dividends in the foreseeable future.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On May 11, 2022, the Sharecare Board authorized a $50 million share repurchase program. Repurchases under the program may be made in the
Company’s discretion from time to time in the open market prior to December 31, 2022, in privately negotiated transactions, or otherwise, in accordance
with all securities laws and regulations, with the amount and timing of repurchases depending on market conditions and corporate needs. During the three
months ended December 31, 2022, we purchased 150,602 shares of our common stock at a per-share purchase price of $1.66.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

There were no unregistered sales of equity securities which have not been previously disclosed in a Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or a Current
Report on Form 8-K during the period covered by this report.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

Information relating to compensation plans under which our common stock is authorized for issuance is set forth under Part III, Item 12 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K and such information is incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 6. RESERVRR ED

None.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYLL SIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTLL S OF OPERATAA IONS

ThTT e foff llowing discussion and analyl sis of the fiff nancial condition and rerr sultstt of opo erations of Sharerr carerr , InII c. (f(( off r purpr oses of this section, “the
Compm anyn ,yy ” “Sharerr carerr ,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) should be rerr ad together with the Compm anyn ’s’’ consolidated fiff nancial statementstt as of and foff r the years
ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, in each case together with the accompm anyn ing notes thererr to, included elsewhererr in this Annual Repe ort on Form
10-K.KK ThTT is discussion contains foff rwardrr -looking statementstt and involves numerorr us riskskk and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, those described
under the section entitled “Risk Factors.” Actual rerr sultstt maya diffff eff r materiallyl frff orr m those contained in anyn foff rwardrr -looking statementstt .

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements regarding, among other things, the plans, strategies and prospects, both
business and financial, of Sharecare. These statements are based on the beliefs and assumptions of our management. Although we believe that our plans,
intentions, and expectations reflected in or suggested by these forward-
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looking statements are reasonable, we cannot assure you that we will achieve or realize these plans, intentions or expectations. Forward-looking statements
are inherently subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. Generally,yy statements that are not historical facts, including statements concerning possible
or assumed future actions, business strategies, events or results of operations, are forward-looking statements. These statements may be preceded by,yy
followed by or include the words “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “forecasts,” “may,yy ” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “plans,” “scheduled,” “anticipates,”
“possible,” “continue,” “might,” “potential” or “intends” or similar expressions. Forward-looking statements contained in this report include, but are not
limited to, statements regarding our expectations as to:

• our ability to realize the benefits expected from the Business Combination;

• our business, operations and financial performance, including:

• expectations with respect to our financial and business performance, including financial projections and business metrics and any
underlying assumptions thereunder;

• future business plans and growth opportunities, including revenue opportunities available from new or existing clients and expectations
regarding the enhancement of platform capabilities and addition of new solution offerings;

• developments and projections relating to our competitors and the digital healthcare industry;

• the impact of rising inflation, increasing interest rates, public health emergencies such as the COVID-19 pandemic, and other
macroeconomic factors on our business and the actions we may take in response thereto;

• our expectations regarding anticipated and future partnerships or other relationships with third parties and future acquisitions, as well as
potential strategic reviews we may conduct;

• our future capital requirements and sources and uses of cash, including potential share repurchases and our ability to obtain additional
capital in the future and fully access our Revolving Facility; and

• our ability to recognize performance-based revenue;

• our status as an EGC and our intention to take advantage of accommodations available to EGCs under the JOBS Act;

• our success in retaining or recruiting, or changes required in, our officers key employees or directors, including our ability to increase our
headcount as we expand our business; and

• the other estimates and matters described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K in the sections entitled “Risk Factors” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

These forward-looking statements are based on information available as of the date of this report, and current expectations, forecasts and
assumptions, and involve a number of judgments, risks and uncertainties. Important factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those
indicated or implied by forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those set forth in the section entitled “Risk Factors” in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. Accordingly,yy forward-looking statements should not be relied upon as representing our views as of any subsequent date, and we do
not undertake any obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date they were made, whether as a result of
new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be required under applicable securities laws.

Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should any of the underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary
in material respects from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. YoYY u should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements.

Overview

WeWW are a leading digital healthcare platform company that helps members consolidate and manage various components of their health in one place,
regardless of where they are on their health journey. Our health and well-being interoperable ecosystem unifies the elements of individual and community
health so everyone can live better, longer across the dynamic continuum of their healthcare needs. WeWW are driven by our philosophy that we are “All
ToTT gether Better” as well as our goal to turn individual progress into community transformation. Given a unique blend of expertise across technology,yy
media, and healthcare, we have, through a number of strategic acquisitions and integration of key technologies and capabilities over the last ten years, built
our platform into what we believe is the most comprehensive and seamless experience currently available in the digital healthcare space.
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Our business combines business-to-business and direct-to-consumer sales models and functions on a more distinctive business-to-business-to-person
model. Focusing on the individual, we aim to provide a solution that we believe is more comprehensive than other digital platforms by bringing together
scientifically validated clinical programs and engaging content to deliver a personalized experience for our members, whether they come to us by way of
the workplace, the exam room, or the living room.

WeWW derive revenue from multiple stakeholders and while we are focused on the individual’s unique experience, our platform is purpose-built to
seamlessly connect stakeholders to the health management tools they need to drive engagement, establish sustained participation, increase satisfaction,
reduce costs, and improve outcomes. As we expand our offerings and look to further develop our technologies, we continue to consider the distinct needs
of each client channel as well as opportunities to better connect and cross-sell while we grow and integrate our solutions into one seamless platform.

Our operations are mostly domestic to the United States, but we do derive some revenue from international operations, mostly from Brazil. The
revenue for 2022 from international operations was $14.6 million, or approximately 3% of total revenues.

Our one platform can be disaggregated into three client channels:

• Entett rpr risii e: Our enterprise channel includes a range of clients — from large employers and healthcare systems to government agencies and
health plans — that use our platform to engage with their populations, dynamically measure the impact of that engagement, and efficiently
deliver health and wellness services.

• Provider: Our suite of data and information-driven solutions for healthcare providers are tailored to improve productivity and efficiency and
enhance patient care and management while upholding the latest compliance, security,yy and privacy standards.

• Lifeff Sciences: Our robust platform and suite of digital products and medical expert knowledge provides members with personalized
information, programs, and resources to improve their health and well-being, and affords sponsors the opportunity to integrate their brands
into Sharecare’s consumer experience in a highly contextual, relevant, and targeted environment.

Recent Developments Affff ecting Comparability

COVIVV DII -19 ImII pm act

WeWW continue to closely monitor the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on all aspects of our business. WiWW th the emergence of COVID-19 variants
and increased vaccination rates, the status of ongoing measures varies widely depending on the country and locality.

The pandemic has not had a significant negative impact to our consolidated financial position, results of operations, and cash flows related to this
matter. As a result of the broader economic impact, customers may be facing liquidity issues and may be slower to pay or altogether withdraw from their
commitments. However, the long-term financial impact related to the pandemic remains uncertain.

Given the volatility of the circumstances surrounding the pandemic, Sharecare has evaluated potential risks to its business plan. Further economic
slowdown could delay Sharecare’s sales objectives for new business for its digital product. In addition, Sharecare may be impacted by currency fluctuations
with the biggest impact thus far being to the Brazilian Real.

Key Factors and TrTT ends Affff ecting our Operating Performance

Our financial condition and results of operations have been, and will continue to be, affected by a number of factors, including our success with
respect to the following:

• Exppanding our Footpprint. WeWW believe that our current client base represents a small fraction of potential clients that could benefit from our
highly differentiated solutions. WeWW will continue to invest in our sales and marketing efforts and leverage our partner relationships to continue
to acquire new clients, including individuals, providers, employers, health plans, government organizations, and communities.

• Exppanding our Existing Client Relationshipps. WeWW also believe that there is significant opportunity to generate growth by maintaining and
expanding our relationships with existing clients, including:

• increasing engagement and enrollment of eligible members with our existing enterprise clients through continued sales and marketing
efforts, including targeted next-generation digital modeling and marketing,
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and capitalizing on insights from claims ingestion (the process by which we receive and process information from our clients),
population risk stratification and incentives management;

• facilitating intervention with Sharecare+, our high-touch, digital-first advocacy driving high quality experience, care, and value
support;

• promoting our marketplace of existing targeted digital therapeutics to close gaps in care in high-cost areas (with incremental fee per
enrollee), which we believe represents a $1 billion revenue opportunity within our currently contracted clients; and

• expanding our relationships with our top 25 provider clients with an opportunity to extend our provider products and services to more
than 8,500 additional healthcare sites.

• Offering Additional Solutions. WeWW believe there is significant opportunity to cross-sell our provider solutions to existing accounts, including
deploying our value-based care and payment integrity solutions to approximately 6,000 health system clients.

• Growing our Platform. WeWW are constantly evaluating the marketplace for ways to broaden and enhance our client and member experience,
improve clinical results, and increase revenue through product innovation, partnerships, and acquisitions. WeWW intend to continue to leverage
our expertise through adding digital therapeutics partnerships as well as the acquisition of products and services that are directly relevant to
our existing clients. Additionally,yy we believe our strong and embedded client relationships provide us with unique perspectives into their
evolving needs and the needs of their populations. For example, we recently launched Sharecare+, our digital-first, comprehensive advocacy
solution designed to deliver value through benefits navigation, clinical engagement, virtual care, and chronic case and utilization
management, and have entered into a multi-year strategic partnership with an affiliate of one of the largest payers to integrate our solution into
their health guide services for hundreds of thousands of their members.

• Evolving our Products to Cater to an Evolving Industryy. As the digital healthcare industry grows, we closely monitor evolving consumer
trends and organizations’ needs so that we may adapt our platform to better suit our clients’ demands. Since March 2020, the COVID-19
pandemic greatly accelerated the demand for virtual care solutions and resulted in rapid growth and increased adoption of digital health
technologies, which Sharecare was in a unique position to undertake. By building on our deep expertise in handling and managing mass
health data, we launched a suite of distinct but complementary digital tools and programs to address the evolving emotional, educational,
clinical, and operational challenges introduced by the pandemic. WeWW intend to continue to look for opportunities to leverage our platform and
expertise to provide first-mover solutions to evolving and future demands in the digital healthcare industry.

• Acqquisitions. WeWW believe that our proven track record of successful acquisitions coupled with the flexibility and capabilities of our platform
positions us to continue opportunistically pursuing attractive M&A opportunities. WeWW believe this potential is further accentuated by our
multiple client channels and constantly expanding member base. Future acquisitions could drive value and growth in a host of ways, including
access to new customers and potential cross-sell opportunities; unlocking new customer channels or geographies; adding new solutions to
serve our existing client base; and adding new capabilities to enhance our existing solution offering or the efficiency of our platform. In
addition, we believe our acquisition track record demonstrates our ability to realize synergies and optimize performance of potential M&A
partners.

• Globalization Efforts and Cost Savings. WeWW have begun certain globalization efforts across our Provider and Enterprise channels that will be
rolled out throughout 2023. Through these globalization efforts, we believe there is opportunity to achieve approximately $30 million in
annualized cost savings, which will include both operating and capitalized expense reductions. WeWW expect some of these cost savings to be
realized during 2023, beginning in the first quarter of 2023 and increasing as we progress throughout the year.

Components of Our Results of Operations

Revenue

The enterprise channel provides employers and health plans with health management programs for large populations, including digital engagement,
telephonic coaching, incentives, biometrics, digital therapeutics, home health offerings, and subscriptions to the Sharecare platform. Revenue is recognized
on a per member per month (“PMPM”) basis or as services are provided. Provider revenue is primarily based on health document requests filled in the
health data services business line, as
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well as subscription fees for various technology related services that assist providers with performance and maximizing reimbursement. Life sciences
revenue is generated mostly through ad sponsorships to Sharecare’s extensive member database.

Coststt of Revenue

Costs of revenue primarily consist of costs incurred in connection with delivering our various revenue generating activities, including personnel
related expenses. Costs are primarily driven by volumes related to requests, engagement, and incentive fulfillment. The maja or components that make up our
cost of revenue are personnel costs to support program delivery as well as customer service along with share-based compensation for employees engaged in
delivering products and services to customers, data management fees related to file processing, and variable fees to deliver specific services that may
require third party vendors, direct marketing, fulfillment, transaction fees, or other costs that can be reduced to offset a decline in revenue. Because our
growth strategy includes substantial opportunity to scale low-personnel cost products, we would anticipate future revenue to grow at a faster rate than cost
of revenue as those low-personnel cost products mature. Costs of revenue do not include depreciation or amortization, which are accounted for separately.

Sales and MaMM rketit ng Expx enses

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of employee-related expenses, including salaries, benefits, commissions, employment taxes, travel,
and share-based compensation costs for our employees engaged in sales, account management, marketing, public relations and related support. In addition,
these expenses include marketing sponsorships and engagement marketing spend. These expenses exclude any allocation of occupancy expense and
depreciation and amortization.

WeWW expect our sales and marketing expenses to increase as we strategically invest to expand our business. WeWW expect to hire additional sales
personnel and related account management, marketing, public relations and related support personnel to capture an increasing amount of our market
opportunity and upsell/cross-sell within our existing client base. As we scale our sales and marketing personnel in the short- to medium-term, we expect
these expenses to increase in both absolute dollars and as a percentage of revenue.

Product and TeTT chnologygg Expx enses

Product and technology expenses include personnel and related expenses for software engineering, information technology infrastructure, business
intelligence, technical account management, project management, security,yy product development and share-based compensation. Product and technology
expenses also include indirect hosting and related costs to support our technology,yy outsourced software, and engineering services. Our technology and
development expenses exclude any allocation of occupancy expense and depreciation and amortization.

WeWW expect our technology and development expenses to increase for the foreseeable future as we continue to invest in the development of our
technology platform. Our technology and development expenses may fluctuate as a percentage of our total revenue from period to period partially due to
the timing and extent of our technology and development expenses.

General and Adminisii trtt atitt ve Expx enses

General and administrative expenses include personnel and related expenses for our executive, finance, legal, and human resources departments plus
all indirect staff in the divisions not attributable to service delivery,yy sales and marketing, or product and technology. They also include professional fees,
share-based compensation, rent, utilities and maintenance related costs. Our general and administrative expenses exclude any allocation of depreciation and
amortization.

WeWW expect our general and administrative expenses to increase for the foreseeable future following the completion of the Business Combination due
to the additional legal, accounting, insurance, investor relations, and other costs that we will incur as a public company,yy as well as costs associated with
continuing to grow our business. Our general and administrative expenses may fluctuate as a percentage of our total revenue from period to period partially
due to the timing and extent of our general and administrative expenses.

Depe reciation and Amortizii ation

Depreciation and amortization consists primarily of depreciation of fixed assets, amortization of software, amortization of capitalized software
development costs and amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets.

InII tet rest Expx ense

Interest expense primarily relates to interest and fees incurred on our line of credit and the amortization of debt issuance costs.

Othtt er InII come (E(( xpx ense)e
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Other income (expense) primarily relates to changes in the fair value of contingent consideration and warrant liabilities.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the YeYY ars Ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020

The following table presents our Consolidated Statement of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, and the dollar and
percentage change between the three years:

YeYY ar Ended December 31, 2021 to 2022 2020 to 2021
(i(( n thtt ousandsdd )s 2022 2021 2020 % Change % Change
Revenue $ 442,415 $ 412,815 $ 328,805 7 % 26 %
Costs and operating expenses:
Costs of revenue (exclusive of amortization

and depreciation below) 238,293 203,218 160,911 17 % 26 %
Sales and marketing 55,870 51,407 33,335 9 % 54 %
Product and technology 70,527 74,438 44,078 (5)% 69 %
General and administrative 171,811 136,594 83,238 26 % 64 %
Depreciation and amortization 45,256 32,601 24,684 39 % 32 %

ToTT tal costs and operating expenses 581,757 498,258 346,246 17 % 44 %
Loss from operations (139,342) (85,443) (17,441) 63 % 390 %

Other income (expense)
Interest income 1,867 96 71 1845 % 35 %
Interest expense (2,431) (27,662) (31,037) (91)% (11)%
Loss on extinguishment of debt — (1,148) — 100 % — %
Other income (expense) 20,215 27,007 (9,709) (25)% (378)%

ToTT tal other income (expense) 19,651 (1,707) (40,675) (1251)% (96)%
Net loss before taxes and loss from equity

method investment (119,691) (87,150) (58,116) 37 % 50 %
Income tax benefit 206 2,021 1,557 (90)% 30 %
Loss from equity method investment — — (3,902) n.m. n.m.

Net loss $ (119,485) $ (85,129) $ (60,461) 40 % 41 %
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest in

subsidiaries (778) (129) (443) 503 % (71)%
Net loss attributable to Sharecare, Inc. $ (118,707) $ (85,000) $ (60,018) 40 % 42 %

____ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___
n.m. — Percentage change not meaningful

Comparison of the YeYY ars Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

RRevenuee

Revenue increased $29.6 million, or 7%, from $412.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to $442.4 million for the year ended Decemberr
31, 2022. Revenue growth of $69.1 million was driven by contributions from new product lines, including advocacy,yy and newly acquired products, such as
home health, as well as organic growth in existing lines. Offsetting this growth was a negative impact of $39.5 million attributable to suspension of services
related to health security and medical home care.

The channel revenue changed as follows: enterprise channel increased by $15.2 million (from $243.4 million for 2021 to $258.6 million for 2022),
the provider channel increased by $13.3 million (from $90.9 million for 2021 to $104.2 million for 2022) and the life sciences channel increased by
$1.1 million (from $78.5 million for 2021 to $79.6 million for 2022). Increases in the enterprise channel were attributable to a combination of new product
and client gains in the digital, advocacy and home health areas, partially offset by the aforementioned impact of suspended service lines. The provider
channel increase was attributable to increased volumes and new customers within our existing product lines, mostly in the medical record audit business.
The life sciences channel increase was attributable to both the consumer and behavioral health services divisions.
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Coststt and Expx enses

Coststt of Revenue

Costs of revenue increased $35.1 millionn, or 17%, from $203.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to $238.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022. The percentage increase in costs of revenue was higher than the percentage increase in revenue primarily from shifts in product mix,
with increases in home health care, advocacy and medical record audits, offset by the suspension of services in health security.

Sales and MaMM rketing

Sales and marketing expense increased $4.5 million, or 9%, from $51.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to $55.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2022. The increase was primarily related to a $3.1 million increase in staffing and related personnel expense, $2.2 million of
additional marketing sponsorships and advertising costs, and $1.9 million in additional non-cash share-based compensation expense. The increases were
offset by a $2.9 million reduction in spend related to engagement marketing and sales consulting in 2021.

PProrr duct and TeTT chnologyygg

Product and technology expenses decreased $3.9 million, or 5%, from $74.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to $70.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022. The decrease was related to an $8.8 million reduction in share-based compensation and a reduction of $1.2 million from
the optimization of staff and contract services. Offsetting the decrease was $2.1 million in increased platform and software fees to support deployment of
new technologies and new revenue streams, along with $4.0 million in severance and reorganization expense tied to the optimization of staff and
contractors.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expense increased $35.2 million, or 26%, from $136.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to $171.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022. Non-cash, share-based compensation expense accounted for $29.4 million of the increase. Staffing costs and related
personnel expenses increased $5.5 million, tied to prior year acquisitions, growth and compliance needs. Insurance, tax and administrative expenses
increased $3.9 million with the maja ority of the increase tied to business insurance required as a public company. Professional fees increased $2.0 million,
primarily related to the delivery and ramp of new product lines. Offsetting these increases was $2.1 million of reduced facility footprint and $3.5 million of
non-recurring, reorganization and non-operational expense reduction.

DDepe rerr ciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased $12.7 million, or 39%, from $32.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to $45.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2022. The increase was related to our continued investment in product enhancements and new products, as well as amortization
incurred on recently acquired intangible assets.

IInII tererr st Expx ense

Interest expense decreased $25.3 million, or 91%, from $27.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to $2.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022. The decrease is attributable to the retirement of debt in 2021 in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination.

Other InII come (E(( xpx ense)e

Other income decreased $6.8 million, or 25%, from $27.0 million of income for the year ended December 31, 2021 to $20.2 million of income for
the year ended December 31, 2022. This decrease was mostly related to non-cash, mark-to-market adjd ustments to contingent consideration and warrant
liabilities where the adjd ustment is tied to the change in the per share price of the Company’s common stock. See Note 1 to Sharecare’s consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Comparison of the YeYY ars Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenue

Revenue increased $84.0 million, or 26%, from $328.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $412.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021. Revenue growth of $115.0 million was driven by contributions from new product lines, including digital therapeutics and health
security programs, and newly acquired products, such as home health, as well as organic growth in existing lines. Offsetting this growth was a negative
impact of $30.3 million attributable to COVID-19,
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which includes reduced services and the attrition of one contract related to a previous acquisition. The COVID-19 impact is primarily attributable to
customers’ overall concern about the economy that affected long-term contract decisions.

The channel revenue changed as follows: enterprise channel increased by $55.1 million (from $188.3 million for 2020 to $243.4 million for 2021),
the provider channel increased by $11.6 million (from $79.3 million for 2020 to $90.9 million for 2021) and the life sciences channel increased byy
$17.4 million (from $61.1 million for 2020 to $78.5 million for 2021). Increases in the enterprise channel (29%) were attributable to a combination of new
product and client gains in the digital, digital therapeutics, health security,yy home health and community programs, partially offset by the aforementioned
impact of COVID-19 and contract attrition from a previous acquisition. The provider channel increase (15%) was attributable to new products in the
payment integrity area, continued recovery in demand for our services as compared to the prior year, and increased volumes and new customers within ourr
existing product lines. The life sciences channel increase (28%) was due to adding new customer brands and increased pharmaceutical advertising spend.

Coststt and Expx enses

Coststt of Revenue

Costs of revenue increased $42.3 millionn, or 26%, from $160.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $203.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021. The increase was due to the corresponding increase in sales.

Sales and MaMM rketing

Sales and marketing expense increased $18.1 million, or 54%, from $33.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $51.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021. The increase was primarily related to a $10.6 million increase in salaries and commissions as we ramp sales efforts and
$4.7 million in consulting and sponsorship expenses to advance engagement metrics and provide sales and marketing support for growth and new product
rollout. Also contributing to the increase was $1.4 million in additional non-cash share-based compensation expense and $1.1 million of additional non-
recurring expense related to our transition to being a public company.

Prorr duct and TeTT chnologygg

Product and technology expenses increased $30.4 million, or 69%, from $44.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $74.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021. The largest variance was non-cash share-based compensation expense of $12.1 million, mostly related to acquisitions. The
continued investment in product and technology staffing and outside contract services accounted for $9.0 million of the increase, of which $5.7 million
derived from acquisitions. The remaining increase includes a non-operational expense of $4.7 million along with incremental platform and consulting fees
of $4.5 million as we ramp new technologies and user volume increases.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expense increased $53.4 million, or 64%, from $83.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $136.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021. The increase was due mostly to non-recurring costs of becoming a public company,yy acquisition-related expenses and
non-cash share-based compensation expenses totaling $37.7 million. Personnel expenses increased $11.7 million related to compensation restoration for
employees who had previously accepted salary reductions in connection with prior period COVID-19 related cost reductions and increased headcount to
support public company processes in the current period. The remainder of the increase is mostly related to business insurance and other cost increases,
associated with being a public company.

Depe rerr ciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization increased $7.9 million, or 32%, from $24.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $32.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021. The increase was related to our continued investment in product enhancements and new products, as well as amortization
expense incurred on recently acquired intangible assets.

InII tererr st Expx ense

Interest expense decreased $3.4 million, or 11%, from $31.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $27.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021. The decrease is attributable to the retirement of our debt either through the conversion to common stock or through its repayment
during the year ended December 31, 2021.

Other InII come (E(( xpx ense)e

Other income and expense fluctuated $36.7 million from $9.7 million of expense for the year ended December 31, 2020 to $27.0 million of income
for the year ended December 31, 2021. This activity was mostly related to non-cash mark-to-market
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adjd ustments to contingent consideration and warrant liabilities where the adjd ustment is tied to the change in the per share price of the Company’s common
stock. See Note 1 to Sharecare’s consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to our financial results determined in accordance with GAAP,PP we believe the non-GAAP measures, adjd usted EBITDA, adjd usted net
income (loss), and adjd usted earnings (loss) per share (“adjd usted EPS”), are useful in evaluating our operating performance. WeWW use adjd usted EBITDA,
adjd usted net income (loss), and adjd usted EPS to evaluate our ongoing operations and for internal planning and forecasting purposes. WeWW believe that these
non-GAAP financial measures, when taken together with the corresponding GAAP financial measures, provide meaningful supplemental information
regarding our performance by excluding certain items that may not be indicative of our business, results of operations, or outlook. In particular, we believe
that the use of adjd usted EBITDA, adjd usted net income (loss), and adjd usted EPS is helpful to our investors as they are metrics used by management in
assessing the health of our business and our operating performance. However, non-GAAP financial information is presented for supplemental informational
purposes only,yy has limitations as an analytical tool, and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for financial information presented in
accordance with GAAP.PP In addition, other companies, including companies in our industry,yy may calculate similarly-titled non-GAAP measures differently
or may use other measures to evaluate their performance, all of which could reduce the usefulness of our non-GAAP financial measures as a tool for
comparison. The reconciliations of adjd usted EBITDA, adjd usted net income (loss), and adjd usted EPS to net income (loss), the most directly comparable
financial measure stated in accordance with GAAP,PP are provided below. Investors are encouraged to review the reconciliations and not to rely on any single
financial measure to evaluate our business.

Adjd ustet d EBITDTT ADD

Adjd usted EBITDA is a key performance measure that management uses to assess our operating performance. Because adjd usted EBITDA facilitates
internal comparisons of our historical operating performance on a more consistent basis, we use this measure for business planning purposes.

WeWW calculate adjd usted EBITDA as net income (loss) adjd usted to exclude (i) depreciation and amortization, (ii) interest income, (iii) interest expense,
(iv) income tax (benefit) expense, (v) loss on extinguishment of debt, (vi) other (income) expense (non-operating), (vii) loss from equity method
investments, (viii) share-based compensation, (ix) warrants issued with revenue contracts, (x) amortization of non-cash payment for research and
development, (xi) net costs associated with exiting contracts, (xii) non-operating, non-recurring costs, (xiii) reorganizational and severance costs, and (xiv)
acquisition-related costs. WeWW do not view the items excluded as representative of our ongoing operations.

Certain prior period adjd usted EBITDA add-back amounts have been reclassified to new add-back line items in order to conform to the current period
presentation and to more accurately describe the nature of the expenses year-over-year. These reclassifications had no effect on the previously reported
adjd usted EBITDA totals.

The following table presents a reconciliation of adjd usted EBITDA from the most comparable GAAP measure, net loss, for each of the years ended
December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands):
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YeYY ar Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Net loss $ (119,485) $ (85,129) $ (60,461)
Add:
Depreciation and amortization 45,256 32,601 24,684
Interest income (1,867) (96) (71)
Interest expense 2,431 27,662 31,037
Income tax benefit (206) (2,021) (1,557)
Loss on extinguishment of debt — 1,148 —
Other (income) expense (20,215) (27,007) 9,709
Loss from equity method investments — — 3,902
Share-based compensation 69,628 46,780 19,160
WaWW rrants issued with revenue contracts 62 79 1,188
Amortization of non-cash payment for research and development 2,460 1,235 —
Net costs associated with exiting contracts 3,839 — —
Non-operating, non-recurring costs 14,360 10,592 2,081
Reorganizational and severance costs 13,681 1,504 2,553
Acquisition-related costs 5,832 19,680 106
Adjd usted EBITDA $ 15,776 $ 27,028 $ 32,331

____ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___

(a) Represents the non-cash value of warrants issued to clients for meeting specific revenue thresholds.

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2022, previously undisclosed first quarter net costs were included for comparability purposes and to display trends associated with
exiting contracts during the period.

(c) For 2022, primarily represents costs related to the settlement of legal obligations, new business opportunities, and lease termination. For 2021 and 2020, primarily
represents costs related to the settlement of legal obligations.

(d) For 2022, primarily represents costs related to globalizing a portion of the workforce and severance. For 2021 and 2020, primarily represents costs related to
severance.

(e) Includes non-cash amortization associated with contract liabilities recorded in connection with acquired businesses.

Adjd ustet d NeNN t InII come (L(( oss)s

Adjd usted net income (loss) is a key performance measure that management uses to assess our operating performance. Because adjd usted net income
(loss) facilitates internal comparisons of our historical operating performance on a more consistent basis, we use this measure for business planning
purposes and to evaluate our performance.

WeWW calculate adjd usted net income (loss) as net income (loss) attributable to Sharecare, Inc. adjd usted to exclude (i) amortization of acquired
intangibles, (ii) amortization of deferred financing fees, (iii) change in fair value of warrant liability and contingent consideration, (iv) loss from equity
method investments, (v) share-based compensation, (vi) warrants issued with revenue contracts, (vii) amortization of non-cash payment for research and
development, (viii) net costs associated with exiting contracts, (ix) non-operating, non-recurring costs, (x) reorganizational and severance costs, and (xi)
acquisition related costs. WeWW do not view the items excluded as representative of our ongoing operations.

Certain prior period adjd usted net income (loss) add-back amounts have been reclassified to new add-back line items in order to conform to the
current period presentation and to more accurately describe the nature of the expenses year-over-year. These reclassifications had no effect on the
previously reported adjd usted net income (loss) totals.

Adjd ustet d EPS

Adjd usted EPS is a key performance measure that management uses to assess our operating performance. Because adjd usted EPS facilitates internal
comparisons of our historical operating performance on a more consistent basis, we use this measure for business planning purposes and to evaluate our
performance.

WeWW calculate Adjd usted EPS as adjd usted net income (loss), as defined above, divided by the number of weighted average common shares outstanding
- basic and diluted. WeWW do not view the items excluded as representative of our ongoing operations.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)
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The following table presents a reconciliation of adjd usted net loss and adjd usted EPS from the most comparable GAAP measure, net loss, for each of
the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands, except share numbers and per share amounts):

YeYY ar Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Net loss attributable to Sharecare, Inc. $ (118,707) $ (85,000) $ (60,822)
Add:
Amortization of acquired intangibles 6,526 5,321 3,851
Amortization of deferred financing fees 280 15,537 6,801
Change in fair value of warrant liability and contingent consideration (18,492) (26,123) 9,647
Loss from equity method investments — — 3,902
Share-based compensation 69,628 46,780 19,160
WaWW rrants issued with revenue contracts 62 79 1,188
Amortization of non-cash payment for research and development 2,460 1,235 —
Net costs associated with exiting contracts 3,839 — —
Non-operating, non-recurring costs 14,360 10,592 2,081
Reorganizational and severance costs 13,681 1,504 2,553
Acquisition-related costs 5,832 19,680 106
Adjd usted net loss $ (20,531) $ (10,395) $ (11,533)

WeWW ighted-average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted 348,103,491 281,026,365 215,094,037

Loss per share $ (0.34) $ (0.30) $ (0.28)
Adjd usted loss per share $ (0.06) $ (0.04) $ (0.05)

____ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___

(a) Represents non-cash expenses related to the amortization of intangibles in connection with acquired businesses.

(b) Represents the non-cash value of warrants issued to clients for meeting specific revenue thresholds.

(c) For the year ended December 31, 2022, previously undisclosed first quarter net costs were included for comparability purposes and to display trends associated with
exiting contracts during the period.

(d) For 2022, primarily represents costs related to the settlement of legal obligations, new business opportunities, and lease termination. For 2021 and 2020, primarily
represents costs related to the settlement of legal obligations.

(e) For 2022, primarily represents costs related to globalizing a portion of the workforce and severance. For 2021 and 2020, primarily represents costs related to
severance.

(f) The income tax effect of the Company’s non-GAAP reconciling items are offset by valuation allowance adjustments of the same amount given the Company is in a
full valuation allowance position.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

WeWW measure liquidity in terms of our ability to fund the cash requirements of our business operations, including working capital and capital
expenditure needs, contractual obligations and other commitments, with cash flows from operations and other sources of funding. Our ability to expand and
grow our business will depend on many factors, including our working capital needs and the evolution of our operating cash flows.

WeWW had $182.5 million in cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2022. Our principal commitments as of December 31, 2022, consist of
operating leases and purchase commitments. The Company maintains its Senior Secured Credit Agreement. As of December 31, 2022, there was $51.1
million available for borrowing under the Revolving Facility. See Note 8 and Note 13 to Sharecare’s consolidated financial statements included elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)
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WeWW believe our cash on hand, which includes the cash we obtained as a result of the Business Combination, will be sufficient to meet our operating
cash flow,ww working capital, and capital expenditure requirements in the short-term, i.e., the 12 months from the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Our long-term liquidity needs include cash necessary to support our business growth and contractual commitments. WeWW believe that the potential financing
capital available to us in the future is sufficient to fund our long-term liquidity needs, however, we are continually reviewing our capital resources to
determine whether we can meet our short- and long-term goals, and we may require additional capital to do so. WeWW may also need additional cash resources
due to potential changes in business conditions or other developments, including unanticipated regulatory developments, significant acquisitions, and
competitive pressures. WeWW expect our capital expenditures and working capital requirements to continue to increase in the immediate future as we seek to
expand our solution offerings. ToTT the extent that our current resources are insufficient to satisfy our cash requirements, we may need to seek additional
equity or debt financing. If the needed financing is not available, or if the terms of financing are less desirable than we expect, we may be forced to
decrease our level of investment in new product offerings and related marketing initiatives or to scale back our existing operations, which could have an
adverse impact on our business and financial prospects. See Note 1 to Sharecare’s audited consolidated financial statements and the “Risk Factors — Risksk
Related to Financing and TaTT x — WeWW maya rerr quirerr additional capa ital to supu ppp ort business grorr wth, and this capa ital might not be available on accepe table terms,
if at all.” included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

The following table summarizes our cash flow activities for the periods presented:

YeYY ar Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2022 2021 2020
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities $ (49,657) $ (54,103) $ 14,761
Net cash used in investing activities $ (44,354) $ (112,387) $ (19,171)
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 5,511 $ 415,220 $ 3,770

OpO eratit ng Actit vities

Net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $49.7 million. Cash used during this period included the $119.5
million net loss for the year ended December 31, 2022, offset by non-cash items of $103.2 million which were attributable to depreciation and amortization
expense, amortization of contract liabilities, lease right-of-use asset expense, change in fair value of warrant liability and contingent consideration, and
share-based compensation. In addition, changes in operating assets and liabilities of $33.4 million resulted in net cash used, attributable to accounts
receivable and other receivables, prepaid expense and other assets, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and deferred revenue.

Net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $54.1 million. Cash used during this period included the $85.1
million net loss for the year ended December 31, 2021, offset by non-cash items of $58.5 million which were attributable to depreciation and amortization
expense, write-off of deferred financing fees and debt discount, amortization of contract liabilities, change in fair value of warrant liability and contingent
consideration, share-based compensation, and payment of PIK interest. In addition, changes in operating assets and liabilities of $27.4 million resulted in
net cash used, attributable to increases in accounts receivable and other receivables, prepaid expense and other assets. Accounts receivable increased
primarily due to increased revenue. Prepaid expense and other assets increased primarily due to non-cash payment for upfront research and development
costs related to the issuance of shares of Legacy Sharecare Series D Preferred Stock (see Note 10 to Sharecare’s consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K).

Net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $14.8 million, an increase of $12.2 million from $2.6 million of
cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2019. Cash provided during this period included the $60.5 million net loss for the
year ended December 31, 2020, net of non-cash items (which increased $40.1 million between periods). This was partially offset by net cash used in
changes in operating assets and liabilities of $6.9 million between periods, attributable to deferred revenue, accounts receivable and other receivables, and
accounts payable and accrued expenses.

InII vestit ng Actit vitit es

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $44.4 million compared to $112.4 million of net cash used in
investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2021. The year-over-year decrease in cash outflows was primarily due to cash paid for our acquisitions
of CareLinx and doc.ai in 2021.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $112.4 million compared to $19.2 million of net cash used in
investing activities in 2020. The increase in cash outflows was primarily due to cash paid for our acquisitions of CareLinx and doc.ai and increases in cash
paid for capitalized internal-use software costs.
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Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $19.2 million primarily due to cash paid for our acquisition of
ViVV sualize Health.

Financing Actit vitit es

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $5.5 million, primarily due to cash received from the exercise
of stock options.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $415.2 million, primarily due to cash received from the Reverse
Recapitalization of our merger with FCAC.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $3.8 million, primarily due to cash received from the drawdown
on our Senior Secured Credit Agreement, offset by the partial repayment of our outstanding indebtedness.

Contractual Obligations

There were no material changes to contractual obligations since last presented as of December 31, 2021. The Company still maintains its Senior
Secured Credit Agreement. See Note 8 and Note 16 to Sharecare’s consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.
Additionally,yy we have contractual obligations related to leases and purchase obligations with certain service providers. See Note 6 and Note 13 to
Sharecare’s consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on form 10-K.

Financing Arrangements

In March 2017, we refinanced our existing debt through the execution of the “Senior Secured Credit Agreement.” The Senior Secured Credit
Agreement provides for the Revolving Facility with total commitments of $60.0 million. AvAA ailability under the Revolving Facility is generally subject to a
borrowing base based on a percentage of applicable eligible receivables. Borrowings under the Revolving Facility generally bear interest at a rate equal to,
at the applicable Borrower’s option, either (a) a base rate or (b) a rate based on LIBOR, in each case, plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin is
based on a fixed charge coverage ratio and ranges from (i) 1.75% to 2.25% for U.S. base rate loans and (ii) 2.75% to 3.25% for LIBOR. The Senior
Secured Credit Agreement was scheduled to mature on February 10, 2023 (see Note 16 Subsequent Events).

In connection with the consummation of the Business Combination, Legacy Sharecare, the other Borrowers, the Lenders and the Administrative
Agent entered into Amendment Number Six to the Senior Secured Credit Agreement (the “Sixth Amendment”). Pursuant to the Sixth Amendment, the
Administrative Agent and Lenders provided certain consents with respect to the consummation of the Business Combination and related transactions and
certain amendments were made to the terms of the Senior Secured Credit Agreement to reflect the Business Combination and related transactions. The
Company and certain other subsidiaries of Legacy Sharecare executed joinders to become a party to the Senior Secured Credit Agreement as required by
the Sixth Amendment in July 2021.

In connection with the consummation of the Business Combination, we repaid all outstanding amounts under the Senior Secured Credit Agreement.
In the future, we may incur additional borrowings under the Senior Secured Credit Agreement. See Note 8 and Note 16 to Sharecare’s consolidated
financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The Senior Secured Credit Agreement contains a number of customary affirmative and negative covenants, and we were in compliance with those
covenants as of December 31, 2022. As of December 31, 2022, there were no borrowings outstanding under the Revolving Facility.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP.PP The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires management to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. WeWW evaluate our significant estimates on
an ongoing basis, including, but not limited to, revenue recognition, the valuation of assets and liabilities acquired in business combinations, the valuation
of common stock prior to the Business Combination, share-based compensation, and income taxes. WeWW base our estimates on historical experience, known
trends, and other market-specific or relevant factors that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Changes in estimates are recorded in the
period in which they become known. Actual results may differ from those estimates or assumptions.

WeWW believe that the accounting policies described below involve a significant degree of judgment and complexity. Accordingly,yy we believe these are
the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our consolidated financial
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condition and results of operations. For further information, see Note 1 to Sharecare’s consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Revenue Recognitit on

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised good or service is transferred to the client, in an amount that reflects the consideration we
expect to be entitled to in exchange for that good or service. Sales and usage-based taxes are excluded from revenue. WeWW serve a diverse group of clients.
WeWW are the principal in all outstanding revenue arrangements except for CareLinx. CareLinx has B2C and B2B2C service lines for which CareLinx is
generally the agent and we recognize the commission revenue based on the amount billed using the “as-invoiced” practical expedient.

Enterpr rise Revenue

The enterprise channel provides employers and health plans with health management programs for large populations, including digital engagement,
telephonic coaching, incentives, biometrics, digital therapeutics, home care health offerings, advocacy solutions, and subscriptions to the Sharecare
platform. Revenue is recognized on a PMPM basis or as services are provided. Member participation fees are generally determined by multiplying the
contractually negotiated member rate by the number of members eligible for services during the month. Member participation rates are established during
contract negotiations with clients, often based on a portion of the value the programs are expected to create. Contracts with health plans, health care
systems and government organizations generally range from three to five years with several comprehensive strategic agreements extending for longer
periods. Contracts with larger employer clients typically have two-to-four-year terms.

Health management program contracts often include a fee for the subscription of the Sharecare digital platform and various other platforms under
doc.ai, which may also be sold on a stand-alone basis. These services allow members to access Sharecare’s proprietary mobile application with a
comprehensive suite of health and wellness management programs, content, and tools. Revenue is recognized on a per member or a fixed fee basis as the
services are provided.

Sharecare’s Blue Zones Project is a community well-being improvement initiative designed to change the way people experience the world around
them by encouraging and promoting better lifestyle choices, such as commuting, eating, and social habits. Because healthier environments naturally nudge
people toward healthier choices, Blue Zones Project focuses on influencing the Life Radius®, the area close to home in which people spend 90% of their
lives. Blue Zones Project best practices use people, places, and policy as levers to transform those surroundings. These contracts normally include two
performance obligations, the discovery period and the subsequent content delivery,yy for each year of engagement. The revenue is recognized based on the
relative standalone selling price of the performance obligations evenly over time. These contracts do not include termination clauses and often have two-to-
four-year terms.

Sharecare’s doc.ai offering unlocks the value of health data through licensing artificial intelligence modules and through the creation of products for
a portfolio of clients including payors, pharma, and providers. These contracts generally include two performance obligations. The software license and
maintenance/support are considered one series of distinct performance obligations and professional services is considered a separate distinct performance
obligation. Revenue is recognized for all identified performance obligations as services are delivered.

Sharecare’s CareLinx offerings are focused on connecting caregivers with facilities or individuals that are in need of additional support. These
services are generally considered a series of distinct performance obligations. Revenue is recognized for all identified performance obligations as billed
using the “as-invoiced” practical expedient.

Certain contracts place a portion of fees at risk based on achieving certain performance metrics, such as cost savings, and/or clinical outcomes
improvements (performance-based). WeWW use the most likely amount method to estimate variable consideration for these performance guarantees. WeWW
include in the transaction price some, or all, of an amount of a variable consideration amount only to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
WeWW utilize customer data to measure performance.

In the event that performance levels are not met by the end of the measurement period, typically one year, some or all of the performance-based fees
are required to be refunded. During the settlement process under a contract, which generally occurs six to eight months after the end of a contract year,
performance-based fees are reconciled and settled.

Clients are generally billed monthly for the entire amount of the fees contractually due for the prior month’s enrollment, which typically includes the
amount, if any,yy that is performance-based and may be subject to refund should performance targets not be met. Fees for participation are typically billed in
the month after the services are provided. Deferred revenues arise from contracts that permit upfront billing and collection of fees covering the entire
contractual service period, generally six months to
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a year. A limited number of contracts provide for certain performance-based fees that cannot be billed until after they are reconciled with the client.

Prorr vider Revenue

Our provider channel revenue is primarily based on the volume of health document requests fulfilled and recognized upon satisfactory delivery to
the client. In addition, provider revenue is derived from subscription fees for various technology-related services that assist providers with efficiency and
productivity and enhanced patient care. Subscription fees are recognized ratably over the contractual period.

Lifeff Sciences Revenue

Our life sciences channel generates revenue mostly through ad sponsorships and content delivery. Content delivery revenue is recognized when the
content is delivered to the client. Ad sponsorship revenue is recognized when the contractual page views or impressions are delivered and the transaction
has met the criteria for revenue recognition.

Certain customer transactions may contain multiple performance obligations that may include delivery of content, page views, and ad sponsorship
over time. ToTT account for each of these elements separately,yy the delivered elements must be capable of being distinct and must be distinct in the context of
the contract.

Business Combinations

WeWW account for business acquisitions in accordance with ASC ToTT pic 805, Business Combinations. WeWW measure the cost of an acquisition as the
aggregate of the acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred and liabilities assumed and equity instruments issued. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition are expensed as incurred. WeWW record goodwill for the excess of (i) the total costs of acquisition and fair value of any
noncontrolling interests over (ii) the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquired business.

The acquisition method of accounting requires us to exercise judgment and make estimates and assumptions based on available information
regarding the fair values of the elements of a business combination as of the date of acquisition, including the fair values of identifiable intangible assets,
deferred tax asset valuation allowances, liabilities related to uncertain tax positions, and contingencies. WeWW must also refine these estimates within a one-
year measurement period, to reflect any new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the measurement of the amounts recognized as of that date. Estimates and assumptions that we must make in estimating the fair value
of future acquired technology,yy user lists, and other identifiable intangible assets include future cash flows that we expect to generate from the acquired
assets. If the subsequent actual results and updated projections of the underlying business activity change compared with the assumptions and projections
used to develop these values, we could record impairment charges. In addition, we have estimated the economic lives of certain acquired assets and these
lives are used to calculate depreciation and amortization expense. If our estimates of the economic lives change, depreciation or amortization expenses
could be accelerated or slowed, which could materially impact our results of operation.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 to Sharecare’s consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Emerging Growth Company Accounting Election

Section 102(b)(1) of the JOBS Act exempts emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting
standards until private companies are required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a company
can choose not to take advantage of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply to non-emerging growth companies, and
any such election to not take advantage of the extended transition period is irrevocable. Following the consummation of the Business Combination, we
expect to remain an emerging growth company at least through the end of the 2023 fiscal year and expect to continue to take advantage of the benefits of
the extended transition period. This may make it difficult or impossible to compare our financial results with the financial results of another public
company that is either not an emerging growth company or is an emerging growth company that has chosen not to take advantage of the extended transition
period exemptions for emerging growth companies because of the potential differences in accounting standards used. For additional information, see “Risk
Factors — Risks Related to Being a Public Company — WeWW are an ‘emerging growth company,yy ’ and our election to comply with the reduced disclosure
requirements as a public company may make our common stock less attractive to investors.” included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATT TAA IVE AND QUALITATT TAA IVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

WeWW have in the past and may in the future be exposed to certain market risks, including interest rate, foreign currency exchange, and financial
instrument risks, in the ordinary course of our business. Currently,yy these risks are not material to our financial condition or results of operations, but they
may be in the future.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

ToTT the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Sharecare, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

WeWW have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sharecare, Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2022, and 2021, the related
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, redeemable noncontrolling interest, redeemable convertible preferred stock and
stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2022, and the related notes (collectively referred
to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly,yy in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company on December 31, 2022, and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2022, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
financial statements based on our audits. WeWW are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

WeWW conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required
to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internall
control over financial reporting. Accordingly,yy we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and
performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. WeWW believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ Ernst & YoYY ung LLP

WeWW have served as the Company’s auditor since 2011.

Atlanta, Georgia

March 30, 2023
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SHARECARE, INC.
CONSOLIDATAA ED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
As of December 31,

2022 2021
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 182,508 $ 271,105
Accounts receivable, net (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $7,197 and $6,212, respectively) 116,877 103,256
Other receivables 4,114 5,327
Prepaid expenses 12,612 8,819
Other current assets 4,515 2,459
TotalTT current assets 320,626 390,966

Property and equipment, net 5,082 4,534
Other long-term assets (Note 4) 20,362 12,173
Intangible assets, net 163,114 155,086
Goodwill 191,817 192,442
TotalTT assets $ 701,001 $ 755,201

Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 8,838 $ 27,155
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (Note 4) 81,627 51,653
Deferred revenue 9,032 11,655
Contract liabilities, current 1,535 4,597
TotalTT current liabilities 101,032 95,060

Contract liabilities, noncurrent — 1,745
WarrantWW liabilities 2,441 10,820
Long-term debt (Note 8) — 419
Other long-term liabilities 16,723 24,116
TotalTT liabilities 120,196 132,160

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Series A redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; 5,000,000 shares issued and

outstanding, aggregate liquidation preference of $50,000 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 58,205 58,205
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.0001 par value; 600,000,000 and 600,000,000 shares authorized; 354,463,620 and 345,788,707 shares

issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively 35 35
Additional paid-in capital 1,120,024 1,042,164
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,794) (2,061)
Accumulated deficit (595,820) (477,113)
TotalTT Sharecare, Inc. stockholders’ equity 521,445 563,025

Noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries 1,155 1,811
TotalTT stockholders’ equity 522,600 564,836
TotalTT liabilities, redeemable convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ equity $ 701,001 $ 755,201

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SHARECARE, INC.
CONSOLIDATAA ED STATT TAA EMENTS OF OPERATAA IONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
YearYY Ended December 31,

2022 2021 2020
Revenue $ 442,415 $ 412,815 $ 328,805
Costs and operating expenses:
Costs of revenue (exclusive of depreciation and amortization below) 238,293 203,218 160,911
Sales and marketing 55,870 51,407 33,335
Product and technology 70,527 74,438 44,078
General and administrative 171,811 136,594 83,238
Depreciation and amortization 45,256 32,601 24,684

TotalTT costs and operating expenses 581,757 498,258 346,246
Loss from operations (139,342) (85,443) (17,441)

Other income (expense):
Interest income 1,867 96 71
Interest expense (2,431) (27,662) (31,037)
Loss on extinguishment of debt — (1,148) —
Other income (expense) 20,215 27,007 (9,709)

TotalTT other income (expense) 19,651 (1,707) (40,675)
Loss before income tax benefit and loss from equity method investment (119,691) (87,150) (58,116)

Income tax benefit 206 2,021 1,557
Loss from equity method investment — — (3,902)

Net loss (119,485) (85,129) (60,461)
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries (778) (129) (443)

Net loss attributable to Sharecare, Inc. $ (118,707) $ (85,000) $ (60,018)

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted $ (0.34) $ (0.30) $ (0.28)
Weighted-averageWW common shares outstanding, basic and diluted 348,103,491 281,026,365 215,094,037

Net loss $ (119,485) $ (85,129) $ (60,461)
Other comprehensive loss adjustments:

Foreign currency translation (611) (1,486) (241)
Comprehensive loss (120,096) (86,615) (60,702)

Comprehensive loss attributable to noncontrolling interest in subsidiaries (656) (256) (1,184)
Comprehensive loss attributable to Sharecare, Inc. $ (119,440) $ (86,359) $ (59,518)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SHARECARE, INC.
CONSOLIDATAA ED STATT TAA EMENTS OF REDEEMABLE NONCONTROLLING INTEREST,TT REDEEMABLE CONVERTRR IBLE PREFERRED

STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(In thousands, except share amounts)

Redeemable
Noncontrolling

Interest

Redeemable
Convertible Preferred

Stock Common Stock

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Accumulated
Deficit

Noncontrolling
Interest in

Subsidiaries

ToTT tal
Stockholders’

Equity
(Deficit)Shares Amount Shares Amount

Balance at December 31, 2019 $ — — $ — 211,051,406 $ 22 $ 339,583 $ (1,202) $ (332,095) $ 3,251 $ 9,559

Stock options exercised — — — 352,658 — 338 — — — 338
Beneficial conversion feature in

connection with convertible
debt — — — — — (135) — — — (135)

Issuance of redeemable
noncontrolling interest for and
stock for ViVV sualize Health
acquisitions 5,040 — — — — 584 — — — 584

Change in fair value of
redeemable noncontrolling
interest in subsidiaries 960 — — — — (960) — — — (960)

Issuance of stock for
Mindsciences acquisition — — — 3,386,990 — 7,548 — — — 7,548

Issuance of stock for WeWW llstar
investment — — — 890,732 — 6,745 — — — 6,745

Issuance of stock for WhitehatAI
acquisition — — — 1,425,171 — 2,160 — — — 2,160

Issuance of warrants in
connection with debt and
revenue arrangements — — — — — 1,097 — — — 1,097

ASC 810-10 ViVV sualize Health
NCI Attribution — — — — — (7) — — — (7)

Share-based compensation — — — — — 19,160 — — — 19,160
Redemption of ViVV sualize Health

put options (974) — — — — — — — — —
Expiration of ViVV sualize Health

put options (1,026) — — — — 890 — — 136 1,026
Net income (loss) attributable to

noncontrolling interest in
subsidiaries — — — — — — — — (443) (443)

Currency translation adjd ustment — — — — — — 500 — (741) (241)
Net income (loss) attributable to

Sharecare, Inc. — — — — — — — (60,018) — (60,018)
Other — — — — — 131 — — — 131
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ 4,000 — $ — 217,106,957 $ 22 $ 377,134 $ (702) $ (392,113) $ 2,203 $ (13,456)

Stock options exercised — — — 15,067,237 2 15,432 — — — 15,434
Issuance of common stock for

doc.ai acquisition — — — 8,435,301 1 81,292 — — — 81,293
Settlement of contingent liability

on WhitehatAI earnout — — — — — 595 — — — 595
Issuance of Series D redeemable

convertible preferred stock,
net of issuance costs and
antidilution provision — 4,453,659 51,754 — — — — — — —

Issuance of stock for Carelinx
acquisition — — — 1,262,475 — 10,348 — — — 10,348

Issuance of stock for doc.ai
antidilution provision — — — 1,052,398 — 12,682 — — — 12,682

Issuance of stock for Series D
antidilution provision — 546,341 6,451 — — — — — — —

Issuance of warrants in
connection with debt and
revenue arrangements — — — — — 79 — — — 79

Common stock issued to settle
contingent consideration from
acquisitions in prior years — — — 1,078,213 — — — — — —

Common stock issued upon
vesting of restricted stock
units — — — 31,250 — — — — — —

Conversion of warrants to
common shares — — — 11,647,316 1 11,480 — — — 11,481

Conversion of convertible notes
to common shares — — — 37,695,910 4 136,395 — — — 136,399

Business Combination and
Private Placement financing,
net of issuance costs — — — 57,451,915 6 376,570 — — — 376,576



Cumulative effect of adopting
ASU 2021-08 — — — — — — — 593 — 593

Dissolution of redeemable
noncontrolling interest for
ViVV sualize Health (4,000) — — 895,435 — 4,136 — — (136) 4,000

Share-based compensation — — — — — 46,780 — — — 46,780
Other — — — 66,555 — (988) — — — (988)
Currency translation adjd ustment — — — — — — (1,341) — (145) (1,486)
Repurchased shares of common

stock related to exercise of
employee stock options — — — (6,002,255) (1) (29,771) — — — (29,772)

Net income (loss) attributable to
noncontrolling interest in
subsidiaries — — — — — — (18) — (111) (129)

Net income (loss) attributable to
Sharecare, Inc. — — — — — — — (85,593) — (85,593)

Balance at December 31, 2021 $ — 5,000,000 $ 58,205 345,788,707 $ 35 $ 1,042,164 $ (2,061) $ (477,113) $ 1,811 $ 564,836

Stock options exercised — — — 9,421,590 — 10,829 — — — 10,829
CareLinx working capital

adjd ustment — — — (92,495) — (658) — — — (658)
Issuance of stock for WhitehatAI

earnout — — — 132,587 — — — — — —
Issuance of stock for doc.ai

escrow shares — — — 677,680 — — — — — —
Issuance of warrants in

connection with debt and
revenue arrangements — — — — — 62 — — — 62

Common stock issued upon
vesting of restricted stock
units — — — 857,343 — — — — — —

Share-based compensation — — — — — 72,011 — — — 72,011
Other — — — (5,097) — — — — — —
Currency translation adjd ustment — — — — — — (733) — 122 (611)
Repurchased shares of common

stock related to exercise of
stock options — — — (2,166,093) — (4,135) — — — (4,135)

Shares repurchased — — — (150,602) — (249) — — — (249)
Net income (loss) attributable to

noncontrolling interest in
subsidiaries — — — — — — — — (778) (778)

Net income (loss) attributable to
Sharecare, Inc. — — — — — — — (118,707) — (118,707)

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ — 5,000,000 $ 58,205 354,463,620 $ 35 $ 1,120,024 $ (2,794) $ (595,820) $ 1,155 $ 522,600

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SHARECARE, INC.
CONSOLIDATAA ED STATT TAA EMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
YearYY Ended December 31,

2022 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (119,485) $ (85,129) $ (60,461)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 45,256 32,601 24,684
Non-cash interest expense 967 4,680 20,776
Write-ofWW f of deferred financing fees and debt discount — 12,063 —
Loss on extinguishment of debt — 1,148 —
Amortization of contract liabilities (4,380) (5,616) (5,678)
Accretion of contract liabilities 880 1,561 2,053
Lease right-of-use asset expense 5,911 — —
Loss from equity method investment — — 3,902
Change in fair value of warrant liability and contingent consideration (18,492) (26,123) 9,647
Share-based compensation 69,628 46,780 19,160
Deferred income taxes (227) (2,196) (1,604)
Payment of PIK interest (1,106) (8,717) —
Other 4,783 2,270 1,094
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net and other receivables (16,188) (31,469) 8,104
Prepaid expenses and other assets (3,926) (4,810) (378)
Accounts payable and accrued expense (8,904) 9,381 9,239
Operating lease liabilities (1,751) — —
Deferred revenue (2,623) (527) (15,777)

Net cash provided by (used in) used in operating activities (49,657) (54,103) 14,761
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of VisualizeVV Health — — (2,000)
Acquisition of MindSciences — — 140
Acquisition of CareLinx — (54,774) —
Acquisition of doc.ai — (16,784) —
Purchases of property and equipment (3,687) (2,423) (1,814)
Capitalized internal-use software costs (40,667) (38,406) (15,497)

Net cash used in investing activities (44,354) (112,387) (19,171)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock and warrants, net of issuance costs — 50,000 6,774
Proceeds from issuance of debt — 20,000 38,000
Repayment of debt — (66,350) (40,000)
Net proceeds from Reverse Recapitalization with Falcon Capital Acquisition Corp. — 426,240 —
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options 6,692 5,964 336
Repurchased shares of common stock related to exercise of employee stock options — (19,581) —
Payments for shares repurchased (250) — —
Payments on financing lease obligations (931) (1,052) (1,268)
Financing costs — (1) (72)

Net cash provided by financing activities 5,511 415,220 3,770
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (97) (228) (435)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (88,597) 248,502 (1,075)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 271,105 22,603 23,678
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 182,508 $ 271,105 $ 22,603
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,112 $ 19,946 $ 9,942
Cash paid for income taxes $ 24 $ 52 $ 162
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Noncash financing activities:
CareLinx working capital adjustment $ 659 $ — $ —
Deferred offering costs not yet paid $ — $ — $ 2,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Sharecare, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business
Sharecare, Inc. (“Sharecare” or the “Company”) was founded in 2009 to develop an interactive health and wellness platform and began operations in

October 2010. Sharecare’s virtual health platform is designed to help people, patients, providers, employers, health plans, government organizations, and
communities optimize individual and population-wide well-being by driving positive behavior change. The platform is designed to connect each
stakeholder to the health management tools they need to drive engagement, establish sustained participation, increase satisfaction, reduce costs, and
improve outcomes. Sharecare bridges scientifically validated clinical programs with content to deliver a personalized experience for its members,
beginning with the RealAge® test, Sharecare’s health risk assessment that shows members the true age of their body,yy capitalizing on people’s innate
curiosity of how “young” they are to draw them into the platform. The Sharecare platform provides members with a personalized action plan to guide and
educate them on the habits and behaviors making the biggest impact, both positive and negative, on their RealAge. Sharecare provides the resources
members need to manage their health through lifestyle or disease management and coaching programs, such as diabetes management and smoking
cessation, well-being solutions, such as financial health and anxiety management; care navigation tools such as find-a-doctor, prescription savings, clinical
decision support, medical records, home care, and more. Sharecare recently launched Sharecare+, a digital-first, comprehensive advocacy solution designed
to deliver value through benefits navigation, clinical engagement, virtual care, and chronic case and utilization management. Additionally,yy Sharecare
provides secure, automated release of information, audit and business consulting services to streamline the medical records process for medical facilities.
Sharecare delivers value via its provider, enterprise, and life sciences channels.

SPAPP C TrTT ansaction

On July 1, 2021, Falcon Capital Acquisition Corp., the Company’s predecessor and a Delaware corporation (“FCAC”), consummated the business
combination (the “Business Combination”) pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated February 12, 2021 (the “Merger
Agreement”), with Sharecare, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Legacy Sharecare”), FCAC Merger Sub Inc., a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of FCAC (“Merger Sub”), and the stockholder representative. Immediately upon the completion of the Business Combination and the other
transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (the “Transactions”), Merger Sub merged with and into Legacy Sharecare with Legacy Sharecare
surviving the merger as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as successor to FCAC). In addition, in connection with the consummation of the
Business Combination, the Company changed its name to “Sharecare, Inc.” and Legacy Sharecare changed its name to “Sharecare Operating Company,yy
Inc.”

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, FCAC acquired all of the outstanding equity interests of Legacy Sharecare in a transaction valued at
approximately $3.82 billion. At Closing, Legacy Sharecare stockholders received an aggregate of 271,051,959 shares of the Company’s common stock, par
value $0.0001 per share (the “common stock”) and approximately $91.7 million in cash consideration paid on a pro rata basis with respect to Cash Electing
Shares (as defined in the Merger Agreement). As a result of the Business Combination, the Company received gross proceeds of over $571 million, prior to
transaction expenses and payment of cash consideration. The Business Combination is further described in Note 2.

During July 2021, the Company settled substantially all of its existing indebtedness, totaling $178.4 million in connection with the consummation of
the Business Combination and pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement. The Company still maintains a senior secured revolving credit facility (the
“Revolving Facility”) pursuant to the Senior Secured Credit Agreement (as defined herein).

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation Policy

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP”) as determined by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FAFF SB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) and
pursuant to the regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the merger between Merger Sub and Legacy Sharecare was accounted for as a reverse recapitalization in
accordance with GAAP (the “Reverse Recapitalization”). Under this method of accounting, FCAC was treated as the “acquired” company and Legacy
Sharecare was treated as the acquirer for financial reporting purposes.
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Sharecare, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

Accordingly,yy for accounting purposes, the Reverse Recapitalization was treated as the equivalent of Legacy Sharecare issuing stock for the net assets
of FCAC, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of FCAC are stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded.

Legacy Sharecare was determined to be the accounting acquirer in the Business Combination based on the following predominant factors at the time
of the Transactions:

• Legacy Sharecare’s existing stockholders have the greatest voting interest in the Company;

• The largest individual minority stockholder in the Company was a stockholder of Legacy Sharecare;

• Legacy Sharecare’s directors represent the maja ority of the new board of directors of the Company;

• Legacy Sharecare’s senior management is the senior management of the Company; and

• Legacy Sharecare is the larger entity based on historical revenue and has the larger employee base.

The consolidated assets, liabilities, and results of operations prior to the Reverse Recapitalization are those of Legacy Sharecare. The shares and
corresponding capital amounts and losses per share, prior to the Reverse Recapitalization, have been retroactively restated based on shares reflecting the
exchange ratio of 71.26 (the “Exchange Ratio”) established in the Business Combination.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Sharecare, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Segment Information

The Company operates as a single operating segment. The Company’s chief operating decision maker is its chief executive officer, who reviews
financial information presented on a consolidated basis for purposes of making operating decisions, assessing financial performance, and allocating
resources for the entire company.

Change in Accounting Estimate

During the fourth quarter of 2022, the Company re-evaluated the remaining useful life of the prepaid research and development agreement and
determined that it expects to realize the remaining $6.0 million of benefits from the arrangement through December 31, 2023. As of December 31, 2022,
$4.8 million of benefits from the arrangement remained.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Significant estimates and assumptions reflected in these consolidated financial statements are revenue recognition, the
valuation of assets and liabilities acquired in business combinations, the valuation of common stock prior to the Business Combination, stock-based
compensation, and income taxes. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience, known trends, and other market-specific or other relevant
factors that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates its estimates, as there are changes in
circumstances, facts and experience. Changes in estimates are recorded in the period in which they become known. Actual results may differ from those
estimates or assumptions.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. The Company’s cash deposits are held with well-known financial institutions and may exceed federally insured limits. The Company grants
credit to its customers during the normal course of business and generally requires no collateral from its customers.

Domestic revenues from operations represent approximately 97%, 95%, and 95% of total revenue during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021
and 2020, respectively. One customer accounted for 9%, 11%, and 16% of the Company’s total revenues during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021
and 2020, respectively.
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Sharecare, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021 there was one customer that individually accounted for 7% and 11%, respectively,yy of the Company’s accounts
receivable, net.

Fair VaVV lue Measurements

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities
approximates fair value due to their short-term nature.

The Company measures financial assets and liabilities at fair value at each reporting period using a fair value hierarchy that requires management to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received from selling
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between willing market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is estimated by
applying the following hierarchy,yy which prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value into three levels and bases the categorization within the hierarchy
upon the lowest level of input that is available and significant to the fair value measurement:

• Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

• Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities

• Level 3 — Inputs that are generally unobservable and typically reflect management’s estimate of assumptions that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or liability

Assetstt and Liabilities that arerr MeMM asurerr d at Fair VaVV lue on a NoNN n-rerr curring Basis

Assets and liabilities that may be measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis relate primarily to the Company’s tangible fixed assets, equity
method investment, and other intangible assets. For these assets, the Company does not periodically adjd ust the carrying value to fair value except in the
event of impairment. When the Company determines that an impairment has occurred, the carrying value of the asset is reduced to its fair value and an
impairment charge is recorded within operating income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss.

Further, in connection with business combinations and asset acquisitions, the values of certain assets acquired have been recorded at fair value using
Level 3 inputs. The fair values of definite-lived intangible assets acquired in these acquisitions were estimated primarily based on the income approach.
The income approach estimates fair value based on the present value of the cash flows that an asset is expected to generate in the future. The Company
develops internal estimates for the expected cash flows from acquired assets and estimates of discount rates used in the present value calculations. In
certain instances, the Company also estimates fair value based on market multiples of comparable companies, when using the market approach.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
purchase. Cash equivalents generally consist of investments in money market funds.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable consists of trade accounts receivable which are due under normal trade terms requiring payment typically within 45 days from
the invoice date. Bad debts are provided for based on historical experience and management’s evaluation of outstanding accounts receivable at the end of
each year. It is reasonably possible that the estimates will change in the near term. Management evaluates whether accounts are delinquent on a case-by-
case basis and based on historical experience.

The changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts are as follows (in thousands):
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Sharecare, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

YearYY Ended December 31,
2022 2021

Allowance for doubtful accounts – beginning balance $ 6,212 $ 5,707
Provision for doubtful accounts 3,210 3,029
Amounts written off and other adjd ustments (2,225) (2,524)
Allowance for doubtful accounts – ending balance $ 7,197 $ 6,212

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at the original acquisition cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Business Combinations

The Company accounts for business acquisitions in accordance with ASC ToTT pic 805, Business Combinations. The Company measures the cost of an
acquisition as the aggregate of the acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred by the acquirer, the liabilities incurred by the acquirer to former
owners of the acquiree, the liabilities assumed by the acquirer from the acquiree, and the equity instruments issued by the acquirer. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition are expensed as incurred. The Company records goodwill for the excess of (i) the total costs of acquisition and fair
value of any noncontrolling interests over (ii) the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the acquired business.

Other Long-TeTT rm Assets

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, other long-term assets included security deposits associated with the leasing of office space, tax credits that can
be used to reduce the Company’s foreign taxable income (or that are receivable in cash if not used within three years), and other long-term assets related to
a recent acquisition.

As of December 31, 2022, other long-term assets included operating lease right-of-use assets due to the adoption of ASC 842 (Note 6) and an asset
acquired from a related party (Note 14).

As of December 31, 2021, other long-term assets included a non-cash payment for up-front research and development costs related to the issuance of
Series A redeemable convertible preferred stock. Amortization for the non-cash payment for up-front research and development costs is recorded to
product and technology in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss on a straight-line basis. See table in Note 4.

Intangible Assets

The Company amortizes identified intangible assets with finite lives over their respective useful lives on a straight-line basis which approximates the
pattern in which the economic benefits are consumed. Intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized, but are subjected to annual tests
of impairment or more frequently if indicators of impairment are identified.

Intangible assets have useful lives within the following ranges:

Internal use software 3–5 years
TeTT chnology – features/content 7–15 years
Trade name 4–indefinite years
Customer relationships 9–16 years

Contract Liabilities

In connection with certain acquisitions, the Company has recognized current and noncurrent contract liabilities, representing off-market values
associated with certain wellness program royalty agreements (amortization will continue through 2023). Additionally,yy the prior year balances as of
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 included certain contract liabilities related to office lease agreements prior to the adoption of ASC 842 in the
current year. Amortization of these contract liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2022 was $4.4 million. Of that amount, $1.8 million was included
within cost of revenues and $2.6 million was included in general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
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and Comprehensive Loss. Amortization of these contract liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $5.6 million. Of that amount, $1.7 million
was included within cost of revenues and $3.9 million was included in general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations
and Comprehensive Loss. Amortization of these contract liabilities during the year ended December 31, 2020 was $5.7 million. Of that amount, $1.7
million was included within cost of revenues and $4.0 million was included in general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Loss. Additionally,yy the Company has recognized certain contract liabilities due to a related party in the amount of
$16.9 million, related to service agreements, of which $10.0 million is classified as current and recorded in accrued expenses and other current liabilities
and $6.9 million is classified as noncurrent and recorded in other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Deferred Financing Fees, Net

In connection with obtaining loans, the Company incurred and capitalized fees that were settled in cash and warrants. In addition, in connection with
the modification of historical convertible debt instruments and through the issuance of convertible debt instruments, the Company had a beneficial
conversion feature on its Series B, Series B-3 and Series B-4 Convertible Notes that were outstanding prior to the Business Combination. The financing
fees and beneficial conversion features were amortized over the life of the loans as a component of interest expense. In July 2021, the Company’s Series B,
Series B-3 and Series B-4 Convertible Notes were fully converted into common stock in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination
(see Note 8). During the year ended December 31, 2022, expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss related
to deferred financing fees totaled $0.3 million, which represented the amortization of financing fees. During the year ended December 31, 2021, expense
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss related to deferred financing fees totaled $15.5 million, which primarily
consisted of the loss on conversion of debt. During the year ended December 31, 2020, expense recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations
and Comprehensive Loss related to deferred financing fees totaled $6.8 million, which represented the amortization of financing fees and beneficial
conversion features.

Income TaTT xes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability method under which deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
the differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities with consideration given to net operating losses and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected
to reverse.

The Company assesses the likelihood that deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income, and a valuation allowance is established
when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts more likely than not expected to be realized. The Company classifies its deferred income taxes
as noncurrent on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Deferred Revenue

The Company records contract liabilities pursuant to ASC 606 which consist of deferred revenue and contract billings in excess of earned revenue.

Deferred revenues arise from contracts that permit upfront billing and the collection of fees covering the entire contractual service period, which is
generally six to twelve months and in advance of the satisfaction of the performance obligations identified within the related contract. As of December 31,
2022 and 2021, such fees were $9.0 million and $11.7 million, respectively. The Company recognized $6.4 million of revenue during the year ended
December 31, 2022 that was included in deferred revenue at December 31, 2021. The Company recognized $7.7 million of revenue during the year ended
December 31, 2021 that was included in deferred revenue at December 31, 2020.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised good or service is transferred to the customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for that good or service. Sales and usage-based taxes are excluded from revenue. The Company serves a
diverse group of clients. WeWW are the principal in all outstanding revenue arrangements except for certain CareLinx revenue arrangements, for which such
amounts are not material. CareLinx has B2C and B2B2C service lines for which CareLinx is the agent and we recognize the commission revenue based on
the amount billed using the “as-invoiced” practical expedient.
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Enterpr rise Revenue

The Company provides employers and health plans with health management programs for their employee base or covered population, including
digital engagement, telephonic coaching, incentives, biometrics, patient care managed health, and advocacy solutions. Revenue is recognized overtime on a
per member per month (“PMPM”) basis for a portion of revenue and based on individual product offerings being purchased by each individual customer
which may vary based on the timing of delivery of services against those performance obligations. Member participation fees are generally determined by
multiplying the contractually negotiated member rate by the number of members eligible for services during the month. Member participation rates are
established during contract negotiations with customers, often based on a portion of the value the programs are expected to create. Contracts with health
plans and integrated health care systems generally range from three-to-five-years with several comprehensive strategic agreements extending for longer
periods. Contracts with self-insured employers typically have two-to-four-year terms.

Health management program contracts often include a fee for the subscription of the Sharecare digital platform which may also be sold on a stand-
alone basis. This service allows members to access the proprietary health engagement mobile application with a comprehensive suite of health and wellness
management programs, content, and tools. Revenue is recognized on a per member or a fixed fee basis over time as the services are provided.

The Company provides customers with Blue Zones Project solutions, a turnkey program for communities to apply the Blue Zone Project program
principles, enabling community sponsors such as health plans, employers, and health systems, with a way to improve the health of their community in a
tangible, measurable way. These contracts generally include two performance obligations, the discovery period and the subsequent content delivery for
each year of engagement. The revenue is recognized based on the relative standalone selling price of the performance obligations evenly over time. These
contracts do not include termination clauses and often have two-to-four-year terms.

The Company’s doc.ai offering unlocks the value of health data through licensing artificial intelligence modules and through the creation of products
for a portfolio of clients including payors, pharma, and providers. These contracts generally include two performance obligations. The software license and
maintenance/support are considered one series of distinct performance obligations and professional services is considered a separate distinct performance
obligation. Revenue is recognized for all identified performance obligations over time as services are delivered.

The Company’s CareLinx offerings are focused on connecting caregivers with facilities or individuals that are in need of additional support. These
services are generally considered a series of distinct performance obligations. Revenue is recognized for all identified performance obligations as billed
using the “as-invoiced” practical expedient.

Certain contracts place a portion of fees at risk based on achieving certain performance metrics, such as customer cost savings, and/or clinical
outcomes improvements (performance-based). The Company uses the most likely amount method to estimate variable consideration for these performance
guarantees. The Company includes in the transaction price some, or all, of a variable consideration amount only to the extent that it is probable that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. The Company utilizes customer data to measure performance. Performance-based fees subject to refund that the Company has not
recognized as revenues are generally due to either the: (1) data from the customer is insufficient or incomplete to measure performance; or (2) interim
performance measures indicate that it is not probable that the Company will meet the relevant performance target(s). As of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
such fees included within deferred revenue were $4.4 million and $3.9 million, respectively.

Customers are generally billed monthly for the entire amount of the fees contractually due for the prior month’s enrollment, which typically includes
the amount, if any,yy that is performance-based and may be subject to refund should performance targets not be met. Fees for participation are typically billed
in the month after the services are provided. Deferred revenues arise from contracts that permit upfront billing and collection of fees covering the entire
contractual service period, generally six months to a year. A limited number of contracts provide for certain performance-based fees that cannot be billed
until after they are reconciled with the customer.

In the event that performance measures are not met by the end of the measurement period, typically one year, some or all of the performance-based
fees are required to be refunded. During the settlement process under a contract, which generally occurs six to eight months after the end of a contract year,
performance-based fees are reconciled and settled.
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Approximately $7.7 million, $10.0 million, and $12.5 million of revenues recognized during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020,
respectively,yy were performance-based. As of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, the cumulative amount of performance-based revenues that had met the
criteria for recognition and had been recognized but had not yet been settled with customers, totaled $6.3 million, $5.7 million and $7.3 million,
respectively,yy all of which were based on actual results. During the year ended December 31, 2022, $1.4 million was recognized in revenue that related to
services provided prior to December 31, 2021.

Prorr vider Revenue

Provider revenue is primarily based on services which provide data and information-driven solutions for healthcare providers that are tailored to
improve productivity and efficiency and enhance patient care and management while upholding the latest compliance, security,yy and privacy standards.
Revenue is based on the volume of health document requests fulfilled and recognized upon satisfactory delivery to the customer. In addition, provider
revenue is derived from subscription fees for various technology-related services that assist providers with efficiency,yy productivity,yy quality,yy performance
and risk-adjd ustment tools, billing contract compliance and enhanced patient care. Subscription fees are recognized ratably over a one-to-three-year
contractual period.

Lifeff Sciences Revenue

The Company generates life sciences revenue mostly through ad sponsorships and content delivery. Content delivery revenue is recognized when the
content is delivered to the customer. Ad sponsorship revenue is recognized when the contractual page views or impressions are delivered and the
transaction has met the criteria for revenue recognition.

Certain customer transactions may contain multiple performance obligations that may include delivery of content, page views, and ad sponsorship
over time. ToTT account for each of these elements separately,yy the delivered elements must be capable of being distinct and must be distinct in the context of
the contract.

Remaining Perfoff rmance Obligations

Remaining performance obligations represent contracted revenues that are non-cancellable and have not yet been recognized due to unsatisfied or
partially satisfied performance obligations. This includes deferred revenues and amounts that will be invoiced and recognized as revenues in future periods.
As of December 31, 2022, future estimated revenue related to performance obligations with terms of more than one year that are unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied at the end of the reporting period was approximately $110.3 million. As of December 31, 2022, the Company expects to recognize revenue on
approximately 67% of these unsatisfied performance obligations over the following 24 months and the remainder thereafter.

Disaggrerr gated Revenue

The following table presents the Company’s revenues disaggregated by revenue source (in thousands):

YearYY Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Enterprise $ 258,642 $ 243,404 $ 188,339
Provider 104,170 90,921 79,324
Life Sciences 79,603 78,490 61,142
ToTT tal Revenue $ 442,415 $ 412,815 $ 328,805

One-TiTT me Contribution

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company recorded $1 million of revenue to the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Loss related to a one-time contribution received during the fourth quarter of 2022 in connection with its development of a consumer-facing
health education virtual reality experience.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries is the respective local currency. All asset and liability accounts of the Company’s
foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Adjd ustments resulting from translating foreign
functional currency financial statements into U.S. dollars are recorded as a
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separate component on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss. Equity transactions are translated using historical exchange
rates. Expenses are translated using the average exchange rate during the year.

Foreign currency transaction gains (losses) are included in other expense in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Loss. Foreign currency transaction gains (losses) during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 were immaterial.

Advertising expense

Advertising costs, which are expensed as incurred, totaled $10.3 million, $8.8 million and $6.8 million in 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Employee Benefit Plan

The Company has established a defined contribution savings plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. This plan covers substantially
all employees who meet minimum age and service requirements and allows participants to defer a portion of their annual compensation on a pretax basis,
subject to legal limitations. Company contributions to the plan may be made at the discretion of the Company’s board of directors. The Company
contributed $2.0 million, $1.5 million and $1.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Share-Based Payments

The Company measures compensation for all share-based payment awards granted to employees, directors, and nonemployees, based on the
estimated fair value of the awards on the date of grant. For awards that vest based on continued service, the service-based compensation cost is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of the awards. For service vesting awards with compensation
expense recognized on a straight-line basis, at no point in time does the cumulative grant date value of vested awards exceed the cumulative amount of
compensation expense recognized. The grant date fair value of stock options that contain service or performance conditions is estimated using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model. The Company accounts for forfeitures as they occur.

For awards that contain performance conditions, compensation cost attributable to the period for which the requisite service has already been
rendered is recognized in the period in which it becomes probable that the performance target will be achieved. Compensation cost for which requisite
service has not yet been rendered, but for which it is probable that the performance target will be achieved, is recognized prospectively over the remaining
requisite service period. In some cases, the period in which the performance target can be achieved is different than the requisite services period.
Performance awards, for which the performance target is not achieved upon the date the employee stops rendering services, are forfeited.

For awards that vest upon a liquidity event or a change in control, the performance condition is not probable of being achieved until the event
occurs. As a result, no compensation expense is recognized until the performance-based vesting condition is achieved, at which time the cumulative
compensation expense will be recognized.

Net Loss Per Share

The Company follows the two-class method when computing net loss per share as the Company has issued shares that meet the definition of
participating securities. The two-class method determines net loss per share for each class of common and participating securities according to dividends
declared or accumulated and participation rights in undistributed earnings. The two-class method requires income or loss available to common stockholders
for the period to be allocated between common and other participating securities based upon their respective rights to receive dividends as if all income or
losses for the period had been distributed. However, the Company’s redeemable convertible preferred stock contractually entitles the holders of such shares
to participate in dividends, but contractually does not require the holders of such shares to participate in losses of the Company. In periods in which the
Company reports a net loss attributable to common stockholders, diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is the same as basic net
loss per share attributable to common stockholders since dilutive common shares are not assumed to have been issued, as their effect is anti-dilutive. The
Company reported a net loss attributable to common stockholders for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020.

Basic net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period. Diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders is computed by
adjd usting net losses attributable to common stockholders to reallocate
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undistributed earnings based on the potential impact of dilutive securities. Diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by
dividing the diluted net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period,
including potential dilutive common shares.

Other Income (Expense)

For the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, other income (expense) consisted of the following (in thousands):

YearYY Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Re-measurement of contingent consideration $ 10,113 $ 13,447 $ (6,211)
Re-measurement of warrant liabilities 8,379 12,676 (3,436)
Other 1,723 884 (62)
ToTT tal other income (expense) $ 20,215 $ 27,007 $ (9,709)

Accounting Standards Not YeYY t Adopted

As an emerging growth company (“EGC”), the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (“JOBS Act”) allows the Company to delay adoption of new or
revised accounting pronouncements applicable to public companies until such pronouncements are applicable to private companies (that is, those that have
not had a registration statement declared effective under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or do not have a class of securities
registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)). The Company has elected to use this extended transition period
under the JOBS Act until such time as the Company is no longer considered to be an EGC. The adoption dates discussed below reflect this election.

Crerr dit Losses. In June 2016, the FAFF SB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (ToTT pic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments (“ASU 2016-13”), which is intended to improve the timing, and enhance the accounting and disclosure, of credit losses on financial
assets. This update modified the existing accounting guidance related to the impairment evaluation for available-for-sale debt securities, reinsurance
recoverables, and accounts receivables and could result in the creation of an allowance for credit losses as a contra-asset account. The ASU requires a
cumulative-effect change to retained earnings in the period of adoption, to the extent applicable. The amendments in ASU 2016-13 are effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within the fiscal year. Based on the Company’s evaluation, the adoption is not expected
to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Stock Compm ensation. In June 2018, the FAFF SB issued ASU No. 2018-07, Compensation-Stock Compensation (ToTT pic 718): Improvements to
Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting. The standard largely aligns the accounting for share-based payment awards issued to employees and non-
employees by expanding the scope of ASC 718 to apply to non-employee share-based transactions, as long as the transaction is not effectively a form of
financing. The Company adopted ASU 2018-07 on January 1, 2020, and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2019, the FAFF SB issued ASU No. 2019-08, Compensation-Stock Compensation (ToTT pic 718) and Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (ToTT pic 606): Codification Improvements – Share Based Consideration Issued to a Customer. The update requires that an entity measure and
classify share-based payment awards to a customer by applying the guidance in ToTT pic ASC 718. The Company adopted ASU 2019-08 on January 1, 2020,
and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Business Combination. In October 2021, the FAFF SB issued ASU No. 2021-08, Business Combination (ToTT pic 805): Accounting for Contracts Assets
and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers. The update requires acquiring entities to apply ToTT pic 606 to recognize and measure contract assets
and contract liabilities, such as deferred revenue, in a business combination and eliminates the requirement to recognize such items at fair value as of the
acquisition date. For public business entities, the amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022. Early
adoption of the amendments is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. The Company elected to early adopt ASU No. 2021-08
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during the fourth quarter of 2021. As such, the Company retrospectively applied the update to all business combinations for which the acquisition date
occurred on or after January 1, 2021. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Leases. In February 2016, the FAFF SB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (ToTT pic 842). Lessees are required to recognize most leases on their balance sheet
as a right-of-use (“ROU”) asset and a lease liability. For income statement purposes, the FAFF SB retained a dual model, requiring leases to be classified as
either operating leases or finance leases. Classification is based on criteria that are largely similar to those applied in prior lease accounting, but without
explicit bright lines. Lessor accounting is similar to the current model but updated to align with certain changes to the lessee model and the revenue
recognition guidance in ASC 606.

In July 2018, the FAFF SB approved an additional optional transition method by allowing entities to initially apply the new leases standard at the
adoption date and recognize a cumulative-effect adjd ustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the period of adoption. As of January 1, 2022,
the Company adopted the standard using this optional transition method. The accounting for capital leases remained substantially unchanged. The
Company has applied the available package of practical expedients, as well as the election not to apply recognition and measurement requirements to short-
term leases. See Note 6 for further details.

InII come taxes. In December 2019, the FAFF SB issued ASU 2019-12, Simplifying the Accounting for Income TaTT xes. ASU 2019-12 eliminates certain
exceptions related to the approach for intraperiod tax allocation, the methodology for calculating income taxes in an interim period and the recognition of
deferred tax liabilities for outside basis differences. It also clarifies and simplifies other aspects of the accounting for income taxes. The Company adopted
ASU 2019-12 on January 1, 2022, and the adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

2. Business Combination

As discussed in Note 1, on June 29, 2021, FCAC held a special meeting of stockholders (the “Special Meeting”) at which the FCAC stockholders
considered and adopted, among other matters, the Merger Agreement. On July 1, 2021, the parties to the Merger Agreement consummated the
Transactions, with Legacy Sharecare surviving the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Shares of Legacy Sharecare common stock issued and outstanding were canceled and converted into the right to receive 71.26 shares of common
stock. Unless otherwise stated, the Exchange Ratio has been applied to the number of shares and share prices of Legacy Sharecare throughout these
consolidated financial statements.

Prior to the Special Meeting, holders of 19,864,030 shares of FCAC’s Class A common stock sold in FCAC’s initial public offering exercised their
right to redeem those shares for cash at a price of approximately $10.00 per share, for an aggregate redemption price of approximately $198.6 million.
Immediately after giving effect to the Business Combination (including as a result of the redemptions described above), there were 333,875,179 issued and
outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock (excluding the Earnout Shares, as defined herein). In addition, at the closing of the Business
Combination, the Company issued 5,000,000 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series A Preferred Stock”) upon exchange of the shares
of Legacy Sharecare Series D redeemable convertible preferred stock held by one investor in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, 1,713,000 shares of common stock are held in escrow and shall be released to the sponsor of FCAC (the
“Sponsor Earnout Shares”). In addition, 1,500,000 shares of common stock are held in escrow and shall be released to Legacy Sharecare stockholders and
option holders (the Sharecare Earnout Shares and, together with the Sponsor Earnout Shares, the “Earnout Shares”). The Earnout Shares are subject to
release upon achieving certain triggering events as defined in the Merger Agreement. The earnout conditions have not been satisfied as of December 31,
2022. The Earnout Shares allocated to Legacy Sharecare stockholders are accounted for as liability instruments and classified within Level 1 as they are
publicly traded and have an observable market price in an active market (see Note 3). The Earnout Shares allocated to the Legacy Sharecare option holders
are classified as equity instruments and accounted for under ASC 718.

The Business Combination was accounted for as a Reverse Recapitalization, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded, in accordance with
GAAP.PP Under this method of accounting, FCAC was treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly,yy for accounting
purposes, the Business Combination was treated as the equivalent of Legacy Sharecare issuing stock for the net assets of FCAC, accompanied by a
recapitalization. The cash of $146.4 million,
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which included cash previously held in the FCAC trust (net of redemptions), and working capital accounts of FCAC were recorded at historical cost, which
approximates fair value. The Company also assumed the private placement warrants and public warrants (each as defined herein) from FCAC, which were
recorded based on the acquisition date fair value (see Note 3). Cash paid for issuance costs and advisory fees were approximately $54.0 million.
Additionally,yy in connection with the Business Combination, the Company made one-time bonus payments of $11.6 million to certain executives which has
been recorded in General and Administrative expense, and resulted in a reduction in operating cash flows.

Upon the closing of the Business Combination, the Company’s certificate of incorporation was amended and restated to, among other things,
increase the total number of authorized shares of all classes of capital stock to 615,000,000 shares, of which 600,000,000 shares are designated as common
stock, par value of $0.0001 per share, and 15,000,000 shares are designated as preferred stock, par value of $0.0001 per share, including 5,000,000 shares
of Series A Preferred Stock.

In connection with the Business Combination, FCAC entered into subscription agreements, each dated as of February 12, 2021, with certain
investors (the “Investors”), pursuant to which, among other things, FCAC issued and sold, in private placements, an aggregate of 42,560,000 shares of
FCAC Class A common stock for $10.00 per share (the “Private Placement”). The Private Placement closed immediately prior to the Business
Combination. The shares of FCAC Class A common stock issued to the Investors became shares of the Company’s common stock upon consummation of
the Business Combination.

The following table reconciles the elements of the Business Combination to the net proceeds from Reverse Recapitalization with FCAC, as set forth
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2021 (in thousands):

Recapitalization
Cash received from Private Placement financing $ 425,600
Cash paid to Legacy Sharecare stockholders (91,698)
Cash received from FCAC trust and cash on hand, net of redemptions 146,363
Cash paid for issuance costs and advisory fees (54,025)
Net proceeds from Reverse Recapitalization with FCAC $ 426,240

The following table reconciles the number of shares of common stock of FCAC to common stock of the Company immediately following the
consummation of the Business Combination, as reflected on the Consolidated Statement of Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest, Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock, and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) for the year ended December 31, 2021 (share numbers are not in thousands):

Recapitalization
Common stock, outstanding prior to Business Combination 34,500,000
FCAC Sponsor shares 5,627,250
Earnout Shares 3,213,000
Common stock of FCAC 43,340,250
Less: redemption of FCAC shares (19,864,030)
Shares issued in Private Placement financing 42,560,000
Legacy Sharecare shares converted to common stock 271,051,959
ToTT tal shares of common stock immediately after Business Combination 337,088,179

3. Fair VaVV lue Measurements

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, warrant liabilities, and
contingent consideration liabilities. Cash equivalents are comprised of money market funds stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value at the
balance sheet dates, due to the short period of time to maturity. Accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities are stated at their carrying
value, which approximates fair value due to the short time to the expected settlement date. The warrant liabilities and contingent consideration liabilities
relate to previous acquisitions and the Business Combination and are recorded at estimated fair value.
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The following tables present the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities measured at fair value as of December 31, 2022 (in thousands):

December 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 TotalTT Fair ValueVV

Cash equivalents
Money market funds $ 10,526 $ — $ — $ 10,526

ToTT tal cash equivalents at fair value $ 10,526 $ — $ — $ 10,526

Liabilities
WaWW rrant liabilities $ 2,441 $ — $ — $ 2,441
Contingent consideration - other liabilities — — 1,879 1,879
ToTT tal liabilities at fair value $ 2,441 $ — $ 1,879 $ 4,320

December 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 TotalTT Fair ValueVV

Cash equivalents
Money market funds $ 10,955 $ — $ — $ 10,955

ToTT tal cash equivalents at fair value $ 10,955 $ — $ — $ 10,955

Liabilities
WaWW rrant liabilities $ 10,820 $ — $ — $ 10,820
Contingent consideration - other liabilities — — 13,897 13,897
ToTT tal liabilities at fair value $ 10,820 $ — $ 13,897 $ 24,717

The warrants included in the units issued in FCAC’s initial public offering (the “public warrants”) and the warrants issued by FCAC simultaneously
with its initial public offering in a private placement (the “private placement warrants”), were both classified within Level 1 as they are publicly traded and
have observable market prices in an active market. The public warrants and private placement warrants are both exercisable for one share of common stock
at an exercise price of $11.50.

Contingent consideration was classified within Level 3 as it was valued using certain unobservable inputs. The fair value of the contingent
consideration is estimated based on the Company’s stock price and number of shares expected to be issued related to acquisitions in prior years. The fair
value of the Earnout Shares allocated to Legacy Sharecare stockholders and FCAC Sponsors are included in contingent consideration and are estimated
using a Monte Carlo simulation with inputs for the Company’s stock price, expected volatility,yy risk-free rate, first and second earnout hurdles and expected
term.

The following is a schedule of changes to the contingent consideration - other liabilities classified as Level 3 for the periods presented (in
thousands):

December 31, 2020 $ 9,271
Contingent consideration from acquisition 10,305
Antidilution provision for Series D Preferred Stock 6,387
Settlement of contingent consideration for doc.ai acquisition (12,682)
Conversion of Series D Preferred Stock to Series A Preferred Stock (6,451)
Contingent consideration in connection with the Business Combination 21,109

78



Sharecare, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2022

Settlement of contingent consideration for WhitehatAI earnout (595)
Re-measurement of contingent consideration (other (income) expense) (13,447)

December 31, 2021 13,897
Settlement of contingent consideration for Health Data Services (“HDS”) retained shares (1,905)
Re-measurement of contingent consideration (other (income) expense) (10,113)

December 31, 2022 $ 1,879

4. Balance Sheet Components

Prorr po ertytt and Equipi ment

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, property and equipment, net consisted of the following (in thousands):

Estimated Useful
Lives (Years)YY 2022 2021

Computer hardware 3 $ 10,171 $ 14,379
Furniture/fixtures 5–7 1,345 2,055
Leasehold improvements 1–5 2,204 2,678
Other Indefinite — 18
Property and equipment, gross 13,720 19,130
Less: accumulated depreciation (8,638) (14,596)
Property and equipment, net $ 5,082 $ 4,534

Depreciation expense during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 totaled $3.2 million, $2.7 million, and $2.8 million, respectively.

Long-term Assetstt

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, long-term assets consisted of the following (in thousands):
2022 2021

Security deposits $ 572 $ 690
Foreign tax credits 1,811 1,376

Research and development costs — 6,081
Acquisition related assets 1,770 2,257
Operating lease right-of-use assets 7,755 —
Related party contract asset 5,802 —
Other 2,652 1,769
ToTT tal long-term assets $ 20,362 $ 12,173

Accrued Expx enses and Other Currerr nt Liabilities

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):
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2022 2021
Accrued expenses $ 18,526 $ 27,050
Accrued compensation 23,762 16,428
Accrued media costs 4,515 4,816
Accrued taxes 1,602 1,396
Operating lease liabilities, current 2,941 —
Contract liabilities due to a related party,yy current 10,000 —
Accrued expenses due to a related party 18,011 —
Accrued other 2,270 1,963
ToTT tal accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 81,627 $ 51,653

5. Acquisitions

2021

doc.ai

On February 22, 2021, the Company acquired all outstanding equity interests of doc.ai Incorporated. The total purchase price in connection with the
acquisition was $120.6 million, consisting of $29.0 million of cash (comprised of $15.0 million due upon closing and $14.0 million paid via a note
payable), $10.3 million of contingent consideration (comprised of up to 1,145,790 shares of common stock and up to 485,922 stock options), and
$81.3 million in the form of 9,039,117 shares of common stock (8,435,301 issued at closing and 603,816 shares to be issued at the first anniversary of the
acquisition) and 2,444,361 stock options. The note payable and contingent consideration was settled on July 1, 2021 in connection with the Business
Combination. The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with the acquisition are as follows (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,217
Prepaid expenses 244
Other current assets 400
Developed technology 15,668
Customer relationships 17,389
Goodwill 85,811
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (5,965)
Deferred revenue (2,274)
Debt (904)
Deferred tax liability (1,688)
Other long-term liabilities (302)
ToTT tal $ 120,596

The fair value assigned to the developed technology was determined using the relief from royalty method. The fair value of the customer
relationships was determined using the multi-period excess earnings method, which estimates the direct cash flow expected to be generated from the
existing customers acquired. The Company incurred transaction-related expenses of $0.8 million which were recorded under general and administrative
expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss. The Company also incurred compensation expenses of $8.8 million
through the issuance of replacement stock options which were recorded under general and administrative expenses and product and technology expenses in
the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the estimated
acquisition date fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Goodwill also represents the future benefits
as a result of the acquisition that will enhance the Company’s products
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available to both new and existing customers and increase the Company’s competitive position. The goodwill resulting from this acquisition is not tax
deductible. The Company finalized its purchase accounting for the doc.ai acquisition during the fourth quarter of 2021.

Carerr Linx

On August 11, 2021, the Company acquired all outstanding equity interests of CareLinx Inc. (“CareLinx”). The total purchase price in connection
with the acquisition was $64.9 million, consisting of $55.2 million of cash and $9.7 million equity-based consideration, comprised of 1,169,980 shares of
common stock and 295,758 stock options. The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with the acquisition are as follows (in
thousands):

Cash $ 445
Accounts receivable 4,629
Other receivables 59
Prepaid expenses 234
Other current assets 300
Developed technology 14,800
Customer relationships 13,300
Trade name 2,600
Other long-term assets 1,789
Goodwill 31,349
Accrued expenses (1,371)
Contract liabilities - current (45)
Noncurrent contract liabilities (53)
Other long-term liabilities (3,125)
ToTT tal $ 64,911

The fair value assigned to the developed technology was determined using the relief from royalty method. The fair value of customer relationships
was determined using the multi-period excess earnings method, which estimates the direct cash flow expected to be generated from the existing customers
acquired. The Company incurred transaction-related expenses of $1.1 million which were recorded under general and administrative expenses in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the estimated
acquisition date fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Goodwill also represents the future benefits
as a result of the acquisition that will enhance the Company’s services available to both new and existing customers and increase the Company’s
competitive position. The goodwill resulting from this acquisition is not tax deductible. The Company finalized its purchase accounting for the CareLinx
acquisition during the third quarter of 2022.

6. Leases

On January 1, 2022, the Company adopted ASU 2016-02, Leases (ToTT pic 842) using the optional transition method resulting in a cumulative-effect
adjd ustment to the Consolidated Balance Sheet at the adoption date. Comparative financial statements of prior periods have not been adjd usted to apply the
new accounting standard retrospectively. The new method of accounting was applied only to leases that have ongoing minimum lease commitments after
January 1, 2022, excluding short-term leases. As of the adoption date, the Company recognized total ROU assets of $8.1 million, with corresponding lease
liabilities of $9.2 million on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The adoption did not impact the beginning accumulated deficit, or prior year Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss and Statements of Cash Flows. Finance leases are immaterial.

The effect of the January 1, 2022 adoption on key financial statement line items as of December 31, 2022 is as follows (in thousands):
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December 31, 2022

Balance Sheet:

Financial position if ASU 2016-
02 had not been adopted on

January 1, 2022
As reported under ASU 2016-02

adoption $ Change % Change
Prepaid expenses $ 13,042 $ 12,612 $ (430) (3)%
Other long-term assets $ 12,552 $ 20,362 $ 7,810 62 %
ToTT tal assets $ 693,621 $ 701,001 $ 7,380 1 %
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities $ 78,688 $ 81,627 $ 2,939 4 %
Contract liabilities, current $ 1,308 $ 1,535 $ 227 17 %
Contract liabilities, noncurrent $ 209 $ — $ (209) (100)%
Other long-term liabilities $ 11,347 $ 16,723 $ 5,376 47 %
ToTT tal liabilities $ 111,863 $ 120,196 $ 8,333 7 %

Under ToTT pic 842, the Company determines if an arrangement is a lease at contract inception. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are included
in other long-term assets, accrued expenses and other current liabilities, and other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Finance lease
ROU assets and liabilities are included in property and equipment, accounts payable, and other long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Operating ROU assets and lease liabilities are recognized based on the present value of the future fixed lease payments over the lease term at the
commencement date. As most of the Company’s leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company used its quarterly incremental borrowing rate based on
the information available that corresponds to each lease commencement date and lease term when determining the present value of future payments for
operating leases.

The Company’s operating leases principally involve office space. The Company leases office space in Berlin, Germany; and the following states:
Arizona, California, Florida, Georgia, Maryland, Massachusetts, New YoYY rk, North Carolina, TeTT nnessee, and WaWW shington under noncancellable operating
leases expiring at various dates through December 2028.

These leases may contain variable non-lease components consisting of common area maintenance, operating expenses, insurance, and similar costs
of the office space that we occupy. The Company has adopted the practical expedient to not separate these non-lease components from the lease
components and instead account for them as a single lease component for all of the leases. The operating lease ROU assets include future fixed lease
payments made as well as any initial direct costs incurred and exclude lease incentives. VaVV riable lease payments are not included within the operating lease
ROU assets or lease liabilities and are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. The lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the
lease when it is reasonably certain that the Company will exercise that option. Lease expense for minimum lease payments on operating leases is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The Company has elected to not record operating lease ROU assets and liabilities for short-term
leases that have a term of twelve months or less. Lease expense includes short-term lease cost which is not material to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The components of operating lease costs, lease term and discount rate for the year ended December 31, 2022 are as follows (in thousands, except
lease term and discount):
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YeYY ar Ended December 31,
2022

Operating lease costs $ 6,225
VaVV riable lease costs 2,010
Short-term lease expense 190
ToTT tal operating lease costs $ 8,425

WeWW ighted-average remaining lease term (years):
Operating leases 4.1

WeWW ighted-average discount rate:
Operating leases 4.5 %

Operating lease expense was $6.2 million and $6.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,yy under ASC 840. The
Company is also the lessor in three non-cancelable sub-lease agreements with two companies for the Company’s TeTT nnessee office space and one company
for the CareLinx office space in California. Sublease income for year ended December 31, 2022 was $2.1 million.

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows (in thousands):

YeYY ar Ended December 31,
2022

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Payments for operating leases included in cash from operating activities $ 6,798
Assets obtained in exchange for lease obligations:
Operating leases $ 5,410

Estimated future minimum payment obligations for non-cancelable operating leases are as follows as of December 31, 2022 (in thousands):

Leases: Operating Leases
2023 $ 3,282
2024 1,663
2025 1,245
2026 1,248
2027 1,212

Thereafter 457
ToTT tal undiscounted future cash flows 9,107
Less: Imputed interest (814)

Present value of lease liabilities $ 8,293

Lease liabilities, current 2,941
Lease liabilities, noncurrent 5,352

Present value of lease liabilities $ 8,293

The total future minimum rental payments related to the aforementioned subleases to be received as of December 31, 2022 is $0.5 million.
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7. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets and the related accumulated amortization for each class of intangible assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows (in
thousands):

December 31, 2022

Cost
Accumulated
Amortization Net

WeightedWW
AverageAA

Remaining Life
Definite-lived, intangible assets
TeTT chnology – features/content $ 68,083 $ (21,806) $ 46,277 7.8
Trade name 3,549 (1,534) 2,015 4.6
Customer relationships 77,849 (33,549) 44,300 9.1
Internal use software 156,661 (93,703) 62,958 2.1
ToTT tal definite-lived, intangible assets $ 306,142 $ (150,592) $ 155,550

Intangible assets not subject to amortization
Internal use software projects in process $ 2,534 $ — $ 2,534
Indefinite-lived, trade names 5,030 — 5,030
ToTT tal intangible assets not subject to amortization $ 7,564 $ — $ 7,564

ToTT tal intangible assets $ 313,706 $ (150,592) $ 163,114

December 31, 2021

Cost
Accumulated
Amortization Net

WeightedWW
AverageAA

Remaining Life
Definite-lived, intangible assets
TeTT chnology – features/content $ 69,063 $ (24,950) $ 44,113 9.2
Trade name 6,392 (3,932) 2,460 5.5
Customer relationships 77,849 (27,468) 50,381 9.9
Internal use software 121,218 (72,380) 48,838 2.4
ToTT tal definite-lived, intangible assets $ 274,522 $ (128,730) $ 145,792

Intangible assets not subject to amortization
Internal use software projects in process $ 4,264 $ — $ 4,264
Indefinite-lived, trade names 5,030 — 5,030
ToTT tal intangible assets not subject to amortization $ 9,294 $ — $ 9,294

ToTT tal intangible assets $ 283,816 $ (128,730) $ 155,086
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The following tables set forth the changes in the carrying amount of the Company’s goodwill during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
(in thousands):

December 31, 2020 $ 75,736
Additions 117,320
Foreign currency translation adjd ustments (614)

December 31, 2021 192,442
Purchase accounting opening balance sheet adjd ustment (161)
Foreign currency translation adjd ustment (464)

December 31, 2022 $ 191,817

Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized but are subjected to annual tests of impairment. The Company tests
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment annually in the fourth quarter and between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances
change that would indicate that it is more likely than not that the carrying amount may be impaired. The Company initially evaluates qualitative factors to
determine if it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If the qualitative assessment is not conclusive, aa
quantitative assessment of the fair value of a reporting unit is performed to test goodwill for impairment uusing a combination of income and market
approaches. There have been no impairments of goodwill since the Company’s inception.

During the second quarter of 2022, the Company determined a triggering event that required an interim goodwill impairment test as a result of the
sustained decline in the Company’s stock price and associated market capitalization. The fair value of the reporting units for goodwill impairment testing
were determined using both an income approach and market approach. The income approach was based on discounted projected future (debt-free) cash
flows for each reporting unit. The discount rates applied to these cash flows were based on the weighted average cost of capital for each reporting unit,
which takes market participant assumptions into consideration. For the market approach, we used both the guideline company and similar transaction
methods. The guideline company method analyzes market multiples of revenue and EBITDA for a group of comparable public companies. Under the
similar transactions method, valuation multiples are calculated utilizing actual transaction prices and revenue and EBITDA data from target companies
deemed similar to the reporting unit. As a result of the interim test, the fair values of each of our reporting units exceeded their respective book values in
excess of 10%, and the Company determined there was no impairment. An increase of 100 basis points in the weighted average cost of capital or a decrease
of 100 basis points in annual forecasted revenues would have resulted in a 3% and 4% decline in the fair value, respectively of our reporting units which
would not have resulted in impairment. There were no other triggering events during the year ended December 31, 2022.

Amortization expense on intangible assets totaled $42.1 million, $29.9 million and $21.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and
2020, respectively,yy and is included in depreciation and amortization in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss.

The following is a schedule of estimated future amortization expense for intangible assets as of December 31, 2022 (in thousands):

YeYY ar ending December 31:
2023 $ 46,210
2024 36,716
2025 20,870
2026 12,940
2027 11,164
Thereafter 27,650
ToTT tal $ 155,550
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8. Debt

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, debt was comprised of outstanding borrowings $0 and $0.4 million, respectively,yy under the Company’s senior
secured revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”) due February 2023 (see Note 16 Subsequent Events). The Revolving Facility is governed by a
Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2017 (as amended, the “Senior Secured Credit Agreement”), among the Company,yy certain subsidiaries of the
Company,yy as borrowers (the “Borrowers”), the lenders named therein and WeWW lls Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent,
(“Administrative Agent”). Borrowings under the Revolving Facility currently bear interest at either a U.S. base rate plus 2.0%, subject to a floor, or a rate
based on LIBOR plus 2.75% (the related deferred financing fees of $0 and $0.3 million as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively,yy are
presented as other current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets).

In July 2021, the Company settled substantially all of its existing indebtedness, totaling $178.4 million in connection with the consummation of the
Business Combination and pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement. The Company’s Series B, Series B-3 and Series B-4 Convertible Notes were
fully converted into 37,695,910 shares of common stock, adjd usted by the Exchange Ratio of 71.26. The Company recognized a loss on conversion of debt
of $12.1 million related to the write-off of the deferred beneficial conversion feature and warrant costs within interest expense in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss. The Company also repaid in full and terminated its Second Lien Credit Agreement and recognized a
loss on extinguishment of debt of $1.1 million related to unamortized discounts as separately disclosed within the Consolidated Statement of Operations
and Comprehensive Loss for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Senior Securerr d Crerr dit AgA rerr ement

In March 2017, the Company refinanced its existing debt through the execution of the Senior Secured Credit Agreement. The Senior Secured Credit
Agreement provides for a senior secured revolving credit facility with total commitments of $60.0 million. AvAA ailability under the Revolving Facility is
generally subject to a borrowing base based on a percentage of applicable eligible receivables. Borrowings under the Revolving Facility generally bear
interest at a rate equal to, at the applicable Borrower’s option, either (a) a base rate or (b) a rate based on LIBOR, in each case, plus an applicable margin.
The applicable margin is based on a fixed charge coverage ratio and ranges from (i) 1.75% to 2.25% for U.S. base rate loans and (ii) 2.75% to 3.25% for
LIBOR. The Senior Secured Credit Agreement was scheduled to mature on February 10, 2023 (see Note 16 Subsequent Events). Borrowings under the
Senior Secured Credit Agreement are secured by all assets of the Company.

In connection with the consummation of the Business Combination, Legacy Sharecare, the other Borrowers, the Lenders and the Administrative
Agent, entered into an Amendment Number Six to the Senior Secured Credit Agreement (the “Sixth Amendment”). Pursuant to the Sixth Amendment, the
Administrative Agent and Lenders provided certain consents with respect to the consummation of the Transactions and certain amendments were made to
the terms of the Senior Secured Credit Agreement to reflect the Transactions. The Company and certain other subsidiaries of Legacy Sharecare executed
joinders to become a party to the Senior Secured Credit Agreement as required by the Sixth Amendment in July 2021.

The Senior Secured Credit Agreement contains a number of customary affirmative and negative covenants and the Company in compliance with
those covenants as of December 31, 2022. As of December 31, 2022, $51.1 million was available for borrowing under the Revolving Facility net of the
letters of credit (Note 13) and associated miscellaneous fees.
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9. Income TaTT xes

Components of the income tax expense during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 were as follows (in thousands):
2022 2021 2020

Current expense (benefit):
Foreign $ (47) $ 133 $ —
Federal 56 — —
State 12 42 47

21 175 47
Deferred expense (benefit):
Foreign 764 (84) 154
Federal (308) (1,469) (1,404)
State (683) (643) (354)

(227) (2,196) (1,604)
ToTT tal income tax expense (benefit) $ (206) $ (2,021) $ (1,557)

Income tax expense (benefit) differs from the amount that would be calculated by applying federal statutory rates to loss before income taxes
primarily because of the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets. A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate to the Company’s
effective income tax rate is as follows:

2022 2021 2020
Income tax benefit at the federal statutory rate 21.00 % 21.00 % 21.00 %
Change in valuation allowance (30.29)% (22.43)% (23.36)%
State income tax 8.50 % 10.43 % 5.60 %
Permanent: fair market value adjd ustments 3.25 % 6.29 % (3.05)%
Permanent: compensation 1.07 % (0.83)% 0.12 %
Deferred: stock compensation (2.19)% (12.65)% — %
Transaction costs — % 1.80 % — %
Research and development credits (0.12)% 1.20 % — %
Legal settlement — % (1.20)% — %
Other (1.05)% (1.29)% 2.37 %

Effective income tax rate 0.17 % 2.32 % 2.68 %
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The components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2022 and
2021 were as follows (in thousands):

2022 2021
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating losses $ 99,551 $ 82,115
Share-based compensation expense 26,542 10,798
Accrued expenses 3,385 2,787
Property and equipment and internal use software 527 515
Contract liabilities 476 1,705
Interest expense 15,199 14,999
TaTT x credits 4,472 4,518
Deferred revenue 706 814
Intangible assets 10,117 12,961
Intangible assets (indefinite life) 816 816
Other 1,974 3,522
VaVV luation allowance (148,366) (112,146)

ToTT tal deferred tax assets 15,399 23,404

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets (11,471) (19,762)
Intangible assets (indefinite life) (2,194) (1,953)
Beneficial conversion feature — —
Prepaid assets (2,223) —
Other (514) (1,929)

ToTT tal deferred tax liabilities (16,402) (23,644)
Net deferred tax liability $ (1,003) $ (240)

The components of loss from operations, before income taxes, are as follows (in thousands):

2022 2021 2020
Domestic $ (120,766) $ (91,261) $ (55,889)
Foreign 1,075 4,111 (2,227)

ToTT tal loss before income tax expense $ (119,691) $ (87,150) $ (58,116)

The Company has evaluated the positive and negative evidence bearing upon its ability to realize the deferred tax assets. Management has
considered the Company’s history of cumulative net losses incurred since inception and has concluded that it is more likely than not that the Company will
not realize the benefits of the deferred tax assets. Accordingly,yy a valuation allowance has been established against the net deferred tax assets. Therefore, no
federal tax benefit has been recorded for the net operating losses and the research tax credits during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020.
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As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, net operating loss carryforwards are as follows (in thousands):

2022 2021
Net Operating Losses – Federal $ 371,836 $ 310,429
Net Operating Losses – State 325,409 269,521
Net Operating Losses – International 4,284 3,530

ToTT tal net operating losses $ 701,529 $ 583,480

The state and pre-2018 federal net operating loss carryforwards will start to expire in 2023 (through 2037), while the foreign and post-2017 federal
net operating loss carryforwards are indefinite. Of the estimated $371.8 million in federal net operating losses that existed on December 31, 2022,
$161.7 million were generated after 2017 and will not expire. The realization of the Company’s existing net operating losses was analyzed to determine if
any of the losses would be limited under Section 382. It was determined, based on historical ownership changes and acquisitions that, of the $371.8 million
in net operating losses that existed as of December 31, 2022, $279.6 million were subject to Section 382 limitations. Of the 382 limited federal NOLs,
$223.2 million are now available for use, $1.5 million will be limited indefinitely,yy and the remaining $54.9 million in net operating losses are 382 limited
and will become available ratably through 2032.

Federal net operating losses generated in taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017 can be carried forward indefinitely but are limited to 80%
of taxable income in any year. Therefore, taxable temporary differences related to indefinite-lived intangibles may now be used as a source of future
taxable income in assessing the realizability of post-2017 federal loss carryforwards. The realization of the Company’s deferred tax assets (including its net
operating loss carryforwards) has been analyzed and a valuation allowance established where it is not more-likely-than-not to be realized based on positive
and negative evidence. The valuation allowance increased $36.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2022.

Changes in the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follows (in thousands):

2022 2021
VaVV luation allowance as of beginning of the year $ 112,146 $ 90,010
Increases to valuation allowance during the year 36,220 22,136

VaVV luation allowance as of end of year $ 148,366 $ 112,146

The TaTT x Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“TCJA”), as signed by the President of the United States on December 31, 2017, significantly revised U.S. tax
law,ww including the reduction of the U.S. federal corporate tax rate from 35% to 21%, and created a modified territorial taxing system for international
operations. Among the various foreign income inclusion provisions enacted, the Company is directly impacted by the “global intangible low taxed income”
(“GILTLL I”). The Company’s accounting policy election is to treat the GILTLL I tax as a period cost. Under this provision, foreign income generated by its
controlled foreign corporations is subject to U.S. tax; there was no GILTLL I tax for 2022.

The Company has not recognized income tax on the basis difference inherent in its foreign subsidiaries, as these amounts continue to be permanently
reinvested in foreign operations. Foreign income will be subject to U.S. income tax upon repatriation. No determination has been made on the basis
difference of foreign operations or amount of any unrecognized deferred income tax liability related to the basis difference. Determination of the amount is
not practical because of the complexities of the hypothetical calculation.

The Company evaluates tax positions for recognition using a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, and those tax positions eligible for
recognition are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon the effective settlement with a taxing
authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
positions as part of the tax provision. As of December 31, 2022, the Company’s uncertain tax positions were not material and, therefore, accrued interest or
penalties related to uncertain tax positions were also not material. No Federal income taxes were paid in 2022, 2021 and 2020.
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10. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

The following is a schedule of authorized, issued and outstanding shares and amounts of each series of redeemable convertible preferred stock as of
December 31, 2022 (in thousands, except share amounts):

Class of stock Shares Authorized
Shares issued and

outstanding Net carrying value

Aggregate
liquidation
preference

Series A Preferred Stock 5,000,000 5,000,000 $ 58,205 $ 50,000

On April 7, 2021, the Company issued and sold 62,500 shares of Series D Preferred Stock (subject to the potential issuance of additional shares of
Series D Preferred Stock pursuant to certain anti-dilution rights of the holders of the Series D Preferred Stock) for an aggregate cash purchase price of
$50.0 million. The Company recorded the Series D Preferred Stock at fair value of $51.8 million and contingent consideration related to the anti-dilution
provision of $6.4 million. The amount recorded in excess of cash received represents a non-cash payment for up front research and development costs of
$8.2 million, which is recorded in prepaid assets.

The Series D Preferred Stock had substantially similar terms as the Company’s other redeemable convertible preferred stock that was outstanding
prior to the Business Combination, except that the Series D Preferred Stock (i) was senior in right of liquidation to all other classes of the Company’s
outstanding preferred stock, (ii) was entitled to the same accruing dividends as the Company’s senior Series B-2 and B-4 Preferred Stock and (iii) was not
subject to certain mandatory conversion provisions applicable to the other series of the Company’s redeemable convertible preferred stock (including
mandatory conversion in connection with the Business Combination). Upon consummation of the Business Combination, all of the outstanding shares of
the Series D Preferred Stock were exchanged for 5,000,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock (which exchange reflected the application of the anti-
dilution rights noted above).

As a result of the Business Combination, all other redeemable convertible preferred stock outstanding prior to the Business Combination was
converted into 63,885,490 shares of the Company’s common stock and retroactively adjd usted for all periods presented using the Exchange Ratio of 71.26,
with a one-to-one share conversion rate.

The Series A Preferred Stock is convertible one-to-one (subject to customary adjd ustments) into the Company’s common stock at any time by the
holder. Beginning three years after the issuance date, the Company will be entitled to force the conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock into common
stock if the closing price of the Company’s common stock exceeds 130% of the issue price for 20 out of 30 consecutive trading days. On the fifth
anniversary of the issue date, the Company will be required to redeem any outstanding Series A Preferred Stock at the issue price. The Series A Preferred
Stock will vote on an as-converted basis with all other shares of the Company’s common stock.

Classififf cation of Redeemable Convertible Prerr feff rrerr d Stock

The deemed liquidation preference provisions of the redeemable convertible preferred stock are considered contingent redemption provisions that
are not solely within the Company’s control. Accordingly,yy the redeemable convertible preferred stock has been presented outside of permanent equity in the
mezzanine section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Because the occurrence of a deemed liquidation event is not currently probable, the carrying values
of the convertible preferred stock are not being accreted to their redemption values. Subsequent adjd ustments to the carrying values to the convertible
preferred stock would be made only when a deemed liquidation event becomes probable.

11. Common Stock and Stockholders’ Deficit

As of December 31, 2022, the Company was authorized to issue up to 600,000,000 shares of common stock.

WaWW rrantstt

In connection with debt and equity financings and certain partnership arrangements, the Company may issue warrants. In connection with the
consummation of the Business Combination in 2021, all vested and exercisable warrants issued by the Company,yy and outstanding immediately prior to the
effective date of the Business Combination, were converted into 10,921,334 shares of common stock pursuant to the Merger Agreement. The number of
shares issuable upon conversion of the warrants was determined based on the number of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of such warrants,
on a net exercise basis, and using the Exchange Ratio of 71.26. Certain unvested warrants outstanding immediately prior to the Business
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Combination were not converted. Liability warrants generally vest immediately and are exercisable upon issuance and have an expiration of seven years
from the date of issuance. Equity warrants generally vest after three years from the date of issuance and have an expiration of seven years from issuance.

As of December 31, 2022, the following warrants were issued and outstanding:

Classification
WarrantsWW

Outstanding
Exercise Price

per Share
Equity 1,038,678 $4.21 - $5.61
Liability 17,433,334 $11.50

The Company has also entered into, and may in the future enter into, contractual arrangements with certain customers and other parties and earnout
arrangements in connection with acquisitions that, in each case, provide for the issuance of warrants and/or common stock upon achievement of specified
milestones (which, at the consummation of the Business Combination, became obligations of the Company). As of December 31, 2022, these agreements
provide for the issuance of up to 6,173,886 shares of common stock (including Earnout Shares in connection with the Business Combination) and
9,008,594 warrants to purchase shares of common stock. WiWW th respect to these arrangements, there were 167,107 warrants earned but not issued as of
December 31, 2022.

Share-based Paya mentstt

In July 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted the Sharecare, Inc. 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “2021 Plan”). The 2021 Plan
became effective upon consummation of the Business Combination and succeeded the Company’s legacy equity incentive plans. Under the 2021 Plan, the
Company may grant stock-based awards to purchase or directly issue shares of common stock to employees, directors, and vendors. Restricted stock units
are also granted under the 2021 Plan. The 2021 Plan also permits the Company to grant stock-based awards with performance or market conditions.

The maximum number of shares of Company common stock that may be delivered in satisfaction of awards under the 2021 Plan as of December 31,
2022 is 155,959,042 (including 119,765,404 shares of Company common stock issuable upon the exercise of outstanding options to purchase shares of
Common stock or settlement of restricted stock units). AwAA ards generally have a maximum life of 10 years. Stock option awards are granted with an
exercise price estimated to be greater than or equal to the fair market value on the date of grant. Service-based awards generally vest over a service period
of four years and performance-based awards vest upon the satisfaction of various performance targets. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had
approximately 36,193,638 shares of its common stock available for issuance in satisfaction of future awards under the 2021 Plan.
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Stock option and restricted stock unit activity,yy prices, and values during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 are as follow (in thousands,
except share and per share amounts):

Options Outstanding Restricted Stock Units

Number of
Options

Weighted-WW
AverageAA
Exercise

Price

WeightedWW
AverageAA

Remaining
Contractual
TermTT (Years)YY

Aggregate
Intrinsic ValueVV

Number of Plan
shares outstanding

Weighted-WW
AverageAA Grant

Date Fair
ValueVV per share

Outstanding as of December 31, 2020 107,824,289 $ 1.25 7.30 $ 341,623 — $ —
Granted 27,779,908 $ 7.85 2,492,323 $ 7.39
Exercised / Released (15,788,241) $ 1.04 $ 54,446 (31,250) $ 7.42
Cancelled / Forfeited (3,192,495) $ 2.51 (281,132) $ 7.39
Outstanding as of December 31, 2021 116,623,461 $ 2.81 7.64 $ 300,125 2,179,941 $ 7.39
Granted 416,665 $ 2.85 17,206,322 $ 2.88
Exercised / Released (9,421,583) $ 1.15 $ 4,258 (857,423) $ 5.82
Cancelled / Forfeited (4,061,296) $ 3.83 (2,478,046) $ 4.25
Outstanding as of December 31, 2022 103,557,247 $ 2.88 6.88 $ 25,753 16,050,794 $ 3.21
VeVV sted and/or exercisable as of
December 31, 2022 75,439,358 $ 1.96 6.50 $ 22,030
VeVV sted and/or exercisable as of
December 31, 2021 73,712,795 $ 1.33 6.91 $ 233,440

The intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying common stock option award and the estimated fair
value of the Company’s common stock. VeVV sted but unissued restricted stock units as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 are immaterial.

The table above includes options of 0 and 1,744,046 and restricted stock units of 25,873 and 0 granted to non-employees during the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

VaVV luation Assumpm tions

The Company’s use of the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock options granted to employees requires the input of
subjective assumptions. These assumptions and estimates are as follows:

Expx ected volatilityt — Expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which the stock price is expected to fluctuate. Since the Company does not
have sufficient trading history of its common stock, it estimates the expected volatility of its stock options at their grant date by taking the weighted-
average historical volatility of a group of comparable publicly traded companies over a period of time equal to the expected life of the options.

Expx ected term — The Company determines the expected term based on the average period the stock options are expected to remain outstanding,
generally calculated as the midpoint of the stock options vesting term and contractual expiration period, as the Company does not have sufficient historical
information to develop reasonable expectations about future exercise patterns and post-vesting employment termination behavior. The expected term for
non-employee stock options is the contractual life, or 10 years.

Risk-frff err e rate — The Company uses the U.S. Treasury yield for its risk-free interest rate that corresponds with the expected term.

Expx ected dividend yield — The Company utilizes a dividend yield of zero, as it does not currently issue dividends and does not expect to in the
future.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of stock option grants made during the following periods:
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YearsYY Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Expected volatility 55% 55% 55% - 57%
Expected term (in years) 5.0 5.0 – 10.0 5.0 - 7.0
Risk-free interest rate 1.67% 0.40% – 1.54% 0.27% – 0.61%
Expected dividend yield —% —% —%

Assumptions used in valuing non-employee stock options are generally consistent with those used for employee stock options with the exception of
expected term discussed above.

Share-based compensation expense for employee and nonemployee options and restricted stock units included in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Loss is as follows during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 (in thousands):

YearsYY Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Cost of revenues $ 410 $ 44 $ 30
Sales and marketing 3,755 1,835 484
Product and technology 3,687 12,502 431
General and administrative 61,776 32,399 18,215

ToTT tal share-based compensation $ 69,628 $ 46,780 $ 19,160

Included in the share-based compensation table above for the year ended December 31, 2021 is $0.8 million of expense related to the Earnout Shares
allocated to Legacy Sharecare option holders (see Note 2).

The Company’s total unrecognized compensation cost related to options and restricted stock units as of December 31, 2022 was $32.7 million and
$39.2 million, respectively,yy and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average vesting period of 1.31 and 2.84 years, respectively. The Company’s
total unrecognized share-based compensation related to options issued to non-employees as of December 31, 2022 was $0.4 million and is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average vesting period of 0.11 years.

Share-based compensation costs reflected within additional paid-in capital in the Consolidated Statement of Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest,
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit) for the year ended December 31, 2022 includes approximately $2.4 million
related to capitalizable internally-developed software activities.

12. Noncontrolling Interests

Equityt NoNN ncontrorr lling InII tererr ststt

In connection with the Company’s acquisition of Healthways in 2016, and prior to the Business Combination, the Company acquired a 51%
controlling interest in Healthways Brasil Servicos de Consultoria Ltda. (“Healthways Brazil”). The Company consolidates its investment in Healthways
Brazil and records the 49% interest as a noncontrolling interest as a component of equity.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Purcrr hase Commitmentstt

The following is a schedule of future non-cancellable purchase obligations with certain service providers as follows (in thousands):
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YeYY ar ending December 31:
2023 $ 8,112
2024 5,055
2025 4,037
2026 3,091
2027 3,139

Thereafter 6,688
$ 30,122

Cloud Compm uting Service Arrangementstt

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company capitalized $2.0 million and $1.1 million, respectively,yy of implementation costs related to cloud
computing service arrangements to prepaid expenses and other long-term assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Capitalized implementation costs
stemming from cloud computing arrangement are amortized over the term of the associated hosting arrangement and amortization is recognized on a
straight-line basis.

Letters of Crerr dit

As of December 31, 2022, the Company had outstanding letters of credit totaling $8.9 million issued in connection with routine business
requirements.

Legal MaMM tters

From time to time, the Company is subject to litigation in the normal course of business. The Company is of the opinion that, based on the
information presently available, the resolution of any such legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows. The Company has accrued for losses that are both probable and estimable.

WeWW are also party to investigations and legal disputes and losses related to certain matters that are reasonably possible, but at this time, we cannot
estimate a loss or range of losses.

14. Related-Party TrTT ansactions

The Company previously owned a 50% interest in HICCH-SCL. In 2015, the Company and HCA formed HICCH-SCL, a joint venture with HCA,
for the purpose of developing a patient scheduling technology. The Company recorded its investment in HICCH-SCL under the equity method of
accounting. In August 2020, the Company initiated discussions with HCA to dissolve HICCH-SCL. In connection with its plans, the Company recorded an
impairment loss of $3.9 million included within loss from equity method investment on the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive
Loss for the year ended December 31, 2020, of which $1.2 million related to its investment in HICCH-SCL and $2.7 million related to a short-term loan
receivable from HICCH-SCL. As of June 29, 2022, HICCH-SCL was dissolved.

The Company’s largest customer was an investor in $20.0 million of the Series B-3 Convertible Notes, had a designated board representative prior to
the Business Combination and thus was a related party for 2021. Subsequent to the Business Combination, the customer no longer was considered a related
party due to loss of the board seat. The Company recorded revenues from the customer of $48.0 million and $54.0 million during the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. In addition, accounts receivable from the customer were $11.5 million as of December 31, 2021. The number of
warrants earned but not issued were 0 and 6,185, and were recorded as a reduction of revenue totaling $0 and $1.1 million, during the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Company has the exclusive right to license the Dr. Dean Ornish Program for Reversing Heart Disease , a research-based lifestyle management
program developed by Dr. Dean Ornish focusing on nutrition, activity,yy stress management, and love and support (the “Ornish Program”). A royalty
agreement with Dr. Ornish, MD, an employee of the Company until 2020, guaranteed the greater of $1.2 million or 15% of revenues of the Ornish Program
on an annual basis. Subsequent to 2020, Dr. Ornish, MD was no longer considered a related party due to no longer being employed by the Company. The
royalty earned by the Ornish Program for year ended December 31, 2020 totaled $1.2 million.

TM
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Sul América Serviços de Saúde S.A. (Sul América), is a customer of and owns a 49% interest in Sharecare Brasil Servicios de Consultoria, Ltda. As
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, $1.4 million and $2.0 million, respectively,yy in notes receivable were outstanding with Sul América. Revenues recognized
during the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020 totaled $8.9 million, $11.6 million and $12.8 million, respectively.

The Company has a related party that performs sales and sales support services including the collection of outstanding accounts receivable for
transactions processed on the Company’s behalf. Revenues recognized for each of the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 totaled $0, $0.3
million, and $3.5 million, respectively. The Company paid $0, less than $0.1 million, and $0.3 million in 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively in connection
with these services.

The Series A Preferred Stock is held by a customer that also has an employee serving on the Company’s Board of Directors. As of December 31,
2022 and 2021, $3.1 million and $5.0 million, respectively,yy in receivables were outstanding from this related party. Additionally,yy as of December 31, 2022
and 2021, long-term assets included $0 and $5.5 million, respectively,yy and current assets included $4.8 million and $1.7 million, respectively,yy associated
with this related party. Long-term and current assets were related to a non-cash payment received for up front research and development costs related to the
issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock. For the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, the Company paid $2.0 million, $1.8 million, and $1.3
million related to administration fees and stop-loss coverage for employee health insurance. Revenues recognized from the customer for each of the years
ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 totaled, $20.3 million, $17.3 million, and $3.9 million, respectively.

Additionally,yy during 2022, we entered into a revenue contract with the Series A Preferred Stockholder to provide patient advocacy services.
Revenues recognized related to these services for the year ended December 31, 2022, totaled $17.4 million. As of December 31, 2022, there were $18.1
million in receivables, $28.0 million in accrued expenses, $6.9 million of long-term liabilities, $1.7 million of current contract assets, and $5.8 million in
long-term contract assets recorded in connection with these agreements. The contract assets are being amortized as a reduction of revenue over the contract
term. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2022, included $0.6 million of amortization of such contract assets. Additionally,yy the Company acquired
certain intellectual property which was determined to be distinct and recorded an intangible asset of $7.9 million, which is being amortized over its
estimated useful life. The Company also entered into separate agreements during 2022 for the purchase of distinct goods and services from that customer
for amounts totaling $18.0 million which are recorded in cost of sales. Amounts paid under the agreements that were not determined to be distinct were
recorded as a reduction of revenues as described above.

15. Net Loss Per Share

Net loss per share calculations for all periods prior to the Business Combination have been retrospectively adjd usted for the equivalent number of
shares outstanding immediately after the Business Combination to effect the Reverse Recapitalization. Subsequent to the Business Combination, net loss
per share was calculated based on the weighted average number of common stock then outstanding.

Basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders was calculated as follows (in thousands, except share and per share
amounts):

YearsYY Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Numerator
Net loss $ (119,485) $ (85,129) $ (60,461)
Less: Redeemable noncontrolling interest remeasurement — — (804)
Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries 778 129 443
Net loss available to common stockholders $ (118,707) $ (85,000) $ (60,822)

Denominator
WeWW ighted-average common shares outstanding, basic and diluted 348,103,491 281,026,365 215,094,037
Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, basic and diluted $ (0.34) $ (0.30) $ (0.28)
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The Company’s potential dilutive securities, which include convertible debt, stock options and restricted stock units, warrants to purchase common
stock, redeemable convertible preferred stock, and contingently issued shares, have been excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share for the
years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020, as they are anti-dilutive and the effect would be to reduce the net loss per share. Therefore, the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding used to calculate both basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is the same.
The Company excluded the following potential common share equivalents presented based on amounts outstanding at each period end, from the
computation of diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders for the periods indicated because including them would have had an anti-
dilutive effect:

YearsYY Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Convertible debt — 18,796,999 35,783,839
Stock options and restricted stock units 30,145,693 61,896,591 82,154,207
WaWW rrants to purchase common stock — 5,665,985 8,507,552
Redeemable convertible preferred stock 5,000,000 3,544,003 —
Contingently issuable shares 111,357 1,537,463 1,265,205

ToTT tal 35,257,050 91,441,041 127,710,803

16. Subsequent Events

In accordance with ASC 855, Subsequent Events, the Company evaluated subsequent events through March 30, 2023, the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued and, as a result, is reporting the following:

On February 10, 2023, the company renewed its Senior Secured Credit Agreement. The Senior Secured Credit Agreement was due to mature on
February 10, 2023 and the Ninth Amendment extends the maturity date of the Senior Secured Credit Agreement to February 10, 2026. The total
commitments under the senior secured revolving credit facility remain unchanged at $60.0 million (the “Revolving Facility”) as a result of the Ninth
Amendment but the sublimit for Letters of Credit has increased from $10.0 million to $15.0 million. AvAA ailability under the Revolving Facility is generally
subject to a borrowing base based on a percentage of applicable eligible receivables. Borrowings under the Revolving Facility bear interest at a rate equal
to, at the applicable Borrower’s option, either (a) a base rate plus a margin of 0.75%, or (b) the 1, 3, or 6 month SOFR Rate plus 1.75%. The Ninth
Amendment amends other terms of the existing Credit Agreement, including eliminating minimum liquidity and minimum EBITDA covenants, increased
thresholds for certain permitted transactions, modifications to reporting and other changes.

On February 17, 2023, the Company filed a petition in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (the “Chancery Court”) under Section 205 of
the Delaware General Corporation Law (“DGCL”) to resolve potential uncertainty with respect to the Company’s certificate of incorporation (the
“Charter”) and the Company’s capital structure (captioned In re Sharecare, Inc., C.A. No. 2023-0203-LWLL W (Del. Ch.), the “Section 205 Action”).

On March 14, 2023, the Chancery Court held a hearing in the Section 205 Action and orally granted the Company’s petition. The Chancery Court
issued an order in the Section 205 Action granting the Company’s petition and validating and declaring effective (i) the Charter retroactive to the date of its
filing with the Office of the Delaware Secretary of State and (ii) and all securities of the Company issued in reliance on the validity of the Charter
(including those issued in connection with and following the Company’s business combination with Falcon Capital Acquisition Corp), each as of the
original issuance dates. A copy of the Chancery Court’s order is attached.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTATT NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None.
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ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluatit on of Disii closure Contrtt olsll and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act), as of the end of the period covered by this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based on such evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that, as of such date,
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at a reasonable assurance level.

MaMM nagement’s’ Repe ort on InII tet rnal Contrtt ol Over Financial Repe orting

Sharecare management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Based on the criteria for
effective internal control over financial reporting established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission, management has assessed our internal control over financial reporting as effective as of December 31, 2022.
Our independent public accounting firm will not be required to formally attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as long as
we are an “emerging growth company” pursuant to the provisions of the JOBS Act.

MaMM tett rial WeWW akness and Changes in InII tet rnal Contrtt ol

In connection with the audit of our financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021, we identified a material weakness in our
internal control over financial reporting. As of December 31, 2021, the Company did not maintain sufficient internal controls related to the review of a
unique contract for a new product offering to a new customer.

During 2022, we took actions to remediate the material weakness relating to our internal controls over financial reporting, as described below. The
controls and processes we implemented to remediate the identified material weakness included:

• implementing control activities to identify new customer and product offerings prior to contract execution;

• modifying existing controls and enhancing the documentation that evidences a control’s performance specific to contract reviews related
to new customers and new product offerings; and

• supplementing our internal accounting resources with additional external accounting and finance resources by engaging a professional
accounting services firm to assist us with our documentation and assessment of our internal controls over financial reporting with respect to our
compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

As a result of the remediation activities and controls in place as of December 31, 2022 described above, we have remediated this previously
disclosed material weakness. However, completion of remediation does not provide assurance that our remediated controls will continue to operate
properly or that our financial statements will be free from error.

Other than as noted above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in management’s evaluation pursuant to
Rules 13a-15(d) or 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Limitatt tit ons on Effff eff ctitt veness of Contrtt olsll and Procedures

Our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, do not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures
or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the
fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all
control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any,yy have been detected. These
inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty,yy and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or
mistake. Additionally,yy controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by management override
of the controls. The design of any system of controls is also based
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in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated
goals under all potential future conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with
policies or procedures may deteriorate. Due to inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATAA ION

Since our executive compensation program emphasizes pay-for-performance, at the beginning of fiscal year 2022, we established minimum goals for
company financial performance under our annual cash incentive plan. While we did not achieve these minimum performance goals, on March 29, 2023, the
Compensation Committee used its discretion to award cash incentive payments to our named executive officers at 62.5% of target taking into consideration
unexpected events impacting the attainability of previously set goals, successful strategic product and innovation initiatives and a holistic view of 2022
performance.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THATAA PREVENT INSPECTIONS.

None.
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Part III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATAA E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC within 120 days of December 31, 2022.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATAA ION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC within 120 days of December 31, 2022.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTRR ATT IN BENEFICIAL OWNER AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATAA ED STOCKHOLDER
MATAA TERS

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC within 120 days of December 31, 2022.

ITEM 13. CERTRR ATT IN RELATAA IONSHIPS AND RELATAA ED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC within 120 days of December 31, 2022.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAPP L ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVRR ICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our definitive Proxy Statement for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be filed with the SEC within 120 days of December 31, 2022.
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Part IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATT TAA EMENT SCHEDULES

• Financial Statements

The following financial statements of Sharecare, Inc. are included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

i. Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (PCAOB ID: 42)

ii. Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021

iii. Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020

iv. Consolidated Statements of Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity
(Deficit) for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020

v. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020

vi. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

• The following financial statement schedules are filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

◦ Not applicable.

• The following exhibits are filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Exhibit Description
2.1 † Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 12, 2021, by and among Falcon Capital Acquisition Corp., FCAC Merger Sub Inc.,

Sharecare, Inc. and Colin Daniel, solely in his capacity as representative of the stockholders of Sharecare, Inc. (incorporated by reference to
Annex A of Amendment 3 to FCAC’s Form S-4 filed May 26, 2021 (File No. 333-253113)).

3.1 Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Sharecare, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Amendment No. 1
to FCAC’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed with the SEC on July 1, 2021).

.2 Certificate of Designations for Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of Amendment No. 1 to
FCAC’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed with the SEC on July 1, 2021).

3.3 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Sharecare, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of Amendment No. 1 to FCAC’s Registration
Statement on Form 8-A, filed with the SEC on July 1, 2021).

4.1 Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Sharecare, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Amendment No. 1 to FCAC’s
Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed with the SEC on July 1, 2021).

4.2 Warrant Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2020, between Falcon Capital Acquisition Corp. and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust
Company (including Form of Warrant Certificate) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of FCAC’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on September 24, 2020).

4.3 Description of Securities (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2022).
10.1 # Sharecare, Inc. 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-

K12B, filed with the SEC on July 8, 2021).
0.2 # Form of Stock Option Grant Notice for Named Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Amendment No. 1 to the

Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the SEC on August 12, 2021).
10.3 # Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Current

Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the SEC on August 12, 2021).
10.4 # Form of Stock Option Grant Notice (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Current Report on

Form 8-K/A, filed with the SEC on August 12, 2021).
10.5 # Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (for awards previously issued under the Sharecare, Inc. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan) (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.5 on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2022).
10.6 # Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (for awards previously issued under the Sharecare, Inc. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan) (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.6 on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 28, 2022).
10.7 Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K12B, filed

with the SEC on July 8, 2021).
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10.8 † Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2021, by and among Falcon Capital Acquisition Corp.,

Sharecare, Inc. and certain stockholders named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K12B, filed with the SEC on July 8, 2021).

10.9 † Earnout Escrow Agreement, dated July 1, 2021, by and among Sharecare, Inc., Colin Daniel, solely in his capacity as stockholder
representative, Falcon Equity Investors LLC and Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of
Amendment No. 1 to FCAC’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A, filed with the SEC on July 1, 2021).

10.10 Sponsor Agreement, dated as of February 12, 2021, by and between Falcon Equity Investors LLC and Sharecare, Inc. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of FCAC’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February 12, 2021).

10.11 Letter Agreement, dated September 21, 2020, by and among Falcon Capital Acquisition Corp., its executive officers, its directors and
Falcon Equity Investors LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of FCAC’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on
September 24, 2020).

10.12 Form of Subscription Agreement, dated February 12, 2021, by and between Falcon Capital Acquisition Corp., and the undersigned
subscriber party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of FCAC’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February
12, 2021).

10.13 Form of Lock-Up Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Amendment No. 2 to FCAC’s Registration Statement on Form
S-4, filed with the SEC on May 11, 2021).

10.14 # Employment Agreement, effective as of August 13, 2021, by and among Sharecare, Inc., Sharecare Operating Company, Inc. and Jeffrey T.
Arnold (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the
SEC on August 12, 2021).

10.15 # Employment Agreement, effective as of August 13, 2021, by and among Sharecare, Inc., Sharecare Operating Company, Inc. and Justin
Ferrero (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the
SEC on August 12, 2021).

10.16 # Employment Agreement, effective as of August 13, 2021, by and among Sharecare, Inc., Sharecare Operating Company, Inc. and Dawn
Whaley (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Amendment No. 1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the
SEC on August 12, 2021).

10.17 † Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2017, by and among Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, the Lenders
party thereto from time to time, and Sharecare, Inc. and certain subsidiaries of Sharecare, Inc., as Borrowers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of Amendment No. 3 to FCAC’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on May 26, 2021).

10.18 † Amendment Number One to Credit Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2017, relating to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2017, by and
among Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, the Lenders party thereto from time to time, and Sharecare, Inc.
and certain subsidiaries of Sharecare, Inc., as Borrowers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Amendment No. 3 to FCAC’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on May 26, 2021).

10.19 † Amendment Number Two to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 11, 2018, relating to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2017, by and
among Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, the Lenders party thereto from time to time, and Sharecare, Inc.
and certain subsidiaries of Sharecare, Inc., as Borrowers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Amendment No. 3 to FCAC’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on May 26, 2021).

0.20 † Amendment Number Three to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 12, 2020, relating to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2017,
by and among Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, the Lenders party thereto from time to time, and
Sharecare, Inc. and certain subsidiaries of Sharecare, Inc., as Borrowers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Amendment No. 3 to
FCAC’s Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on May 26, 2021).

10.21 † Amendment Number Four to Credit Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2020, relating to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2017, by and
among Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, the Lenders party thereto from time to time, and Sharecare, Inc.
and certain subsidiaries of Sharecare, Inc., as Borrowers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Amendment No. 3 to FCAC’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on May 26, 2021).

10.22 † Amendment Number Five to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 22, 2021, relating to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2017, by
and among Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, the Lenders party thereto from time to time, and Sharecare,
Inc. and certain subsidiaries of Sharecare, Inc., as Borrowers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Amendment No. 3 to FCAC’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on May 26, 2021).
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10.23 † Amendment Number Six to Credit Agreement and Consent, dated as of July 1, 2021, relating to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9,

2017, by and among Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, the Lenders party thereto from time to time, and
Sharecare, Inc. and certain subsidiaries of Sharecare, Inc., as Borrowers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of Sharecare’s Current
Report on Form 8-K12B, filed with the SEC on July 8, 2021).

10.24 † Amendment Number Eight to Credit Agreement, dated as of May 11, 2022, relating to Credit Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2017, by and
among Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, the Lenders party thereto from time to time, and Sharecare
Operating Company, Inc. f/k/a Sharecare, Inc. and certain subsidiaries of Sharecare, Inc., as Borrowers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on May 12, 2022)

10.25 † Amendment Number Nine to Credit Agreement and Amendment Number One to Guaranty and Security Agreement, dated as of February
10, 2023, by and among Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, the Lenders party thereto from time to time,
Sharecare, Inc. and certain subsidiaries of Sharecare, Inc. as Borrowers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Sharecare’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on February 16, 2023).

10.26 #†* Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice.
10.27 #†* Form of Performance Restricted Stock Unit Grant Notice.
10.28 #* Sharecare, Inc. Change in Control Plan.
10.29 # Sharecare, Inc. Non-Employee Director Deferral Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Sharecare’s Quarterly Report on Form

10-Q, filed with the SEC on August 10, 2022).
21.1* List of Subsidiaries.
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.
24.1 Power of Attorney (included on signature pages).
31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1** Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2** Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS* Inline XBRL Instance Document – the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded

within the Inline XBRL document.
101.SCH* Inline XBRL TaTT xonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL* Inline XBRL TaTT xonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF* Inline XBRL TaTT xonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB* Inline XBRL TaTT xonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE* Inline XBRL TaTT xonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104 The cover page for the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K has been formatted in Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101
____________

* Filed herewith.

** Furnished herewith.

# Indicated a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

† Certain of the exhibits and schedules to this Exhibit have been omitted in accordance with Regulation S-K Item 601(a)(5). The Registrant agrees to furnish a copy
of all omitted exhibits and schedules to the SEC upon its request.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARYRR

None.
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SIGNATAA URES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SHARECARE INC.
/s/ Jeff Arnold
Name: Jeff Arnold
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Chairman

POWER OF ATAA TORNEY

Each person whose individual signature appears below hereby authorizes and appoints Jeff Arnold, Justin Ferrero, Colin Daniel and Carrie Ratliff,
and each of them, with full power of substitution and resubstitution and full power to act without the other, as his or her true and lawful attorney-in-fact andd
agent to act in his or her name, place and stead and to execute in the name and on behalf of each person, individually and in each capacity stated below,ww and
to file any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do
and perform each and every act and thing, ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them or their or his or her substitute
or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrantt
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
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Name Title Date
/s/ Jeff Arnold Chief Executive Officer and Chairman March 30, 2023
Jeff Arnold (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Justin Ferrero Chief Financial Officer March 30, 2023
Justin Ferrero (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Michael Blalock Chief Accounting Officer March 30, 2023
Michael Blalock (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Jeffrey A. Allred Director March 30, 2023
Jeffrey A. Allred

/s/ John H. Chadwick Director March 30, 2023
John H. Chadwick

/s/ Sandro Galea Director March 30, 2023
Sandro Galea

/s/ Kenneth R. Goulet Director March 30, 2023
Kenneth R. Goulet

/s/ Brent Layton Director March 30, 2023
Brent Layton

/s/ VeVV ronica Mallet Director March 30, 2023
VeVV ronica Mallet

/s/ Alan G. Mnuchin Director March 30, 2023
Alan G. Mnuchin

/s/ Raja eev Ronanki Director March 30, 2023
Raja eev Ronanki

/s/ Jeffrey Sagansky Director March 30, 2023
Jeffrey Sagansky
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